
 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

             
 

AMENDED 

AGENDA 
Auditorium – Furnace Creek Visitors Center 

California 190, Death Valley, CA 92328 

Hurlbutt-Rook Community Center 
405 Tecopa Hot Springs Rd., Tecopa, CA 92389 

 
SEE ATTACHED MAPS 

 
NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC:  The County of Inyo plans to make this meeting available for viewing and listening via Zoom webinar at https://zoom.us/j/868254781. The 
meeting may also be accessed by telephone at the following numbers: (669) 900-6833; (346) 248-7799; (253) 215-8782; (929) 205-6099; (301) 715-8592; (312) 626-
6799. Webinar ID: 868 254 781. The public webinar will be provided to the public as a convenience only. Should remote access not be available, the Board of 
Supervisors reserves the right to conduct the meeting without remote access. Public comment may be made in person or in advance by sending written comments –   
limited to 250 words or fewer – to the Assistant Clerk of the Board at boardclerk@inyocounty.us 
 
In Compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at (760) 878-
0373 (28 CFR 35.102-35.104 ADA Title II). Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to 
this meeting. Should you because of a disability require appropriate alternative formatting of this agenda, please notify the Clerk of the Board 72 hours prior to the 
meeting to enable the County to make the agenda available in a reasonable alternative format. (Government Code Section 54954.2).  (2) If a writing, that is a public 
record relating to an agenda item for an open session of a regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors, is distributed less than 72 hours prior to the meeting, the 
writing shall be available for public inspection at the Office of the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors, 224 N. Edwards, Independence, California and is available per 
Government Code § 54957.5(b)(1). 

 

REGULAR MEETING 
April 18, 2023 

 

(Unless otherwise specified by time, items scheduled for either the morning or afternoon 
sessions will be heard according to available time and presence of interested persons.) 
 

CALL TO ORDER IN FURNACE CREEK (FURNACE CREEK VISITORS CENTER, CALIFORNIA 
190, DEATH VALLEY)  

  
 

11 A.M. 1) Workshop - The Board will convene at the Furnace Creek Visitors Center for a 
workshop in which the following individuals and organizations will address the 
Board on items of interest to Death Valley and Inyo County as a whole: 

A) Representatives of the Timbisha-Shoshone Tribe; 
B) DVNP Superintendent Mike Reynolds and Management Analyst Abby 

Wines; 
C) Rick During, General Manager of the Oasis at Death Valley; 
D) Henry Golas of the Death Valley Conservancy; 
E) Fred Conboy, President of Amargosa Opera House, Inc., and Ramon 

Caballero, Vice President; 
F) Matthew Paruolo, Government Relations Manager for Southern 

California Edison; and 
G) Any other interested parties. 

The workshop is expected to last 1-1.5 hours, after which the Board will 
recess in order to travel to Tecopa. 

 

 

 
 

 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS  •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY  

 

 
DAN TOTHEROH   •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I NG S LE Y  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NATE GREENBERG 
CO U NT Y ADM I NI ST R AT IV E O FF IC ER  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

DARCY ELLIS 
AS S T .  CLE RK  O F T HE  BO ARD  

 

 

https://zoom.us/j/868254781
mailto:boardclerk@inyocounty.us


 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

   
 

CALL TO ORDER IN TECOPA (HURLBUTT-ROOK COMMUNITY CENTER, 405 TECOPA HOT 
SPRINGS RD., TECOPA, CA)  

  
 

 2:30 P.M. 2) Pledge of Allegiance 
  

 

  3) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  4) County Department Reports 
  

 

CONSENT AGENDA (Items that are considered routine and are approved in a single motion; 
approval recommended by the County Administrator) 

  
 

   

 5) Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 

  Clerk of the Board | Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 

Recommended Action: Approve the minutes from the regular Board of 
Supervisors meeting of April 4, 2023.  

 

   

  
6) 

 
Amendment No. 1 to the Contract with TerraVerde Energy, LLC 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action:  
A) Approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo 

and TerraVerde Energy, LLC of San Francisco, CA to:  
1. Delete Section 3 (b) i which reads as follows, "actual vs 

expected avoided electric utility costs;” 
2. Delete Section 3 (b) iii which reads as follows, "actual vs 

expected savings;” and 
B) Authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate 

signatures being obtained. 
 

   

  
7) 

 
Amendment No. 4 to MGE Engineering, Inc. Contract 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: Ratify and approve Amendment No. 4 to the contract 
between the County of Inyo and MGE Engineering Inc of Sacramento, CA, 
extending the term end date from June 30, 2021 to December 31, 2023, 
contingent upon approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize 
the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. 

 

   

  
8) 

 
2022 Maintained Mileage Certification 

  Public Works | Michael Errante 
 

Recommended Action: A) Approve Resolution No. 2023-10, titled, 
“Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State of California, 
Annual Certification of the 2022 Maintained Mileage Log," and authorize the 
Chairperson to sign; and B) Authorize the Department of Public Works to file 
the resolution with the District 9 Office of the State of California Department of 
Transportation.  

 



 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 

 
 

REGULAR AGENDA - AFTERNOON  
  

 

  

 

 

 

 

  

9) Presentations/Updates - The following individuals will address the Board on 
items of interest to Southeast Inyo County and the County as a whole: 

A) Matthew Paruolo, Southern California Edison Government Relations 
Manager; 

B) Robin Flinchum, Board Chairperson, Southern Inyo Fire Protection 
District; 

C) Mason Voel, Executive Director of the Amargosa Conservancy;  
D) ADDENDUM - Susan Sorrells, representing the campaign to create the 

Amargosa Basin National Monument;  
E) Paul Barnes of Tecopa Hot Springs Conservancy, the concessionaire of 

Tecopa Hot Springs Campground; and 

F) Marc Stamer, Barstow BLM Field Manager. 
  

 

   

 10) Public Works Update on Roads, Sewer Pond, and Future Projects 

  Public Works | Michael Errante, John Pinckney, Greg Waters 
10 minutes (5min. Presentation / 5min. Discussion) 
 

Recommended Action: Receive an informational update from Public Works 
on current and future projects taking place in the Tecopa/Shoshone area.  

 

ADDITIONAL PUBLIC COMMENT & REPORTS  
  

 

  11) Public Comment  
Comments may be time-limited 

  
 

  12) Board Member and Staff Reports 
Receive updates on recent or upcoming meetings and projects 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 



 



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

April 18, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3699  

 

Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes 
Clerk of the Board 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Clerk of the Board Assistant Clerk of the Board 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the minutes from the regular Board of Supervisors meeting of April 4, 2023. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
The Board is required to keep minutes of its proceedings. Once the Board has approved the minutes as 
requested, the minutes will be made available to the public via the County’s webpage, 
www.inyocounty.us. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft April 4, 2023 Minutes 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D

https://www.inyocounty.us/government/publications-reports-plans-proclamations/meeting-agendas-minutes


 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

APPROVALS: 
Darcy Ellis Created/Initiated - 4/4/2023 
Darcy Ellis Final Approval - 4/4/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  1                                                                                                                                     April 4, 2023      

    

County of Inyo
Board of Supervisors

April 4, 2023
 
The Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California, met in regular session at the hour of 8:32 a.m., on 
April 4, 2023, in the Board of Supervisors Room, County Administrative Center, Independence, with the following 
Supervisors present: Chairperson Jennifer Roeser, presiding, Trina Orrill, Scott Marcellin, Matt Kingsley, and Jeff 
Griffiths. Also present: County Administrator Nate Greenberg, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Assistant Clerk of the 
Board Darcy Ellis, and Office Technician Hayley Carter. 

Closed Session 
Public Comment

The Chairperson asked for public comment related Closed Session items and there was 
nobody wishing to speak.

Closed Session Chairperson Roeser recessed open session at 8:32 a.m. to convene in closed session with 
all Board members present to discuss the following item(s): No. 2 Conference with Legal 
Counsel - Anticipated Litigation - Significant exposure to potential litigation pursuant to 
paragraph (2) of subdivision (d) Government Code §54956.9: one potential case.; No. 3 
Conference with County's Labor Negotiators – Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.6 – Regarding employee organizations: Deputy Sheriff’s Association (DSA); Elected 
Officials Assistant Association (EOAA); Inyo County Correctional Officers Association 
(ICCOA); Inyo County Employees Association (ICEA); Inyo County Probation Peace Officers 
Association (ICPPOA); IHSS Workers; Law Enforcement Administrators’ Association (LEAA). 
Unrepresented employees: all. County designated representatives – Administrative Officer 
Nate Greenberg, Assistant County Administrators Sue Dishion and Meaghan McCamman, 
Deputy Personnel Director Keri Oney, County Counsel John-Carl Vallejo, Senior Budget 
Analyst Denelle Carrington, Health and Human Services Director Marilyn Mann, and Chief 
Probation Officer Jeff Thomson.

Open Session Chairperson Roeser recessed closed session and reconvened the meeting in open session 
at 10:11 a.m. with all Board members present.

Pledge of Allegiance Supervisor Orrill led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Report on Closed 
Session

County Counsel Vallejo reported that no action was taken during closed session that is 
required to be reported.

Employee Service 
Recognition – 
1st Q 2023

The following employees were recognized for reaching service milestones with the County 
during the first quarter of 2023:

• Paul Dorame, 25 years, Tammy McDevitt, 20 years, and Mark Smith, 15 years, 
Sheriff’s Office

• Rick Chapman, 15 years, Information Services
• Gilbert Conde, 5 years, and Claude Felton, 5 years, Public Works
• Edith Chavez, 5 years, Nicole Gonzalez, 5 years, and Catherine Grisham, 5 years, 

Health & Human Services
• Mallory Watterson, 5 years, County Counsel
• Wendy Carrington, 25 years, Personnel

Presentation – Carson 
& Colorado Railway 
Company

Dave Mull of Carson & Colorado Railway gave the Board a presentation on recent and 
upcoming events for the group, including a celebration at Laws Railroad Museum March 18-
19 and March 25-26. He shared photos and video of the event, as well as the effort to move 
the train from Independence to Bishop.

Public Comment The Chairperson asked for public comment related to items not calendared on the agenda. 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  2                                                                                                                                     April 4, 2023      

Public comment was made by Lauralynn Hundley.

County Department 
Reports 

HHS Director Marilyn Mann reported that April is Child Abuse Prevention Month and related 
events include “Paint it Blue Fridays” and a memorial flag raising on April 28. She also 
announced that April 3-9 is National Public Health Week, explaining that the infrastructure for 
public health services was bolstered by additional resources during the COVID-19 pandemic, 
but now there are state budget proposals to start eroding that funding. She urged everyone 
to continue supporting the provision of public health funding.  

Clerk of the Board – 
Approval of Minutes

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to approve the minutes 
of the regular Board of Supervisors meetings of March 21, 2023 and March 28, 2023. Motion 
carried unanimously.

HHS-ESAAA – 
CDA Agreement 
Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to ratify and approve 
Amendment No. 1 to Standard Agreement for Contract Number AP-2223-16, between the 
County of Inyo and the California Department of Aging (CDA), increasing the overall 
allocation by $27,182, for a total contract amount of $1,591,555, and authorize the HHS 
Director to sign the Standard Agreement Amendment. Motion carried unanimously.

HHS-Health/Prevention 
– Registered Dietician 
at D Step

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to authorize the hiring of 
one (1) Registered Dietitian, Range 74 ($5,649 - $6,868), at the D Step ($6,541). Motion 
carried unanimously.

HHS-Behavioral Health 
– Behavioral Health 
Nurse at E Step

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to authorize the hiring of 
one (1) Behavioral Health Nurse, Range 80 ($6,509 - $7,918), at the E Step ($7,918). Motion 
carried unanimously.

Planning –
MOU with BLM

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to approve the 
Memorandum of Understanding to establish cooperating agency status with the Bureau of 
Land Management for the Section 368 Corridors Resource Management Plan Amendment 
and associated Environmental Impact Statement and authorize the Planning Director to sign. 
Motion carried unanimously.

Probation – Tulare 
County Agreement 
Amendment B

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to approve Amendment 
B No. 30192 to the agreement between the County of Inyo and Tulare County to extend the 
agreement to July 1, 2023 through June 30, 2024, contingent upon the Board’s approval of 
the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon 
all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works – 
Accepting Federal 
Highway Grant

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to:
A) Accept a successful grant from the Federal Highway Safety Improvement Program in 

the amount of $209,600 for safety improvements along 1.2 miles of Old Spanish Trail 
Highway in the Emigrant Pass area; 

B) Authorize the Public Works Department Director to execute the grant agreements 
and other documents related to the grant between the County of Inyo and the 
Federal Highway Administration and Caltrans for the period of  September 1, 2023 
through December 31, 2025, contingent upon the Board’s approval of future 
budgets; and 

C) Authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained.

Motion carried unanimously.

Public Works – LP 
Airport Taxiway 
Plans & Specs

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to approve the plans 
and specifications for the Lone Pine/Death Valley Airport Taxiway A Resurfacing Project and 
authorize the Public Works Director to advertise the project pending approval from the 
FAA. Motion carried unanimously.

PW-Recycling & Waste 
Management – 
Tire Amnesty Event 

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to:
A) Waive all gate and disposal fees associated with the Tire Amnesty Events; and
B) Authorize payment from Recycling Waste Management to American Refuse, the 

County's tire hauler, for pickup for these events only, in addition to their existing 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  3                                                                                                                                     April 4, 2023      

Gate Fee Waiver contract for tire hauling for waste management. Motion carried unanimously.
Motion carried unanimously.

CAO – Administrative 
Operations Analyst Job 
Description

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to:
A) Approve the Administrative Operations Analyst job description; and
B) Update the title of the Assistant to the CAO (Range 74, $5,649 - $6,868) in the 

County Administrator's Department to Administrative Operations Analyst (Range 74, 
$5,649 - $6,868) in the Authorized Strength report. Motion carried unanimously.

Motion carried unanimously.

CAO – Elaine Kabala 
Contract Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Kingsley to approve Amendment 
No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and Elaine Kabala for the Provision of 
Personal Services as the Executive Director of Regional Coordination, and authorize the 
County Administrator to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being 
obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

Environmental Health – 
Amending Well 
Ordinance

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to: 
A) Introduce, read title, and waive further reading of the proposed ordinance tilted, “An 

Ordinance of the Inyo County Board of Supervisors Adding Sections 14.24.051 and 
14.24.052 to the Inyo County Code to Revise and Clarify Procedures for the 
Processing of Applications for Groundwater Wells;" and 

B) Set enactment of said ordinance for April 25, 2023 in the County Administrative 
Center in Independence. 

Motion carried unanimously.

CAO – Spring Runoff 
and Planning Efforts

The Board received an overview from CAO Greenberg, Road Superintendent Shannon Platt, 
and Acting Sheriff’s Lt. Nate Derr of the work and planning being done to help mitigate 
expected impacts from the Sierra runoff, which is expected to be as much as 1 million acre-
feet.

CAO – Update on 
State of EMS

CAO Greenberg and HHS Director Marilyn Mann gave an update on the status of emergency 
medical services in the greater Bishop area, noting that a firm, Coast to Coast Public Safety, 
has been identified to provide EMS on an initial short-term basis to ensure no gap in 
coverage when Symons Ambulance ends its services on April 22.

Personnel – HHS 
Deputy Director-Public 
Health & Prevention 
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Orrill to approve the contract 
between the County of Inyo and Stephanie Tanksley for the provision of professional 
services as the Health and Human Services Deputy Director Public Health and Prevention at 
Range 88, Step E, $9,618 per month, effective April 13, 2023; and authorize the County 
Administrator to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion 
carried unanimously.

Recess/Reconvene The Chairperson recessed the meeting for lunch at 11:47 a.m. and reconvened the meeting 
at 12:25 p.m. with all Board members present.

Museum Division 
Overview

Eastern California Museum Director Shawn Lum presented an overview of the County’s 
museum operations, including plans for upcoming grant-funded projects.

Public Comment Chairperson Roeser asked if there was any public comment pending for items not 
calendared on the agenda and there was no one wishing to speak.

Board Member & Staff 
Reports

Assistant Clerk of the Board Ellis announced that yesterday was Office Clerk Hayley Carter’s 
birthday.

CAO Greenberg reported attending a number of internal meetings and noted there is no 
meeting next week and he looks forward to the April 18 meeting in Southeast Inyo.

County Counsel Vallejo wished Ms. Carter a happy birthday.

Supervisor Griffiths wished Ms. Carter a happy birthday; reported that planning has begun at 
Inyo Council for the Arts to recruit a new executive director when the current one retires; said 



Board of Supervisors MINUTES                                                                                                                                  4                                                                                                                                     April 4, 2023      

he attended an IMACA board meeting, a meeting with the City of Bishop and Inyo County 
Veterans Service Officer on veterans housing, and the annual cattlemen’s dinner, and will be 
attending Friday’s meeting of the Mammoth-Inyo Airport Working Group (MIAWG) and next 
week’s California State Association of Counties (CSAC) Legislative Conference in 
Sacramento.

Supervisor Orrill said she will be attending the MIAWG meeting as Inyo County’s appointed 
representative and is getting ready for the CSAC conference, and also wished Ms. Carter a 
happy birthday.

Supervisor Marcellin also wished Ms. Carter a happy birthday and said he is preparing for 
next week’s CSAC conference.

Supervisor Kingsley said he wished Ms. Carter a happy birthday yesterday, and reported 
meeting with constituents, attending the Lone Pine FFA Blue & Gold fundraiser and the 
cattlemen’s dinner.

Ms. Carter thanked everyone for the birthday wishes and announced that April is Autism 
Awareness Month, noting that the Sheriff’s Department has created a special patch in 
recognition of the observance and she hoped the Board could see them soon.

Adjournment The meeting was adjourned at 1:53 p.m. to 11:30 a.m. Tuesday, April 4, 2023, in the County 
Administrative Center in Independence.

                                                                                    Chairperson, Inyo County Board of Supervisors

Attest:   N A T E  G R E E N B E R G
         C l e r k  o f  t h e  B o a r d
              
           
 

 by:       _____________________________________
 Darcy Ellis, Assistant



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

April 18, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3662  

 

Amendment No. 1 to the Contract with TerraVerde 
Energy, LLC 

Public Works 
 ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Breanne Nelums, Senior Management Analyst Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) Approve Amendment No. 1 to the contract between the County of Inyo and TerraVerde Energy, LLC 
of San Francisco, CA to: 
       1) Delete Section 3 (b) i which reads as follows, "actual vs expected avoided electric utility costs". 
       2) Delete Section 3 (b) iii which reads as follows, "actual vs expected savings". 
 B) And authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
On April 26, 2022, your Board approved a contract with TerraVerde, LLC providing asset management 
services for solar photovoltaic systems located at the Jail, Courthouse Annex and the Juvenile 
Hall.  TerraVerde is requesting to amend their contract to remove Section 3 (b) i and Section 3 (b) 
iii.  The need for this amendment is due to the fact that TerraVerde inadvertently used scope language in 
our contract that is specifically for clients they serve inside PG&E's service territory.  County of Inyo, 
being subject to LADWP rates, has a different scope that does not include the same type of information 
as can be found for clients behind an independently owned utility such as PG&E.  This amendment does 
not change any other term or condition and the rest of the contract shall remain unchanged and shall 
continue on in full force and effect. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

General Fund  Budget Unit 011100 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5265 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
There is no current fiscal year impact 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
There is no monetary value associated with this contract amendment. 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to approve this amendment, however, that is not recommended as these 
are reports TerraVerde, LLC. will not be able to provide to Inyo County. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. TerraVerde Energy Amendment No. 1 
  
APPROVALS: 
Breanne Nelums Created/Initiated - 3/22/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/22/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 3/23/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 3/23/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/25/2023 
Michael Errante Approved - 3/26/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 4/12/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

 

  1 

 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO 
ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT 

 
 
This First Amendment (“Amendment”) to Asset Management Services Agreement is entered 
into this  18th day of April 2023 (“Effective Date”), by and between County of Inyo, hereinafter 
referred to as “System Owner” and TerraVerde Energy, LLC hereinafter referred to as “Service 
Provider”, who individually may be referred to as “party” and together as “parties”. 
 
WHEREAS, Service Provider and System Host previously entered into that certain Asset 
Management Services Agreement (“Agreement”) on the 1st  day of April 2022 for the provision 
of certain asset management services for the System Owner’s solar photovoltaic systems; and  
 
WHEREAS, Service Provider wishes to amend Appendix 2 “Scope of Work” to mirror original 
list of contract deliverables for System Owner. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties enter into this Amendment whereby Service Provider agrees to 
provide asset management services to the System Owner under the terms and conditions set forth 
below: 
 

A. Amending Appendix 2 as follows 

1. Delete Section 3 (b) i which reads as follows “actual vs expected avoided electric utility 
costs”. 

2. Delete Section 3 (b) iii which reads as follows “actual vs expected savings” 
 

 
B. Except as amended by this amendment, all other terms and conditions in this Agreement 

shall remain unchanged and shall continue on in full force and effect 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



  

 

  2 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement as of the day and year first 
written above.  
 
 

   SERVICE PROVIDER: TerraVerde Energy, LLC.  
 

Name: Ali Chehrehsaz 
Title: CEO 
 
Service Provider Signature: ______________________________ Date: ____________ 
 
 
SYSTEM OWNER: County of Inyo  
 
Name: __________________________________________ 
 
Title: ___________________________________________ 
 
System Owner Authorized Signature: ____________________________ Date: ___________ 

 



In tlte Rooms of the Board of Saperuisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 26th day of April 2022 an order was duly made and

entered as follows:

Public Works -
TerraVerde
So/e-Source
Contract

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Pucci to: A) declare TerraVerde
Energy, LLC of San Francisco, CA a sole-source provider of asset management services for
solar photovoltaic systems; B) ratify the contract between the Gounty of lnyo and TerraVerde
Energy, LLC of San Francisco, CA for the provision of asset management services for solar
photovoltaic systems in an amount not to exceed $15,531.13 for the period of April 1,2022
through March 31,2025, contingent upon the Board's approval of future budgets; and C)
authorized the Chairperson to sign. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 26th

ooy of4p4l,2-Q2

LESLIE L. CHAPMAN
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

fd*X U't*+',r'tar"

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cA0
Other: Puhlic Works

DATE: May 6,2022
By:



County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIREI)

MEETING: April26,2022

FROM: Justine Kokx

SUBJECT: Sole-Source Contract with TerraVerde Energy, LLC

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board: A) declare TerraVerde Energy, LLC of San Francisco, CA a sole-source provider of asset
management services for solar photovoltaic systems; B) ratify the contract between the County of lnyo and
TerraVerde Energy, LLC of San Francisco, CA for the provision of asset management services for solar
photovoltaic systems in an amount not to exceed $15,531 .13 for the period of April 1 ,2022 through March 31,
2025, contingent upon the Board's approvalof future budgets; and C) authorize the Chairperson to sign,
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SUMMARY/JUSTIFICATION :

ln 2013, lnyo County utilized Terrra Verde's services to install solar arrays at the Jail, Juvenile Hall, and at the
lndependence Annex building parking lot. TerraVerde performed project design, project management, and
created a facility operations plan for the solar arrays. TerraVerde has been the provider of energy and
performance optimization services since the installation of the solar arrays and subsequently has intricate
knowledge of the systems and maintenance protocols, ensuring the warranty remains intact and valid. As
systems get older, the importance of consistent performance analysis and monitoring increases. TerraVerde
integrates its proprietary SolarShadow platform with the utility, solar, and battery data systems, giving them real-
time insight into the energy and financial performance of solar & battery assets. Access to real{ime performance
data is invaluable for gauging the overall health of the system.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
TerraVerde has been the provider of energy and performance optimization services since the installation of the
solar arrays. They have intricate knowledge of the solar array systems and maintenance protocols to ensure
contin ued warranty coverage.

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to approve the contract. This is not advisable. TerraVerde's longterm knowledge
of the systems ensures a cost effective, consistent and practical means to ensure the solar systems continue to
be well maintained.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
lnyo County Public Works



Agenda Request=
Page2 1

County Counsel
lnyo County Auditor
Risk Management

FINANGING:
This contract will be budgeted in the Building, Maintenance & Grounds Budget, 011100; Professional Services,
object code 5265.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. TerraVerde Quarterly Report 2021-2022Q2
2. Asset Management Service Agreement April2022
3. Attachment B lnsurance Requirements

APPROVALS:
Justine Kokx
Michael Errante
Breanne Nelums
Darcy Ellis
Aaron Holmberg
John Vallejo
Amy Shepherd

Created/lnitiated - 41 1 412022
Approved - 411512022
Approved - 411812022
Approved - 411812022
Approved - 411912022
Approved - 411912022
Final Approval - 41 1912022



TerraVerde QUARTERLY ASSET MANAGEMENT REPORT

Q2 202L-2022ENERGY

SITE SUMMARY

l. Solar Sites

Site Name Operational Year PV Size (kW-DC) Ownership lnstaller

Adult Jail 20L3 238.0 Countv Owned Tesla

Courthouse Annex 20L3 101.5 County Owned Tesla

Juvenlle Hall 20t3 91.0 County Owned Tesla

TOTAL 430.5

DELIVERED

1sr QUARTER: Juw 2O2t - SeprrMern 202L DEcEMBER 70,2O2t
2*O QUARTER: JULY 2O2L - DECEMBER 2021 FEBRUARY 3,2022
3*O QUARTER:JULY 2021_ MARCH 2022

ANNUAL REPORT: Jvtv 2027- Jurur 2022

Qunnrenlv aruo ANNUAL REpoRTs ARE coMprLED FotrowtNG REcErpr AND REVTEw oF

COMPTETE PRODUCTION DATA.

PREPARED Fon: lnyo County

PRESENTED Bv: TerraVerde Energy, LLC

1of5



1. INTRoDUcTIoN

This report is prepared to present a performance review of the Photovoltaic (PV) systems from July 2021 through
December 2021. lndividual site production can be found in Section 4. A guide to understanding the data in this report
can be found in Section 5.

An analysis of the PV system production shows that over this period, the County's PV systems produced 95% of what
would be expected in a typical, weather adjusted year. Underperformance this period was due to the system issues

described in the Corrective Maintenance section. Those issues have since been resolved.

lnyo County Total

Solar Energy Production Relative to Expectations 96%

90,000
to3% 86%

80,000

104%
70,000 rc4%

100%
60,000

50,000

40,000

30,000

20,000

10,000

97%

E

=-:z

0

Jul Aug

r Typical Year Expectation

Sep Oct

I Weather Adjusted Expectation

Nov

I Actual Production

Dec

2of5



12/8/2O2L 1,/2t/2022 44

72/2s/202t r/7/2022 13

Asset Name

lnyo County
Juvenile Hall PV

System

lnyo County
Courthouse
Annex PV System

Subject

System stopped
reporting data on
the monitoring
platform. Cannot
confirm system

operation.

System stopped
producing power

Date

t2/2/2021

1r/17/202L

11./70/2021.

]-L/8/2021

1./27/2022

1./Is/2022

tl12/2022

tl5/2022

t2hs/2027

L2/13/202L

72/s/2O2t

1./12/2022

t/s/2022

tl5/2022

Siatus

Tesla visited site on L1/23 and replaced the
gateway. System resumed normal data
communication.

Tesla indicated that they have a site visit
planned for \U23.
Discussed issue with Tesla on the phone

and confirmed they opened a case for
trou bleshooting.

lnformed the district personnel and

requested them to visit the site to check

the status of the inverter and power cycle

it before we reach out to Tesla for further
troubleshooting.
Tesla visited the site on I/21and found a

tripped breaker in the switchgear. Breaker

was reset and production resumed.

Tesla confirmed again that site visit is

planned for L/21.
Tesla site visit was rescheduled to L/2t.lt
is possible to resources can be pulled in to
make the visit sooner.

Tesla confirmed they have a site visit
scheduled for t/7.
Discussed case with Tesla on the phone

and confirmed that they have a case open
to troubleshoot.
Called Chris Cox to follow up on this case.

He said that he will have someone visit the
site today to perform the initial
trou bleshooting.
lnformed the district personnel and

requested them to visit the site to check

the status ofthe inverters and power-cycle

them if necessary.

Tesla visited site on 1/7 and found a

breaker to the AC disconnect was tripped.
Full production was restored.

Tesla confirmed they have a site visit
scheduled lor I/7.
lnformed Tesla and requested them to
troubleshoot this issue.

lnyo County Jail

PV System

Meter [19255]
58691 stopped
producing power

3. NrlaSrrps

TerraVerde will continue monitoring the systems on a daily basis. The next report will include data from the first three
quarters ofthe 2021-2022 fiscal year.

2. ConnrcrvrMAINTENANGE

Start Date

10/24/202r

End Date

ru23/2O2L

Length

30

3of5



4. Sre SpTCITIC PERFORMANCE

50,000

45,000

40,000

35,000

30,000

_c

= 
2s,000

J

20,000

15,000

10,000

s,000

0

99%

Jul Aug

r Typical Year Expectation

Jul Aug

r Typical Year Expectation

96%

100%

Sep Oct

Weather Adjusted Expectation

Sep Oci

Weather Adjusted Expectation

ADULT JAIL

Solar Energy Production Relative to Expectations9TYo

99% 94%

1.00%

96%

ll
81%

CouRTHousE ANNEx

Solar Energy Production Relative to Expectations l-05%

L13% 9r%

tLs%
1.14%

1.11.%

1.1.6%

Nov

I Actual Production

Nov

r Actual Production

Dec

T

-c

=

20,000

15,000

10,000

s,000

t07%

ll0

4of5

Dec



JUvENILE HALL

Solar Energy Production Relative to Expectations 87%

103% 64%

1A4%

20,000

L8,000

16,000

L4,000

12,000

-c

= 
10,000

v

8,000

6,000

4,000

2,000

0

L04%

Jul Aug

I Typical Year Expectation

99%

Sep Oct

r Weather Adjusted Expectation

2o/o

Nov

I Actual Production

%

Dec

5. How To READ THIS REPORT

This section serves as a guide to understanding each of the performance measurements we provide

Tvpical Year vs. Actual PV Production - This table compares Typical Year PV Production with Actual PV Production. The

Typical Year PV Production is based on the specific PV system configuration and TMY data (Typical Meteorological Year).

The Actual PV Production is what was recorded in the remote monitoring systems. This comparison can help to see how

wellthe systems are performing relative to a typical year. These numbers should be about L00%. Numbers over 100%

indicate that the system is performing better than expected for a typical year.

Weather Adiu PV Production - This measurement takes the irradiance measured by the nearest weather station and

converts it into a predicted power calculation. This helps to normalize the data such that accurate assessments of the
system can be made during months with abnormally high or low amounts of sunlight.

Graphs displaying production data are based on calendar month start and end dates.

5of5



TerraVerde
ENERGY

ASSET MANAGEMENT SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Asset Management Services Agreement ("Agreement") is entered into as of this lst day of
April2022 (the "Effective Date"), by and between County of Inyo, hereinafter referred to as

("System Owner") and TerraVerde Energy'LLC, hereinafter referred to as ("Service
Provider").

WHEREAS, Service Provider is in the business of providing asset management services for solar
photovoltaic systems;

WHEREAS, System Owner desires to retain the Service Provider to provide the asset

management services described herein for System Owner's Solar Photovoltaic Systems
('oSystem"), located at the site(s) described in Appendix l.

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties enter into this Asset Management Agreement under the terms
and conditions set forth below:

1. Term and Pavment

This Agreement takes effect on the Effective Date and will continue in effect for three (3) years,

with the System Owner option to opt out annually. For the services provided by Service Provider
under this Agreement, System Owner agrees to pay Service Provider an annual sum of $5,000
(the "Annual Fee"), which shall increase annually by 3.5%.

Service Provider shall invoice System Owner in the amount of the Annual Fee on or about the
Effective Date and each anniversary thereof. Payment to Service Provider is due net 30 days

from receipt of invoice.

Service Provider may also bill System Owner (at cost) for reasonably incurred expenses

including but not limited to legal services (third party NDA's, MNDA's, or other forms of
confidentiality agreements, etc.), travel expenses, etc.

2. Scope of Work

System Provider shall provide the services described in Appendix 2 (the "Scope of Work"). The
System Owner shall perform the responsibilities described in Appendix 3 (the "system Owner
Responsibilities").

3. Third Partv Providers

Service Provider may engage third party resource providers ("third party providers") as it deems

advisable for the purpose of performing or carrying out any of its obligations under this
Agreement. No such engagement shall relieve Service Provider of any of its obligations or

IAsset Management Services Agreement



Terraverde
ENERGY

liabilities under this Agreement. The use of any third-party provider shall not result in an

increase in the Annual Fee, unless the services provided exceed the Scope of Work and the
System Owner agrees to reimburse Service Provider for charges prior to any charges being
incurred.

4. Additional Services

System Owner may request services from Service Provider not included in the Scope of Work by
submitting to Service Provider a Work Order Request Form in substantially the form of
Appendix 4. If Service Provider agrees to perform such services, it shall respond to the Work
Order Request Form in writing. Charges for any additional work requested by System Owner
and not specified in the Scope of Work will be invoiced to System Owner by Service Provider at

$150.00 per hour.

5. Use of Data

System Owner is the owner of all system performance data produced by the System's data

acquisition system. As part of the services performed hereunder, Service Provider shall collect
and analyze such data on behalf of System Owner.

6. Intellectual Pronertv

Any code or software used by Service Provider and deemed to be proprietary by Service
Provider as part of delivering services under this Agreement shall remain the sole exclusive
property of Service Provider.

7. Limitation of Liabilitv

The liability of each party arising out of or related to the terms of this agreement shall be limited
to direct, actual damages only and all other damages and remedies are waived. In no event shall
either party be liable to the other party for consequential, special, incidental, punitive, exemplary
or indirect damages, lost profits or business interruption damages, whether by statute, in tort,
contract or otherwise.

Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, System Owner acknowledges and agrees that,
except in case of Service Provider's gross negligence or willful misconduct, Service Provider's
total liability for any claims made hereunder shall not exceed the amount of the Annual Fees paid

by System Owner to TerraVerde; provided, however, that this sentence shall not apply to any

damages or liabilities (including death or bodily injury or damage to real or tangible personal
property) to the extent covered by TerraVerde's insurance.

8. Force Maieure

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, each party's obligations under this
Agreement shall be suspended by any Force Majeure if and to the extent that such party is

2Asset Management Services Agreement



TerraVerde
ENERGY

prevented or delayed from performing by reason of the Force Majeure; provided, however, that
(a) the suspension of performance shall be of no greater scope and of no longer duration than is
necessarily caused by the Force Majeure and required by any remedial measures, (b) no

obligations ofany party that arose before the occurrence ofsuch causes shall be excused as the

result of the occurrence, and (c) each party shall use commercially reasonable efforts to remedy
its inability to perform; and provided, further, that no Force Majeure shall excuse any payment

obligations of any party otherwise due hereunder. Each party shall notiff the other as to the

occuffence and resolution of any force majeure event.

"Force Majeure" means any occuffence that was not anticipated as of the Effective Date that:
(a) in whole or in part: (i) delays a party's performance under this Agreement; (ii) causes a

party to be unable to perform its obligations; or (iii) prevents aparty from complying with or
satisfuing the conditions of this Agreement; (b) is not within the control of that party; and (c)
the party has been unable to overcome by the exercise of due diligence. "Force Majeure"
includes an act of God, flood, drought, earthquake, storm, fire, pestilence, lightning and other
natural catastrophes, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance or disobedience, terrorism, sabotage,

strike or labor dispute, or actions or inactions of any governmental authority.

9. Limited Warrantv

Service Provider warrants that services provided pursuant to this Agreement shall be performed
in a reasonable and workmanlike manner. Service Provider further warrants that any services
provided hereunder shall be performed in accordance with prudent industry practices, all
applicable laws and regulations, specifications and processes recommended by the equipment
manufacturers. Service Provider shall not take any actions that would void or impair any other
warranty covering the System.

WARRANTY DISCLAIMER. THERE ARE NO WARRANTIES TFIAT EXTEND
BEYOND THE DESCRIPTION OF THE SERVICES PROVIDED ON THE FACE OF THIS
AGREEMENT. SERVICE PROVIDER DISCLAIMS ANY AND ALL WARRANTIES OF
ANY OTHER KIND, INCLUDTNG ANY EXPRESS WARRANTY AND ANY WARRANTY
OF MERCHANTANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. WITHOUT
LIMITATION OF THE FOREGOING, SYSTEM PROVIDER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMES
ANY IMPLIED OR EXPRESS WARRANTY AS TO ANY PARTICULAR LEVEL OF
SYSTEM PRODUCTION OR FINANCIAL BENEFIT TO SYSTEM OWNER.

10. Indemnification

Subject to the other terms and limitations in this Agreement, Service Provider shall defend,
indemnifu and hold harmless System Owner and its Governing Board, members of its Governing
Board, directors, officers, agents, employees, successors and assigns (collectively, the "System
Owner Indemnified Persons") from and against any personal injury or property damage losses

incurred by any System Owner Indemnified Person as a result of, arising out of, relating to, or in
the nature of injury or death to any person, or loss of or damage to, or loss of use of property of
third parties, to the extent caused by the gross negligence or willful misconduct of Service

3Asset Management Services Agreement



TerraVerde
ENERGY

Provider, except to the extent that such damage or loss was caused by the negligence or willful
misconduct of any of the System Owner Indemnified Parties. It is a condition to TerraVerde's
obligations under this Section 10 that System Owner provide timely notice of any third-party
claim with respect to which TenaVerde may have liability under this Section 10. TerraVerde
shall have the right to assume control of the defense of any such third-party claims. TerraVerde
shall have the right to settle or compromise any such claims provided that TerraVerde has

received System Owner's written consent, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld or
delayed. If TerraVerde has assumed such defense, System Owner may participate in such
defense at its sole cost and expense, and TerraVerde shall not be obligated to pay for the legal
fees of any counsel other than its own, unless representation of Client and TerraVerde by the

same counsel would, in the opinion of that counsel, constitute a conflict of interest.

11. Insurance

Service Provider shall obtain and maintain in force during the term of this Agreement
comprehensive general liability insurance against all claims of bodily injury, death, or property
damage with coverage at least equivalent to a combined single limit of $1,000,000 each

occurrence and $2,000,000 aggregate; and automobile liability insurance, if applicable, with
coverage at least equivalent to $1,000,000 each accident, $1,000,000 each occurrence.

12. Termination

Either party may terminate this Agreement due to the other party's material breach of this
Agreement or material failure to perform any obligation set forth herein. The party seeking to
terminate this Agreement due to the other party's breach of this Agreement shall give the

breaching party written notice of intent to terminate, and the breaching party shall have twenty
(20) days from the date of the notice to cure such breach and, if the breach is not cured within
such time, the Agreement shall terminate on the date specified in the notice of termination.

13. Governins Law

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY AND CONSTRUED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE SUBSTANTIVE LAW OF THE STATE CALIFORNIA
WITHOUT REFERENCE TO CONFLICT OF LAW RULES THEREOF. Any action to
enforce the terms of this Agreement shall be brought in the appropriate court having
jurisdiction over matters arising in San Francisco County, California.

14. Waiver. Severability

Any failure on the part of a party to insist upon the performance of this Agreement or any part
thereof shall not constitute a waiver of any right under this Agreement. No waiver of any
provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless in writing and executed by the party
waiving the right. If any provision of this Agreement or the application thereof to any person or
circumstance shall, for any reason or to any extent, be invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of
this Agreement and the application of such provision to other persons or circumstances shall not

4Asset Management Services Agreement



Terraverde
ENERGY

be affected thereby, but rather shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

15. Notices

Any notice required or permitted to be given in writing under this Agreement shall be mailed by
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or sent by ovemight air courier service,
or personally delivered to a representative of the receiving party, or sent by email or facsimile
(provided an identical notice is also sent simultaneously by mail, overnight courier, or personal
delivery as otherwise provided in this Section. All such communications shall be mailed, sent or
delivered, addressed to the party for whom it is intended, at its address set forth below:

If to System Owner:
County of Inyo California
168 N. Edwards Street
Independence, CA 93526

Attn: Michael Errante
Email : merrante@inyocounty. us

If to Service Provider:
TerraVerde Energy, LLC
130022nd Street, Unit 401

San Francisco, CA 94107

Attn: Asset Management
ams @terraverde. energy

16. Bindine Effect, Assignment
This Agreement and its rights, privileges, duties and obligations shall inure to the benefit of and

be binding upon each of the parties hereto, together with their respective successors and
permitted assigns. Neither party shall have the right to assign any of its rights, duties or
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party, which
consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed; provided however, that both parties shall
have the right to assign or otherwise transfer this Agreement to any parent, subsidiary, affiliated
entity or pursuant to any merger, consolidation or reorganization, provided that all such

assignees and transferees agree in writing to be bound by the terms of this Agreement prior to
such assignment or transfer.

17. EntireAgreement.Counterparts

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties conceming the subject matter
hereof and supersedes all prior written or oral agreements between said parties with respect to
said subject matter. No modification to the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be

binding on the parties unless approved by a signed writing by the parties hereto. In the event of a
conflict between this Agreement and any other writing between the parties, the terms and

conditions of this Agreement shall control. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts,
each of which shall be an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same

agreement.

!Asset Management Services Agreement



Terra\&rde
ENERGY

IN WITNASS WHEREOtr', the parties have executed this Agreement as ofthe day and year
first written above.

SERVICE PROVIDER: TerraVerde Energy, LLC.

Name: Ali Chehrehsaz
T'itle: President

Service Provider Signature: W [Xfg; Apr?6,2022

SYSTEM OWNER: Inyo County CA

Name: Dan Totheroh
Title: Inyo
Signature:

Name:
Title: County
Slgnature:

Name: Ch

Board of

rtindale

Date: 0412712022

a,{ftVr ct-"

Title: County
Signature:

Name: Aaron Holmberg

Title:Counfy

Date:

Date: 0412712022

Date: 4127122WW,,Signature (./"* - - .-+

6Asset Management Services Agreement



TerraVerde
ENERGY

Anpendix L

System Owner's Solar Photovoltaic Systems ('oSystem")

430.5

7

Adult Jail 238.O 20L3
Courthouse Annex 101.5 20L3

Juvenile Hall 91.O 20L3

Asset Management Services A,greement



Terraverde
ENERGY

Appendix 2
Scope of Work

1 Energy & Provider Performance Optimization
a. Monitor System Performance: comparative analysis of actual vs. expected

performance, ensure early detection & appropriate response to system issues

b. Issue Management: manage and enforce warranty claims, maintenance
obligations, and performance guarantees

c. Create & Maintain a Facility Operation Plan: a data room with current, relevant,
source of truth documentation for these energy systems including contracts,

contacts, drawings, and utility authorizations
d. Oversee & Manage Maintenance Protocols: managing providers' completion of

warranty and corrective maintenance work, address directly if not under warranty
(on a time and materials basis and subject to written approval of work by System

Owner)
e. Coordination of Annual Preventive Maintenance & System Inspections.

TerraVerde will manage O&M solicitations and provide feedback and

recommendations on findings. Payment for preventive maintenance and panel

washing will be the responsibility of the county.

2. Optional Renewable Energy Certificate Management
a. Coordinate the establishment of Agency Reporting services with the appropriate

Performance Monitoring Service Provider(s)
b. Register each of the systems as Generating Units on the WREGIS platform
c. Negotiate price & terms for the sale of the Renewable Energy Certificates
d. Include reporting of sale revenues in the annual financial analysis (item 3.b in this

scope of work)

3. Detailed Energy Performance Analysis & Financial Reporting
a. Quarterly analysis & reporting of

i. Actual vs. weather adjusted solar energy production
ii. Actual vs. expected energy usage
iii. Issues and actions throughout the portfolio

b. Annual analysis & reporting of
i. Actual vs. expected avoided electric utility costs
ii. Actual vs. expected expenses
iii. Actual vs. expected savings
iv. Actual vs. weather adjusted solar energy production
v. Actual vs. expected energy usage
vi. Issues and actions throughout the portfolio

8Asset Management Services Agreement



Terraverde
ENERGY

Anpendix 3

System Owner Responsibilities

1. Actively manage electricity usage at System Owner's facilities
2. Provide Service Provider with access to:

a. Performance Monitoring System and historical production records

b. Information related to the System(s) including contracts, drawings, warranties,
maintenance contracts, performance monitoring platforms, historical system
performance data, and historical utility usage and billing data as applicable.

c. Utility bills and data

3. Allow Service Provider and its third-party providers, agents and employees with
reasonable access to the System(s) during reasonable times and without prior notice as

required for the performance of Service Provider's Scope of Work under this Agreement

4. Supervise Service Provider and its third-party providers, agents and employees while
services are performed at System Owner's site(s)

5. Review and respond to Service Provider maintenance recommendations including PV
module washing, vegetation trimming, soil stabilization, non-wananty equipment and

labor costs, and other costs
6. Facilitate emergency inverter reading & power cycling, as necessary

9Asset Management Services Agreement



TerraVerde

FROM

ENERGY

[Name]
fCompany Name]

[Street Address]

lcity, ST ZIP Codel
IPhone]

Appendix 4

Work Order Request Form

TNVOICE # TERMS
FOR BILL

The following number must appear
on all related correspondenceo
shipping papers, and invoices:

W.O. NUMBER: l####l

DATE

STATUS

lCritical fNon-Critical

DESCRIPTION

!critical
Ecritical

Icritical
lcritical lNon-Critical

SEND ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO:

ASSET MANAGEMENT
TERRAVERDE ENERGY, LLC

AS SETMANAGEMENT@TERRAVERDE. ENERGY
I3OO 22ND STREET, UNIT 4OI
SAN FRANCISCO, CA94IO7
PHONE 206.696.9607

HOURS RATE AMOUNT

Subtotal

Sales Tax

Other

TOTAL

AUTHORIZED BY DATE

REQUESTED
BY

Asset Management Services Agreement t0



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Contractor shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Contractor, its agents, representatives, or
employees.

MINIMUM SCOPEAND TIMIT OF INSURANCE
Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

Commercial General tiability [CGL): Insurance Services Office Form CG 00 01 covering CGL

on an "occurrence" basis, including products and completed operations, property damage,
bodily injury and personal & advertising injury with limits no less than $1,000,000 per
occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate.

Additional Insured Status. Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers
are to be covered as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of
work or operations performed by or on behalf of the Vendor including materials, parts, or
equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability coverage
can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Contractor's insurance (at least as broad
as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10, CG 20 26, CG 20 33, or CG 20 38; and CG 20 37
forms if later revisions used).

Automobile Liability: Insurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 [any
auto), or if Contractor has no owned autos, Code B [hired) and 9 [non-owned), with limit no
less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

Workers' Compensation: as required by the State of California, with Statutory Limits, and
Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for bodily
injury or disease. May be waived with signed letter on contractor's letterhead certifying that
contractor has no employees.

Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions): appropriate to the Contractor's profession,
with limit no less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim, $2,000,000 aggregate.

Cyber Liability Insurance, with limits not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence or claim,
$2,000,000 aggregate. Cyber liability requirement may be waived if contractor will not be
receiving/storing/transmitting personally identifiable information [PII) or personal medical
information [PMI). Coverage shall be sufficiently broad to respond to the duties and obligations
as is undertaken by contractor in this agreement and shall include, but not be limited to, claims
involving infringement of intellectual property, including but not limited to infringement of
copyright, trademark, trade dress, invasion of privacy violations, information theft, damage to
or destruction of electronic information, release of private information, alteration of electronic
information, extortion and network security. The policy shall provide coverage for breach
response costs as well as regulatory fines and penalties as well as credit monitoring expenses
with limits sufficient to respond to these obligations.

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage andfor higher limits than the minimums shown
above, Inyo County requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage andf or the higher

County of lnyo Insurance Standards- No. l-
Professional Services

Page



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

limits maintained by the contractor. Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified
minimum limits of insurance and coverage shall be available to Inyo County.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS
The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance primary coverage at least as broad as ISO CG 20 01, 0413 as respects Inyo County, its
officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by
Inyo County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Contractor's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be canceled, except
with notice to Inyo County.

Waiver of Subrogation
Contractor hereby grants to Inyo County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer
of said Contractor may acquire against Inyo County by virtue of the payment of any loss under
such insurance. Contractor agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect
this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not Inyo County
has received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Self-Insured Retentions
Self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by Inyo County. Inyo County may
require the Contractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related investigations, claim
administration, and defense expenses within the retention. The policy language shall provide,
or be endorsed to provide, that the self-insured retention may be satisfied by either the named
insured or Inyo County.

Acceptability of Insurers
Insurance is to be placed with insurers authorized to conduct business in the state with a

current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, unless otherwise acceptable to Inyo County.

Claims Made Policies
If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:
7. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract or the

beginning of contract work.
2. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at least five

[5) years after completion of the contract of work.
3. If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made policy

form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, the Contractor must
purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of five [5) years after completion of
contract work.

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1
Professional Services

Page



Attachment B: Insurance Requirements for Professional Services

Verifi cation of Coverage
Contractor shall furnish Inyo County with original Certificates of Insurance including all
required amendatory endorsements (or copies of the applicable policy language effecting
coverage required by this clause) and a copy ofthe Declarations and Endorsement Page ofthe
CGL policy listing all policy endorsements to Inyo County before work begins. However, failure
to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Contractor's
obligation to provide them. Inyo County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies
of all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at
any time.

Subcontractors
Contractor shall require and veriff that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein, and Contractor shall ensure that Inyo County is an additional
insured on insurance required from subcontractors.

Special Risks or Circumstances
Inyo County reserves the right to modiff these requirements, including limits, based on the
nature ofthe risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances.

-end-

County of lnyo lnsurance Standards- No. 1

Professional Services

Page



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

April 18, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3688  

 

Amendment No. 4 to MGE Engineering, Inc. Contract 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Ratify and approve Amendment No. 4 to the contract between the County of Inyo and MGE Engineering 
Inc of Sacramento, CA, extending the term end date from June 30, 2021 to December 31, 2023, 
contingent upon approval of the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, 
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
This consultant service contract covers the engineering design, environmental review and certain 
construction phase services for the North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project.  The 
construction phase services include responding to Requests for Information from contractors, assisting 
with contract change orders, and reviewing submittals. The construction contract for this project was 
awarded to Spiess Construction on January 5, 2021, and work began at the end of June 2021. This 
contract term extension will allow MGE to complete their scope of work during construction. 
 
7/10/2018        Design contract awarded 
8/20/2019        Amendment 1 - Modifying the Schedule of Fees 
10/7/2020        Amendment 2 - Modifying the Schedule of Fees 
8/3/2021          Amendment 3 - Modifying the end date from June 30, 2021 to December 31, 2022 
4/18/2023        Amendment 4 - Modifying the end date from December 31, 2022 to December 31, 2023 
(proposed contract extension) 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Non-General Fund  Budget Unit 034600 

Budgeted? Yes  Object Code 5717 
Recurrence Ongoing Expenditure - through contract completion  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
No Fiscal impact, Time Extension Only 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
Your Board could choose not to extend the term of this contract, however this is not recommended, as 
the project is not complete. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. MGE Engineering Inc. Contract Amendment No. 4 
2. MGE Engineering Inc. Contract Amendment No. 3  
3. MGE Engineering Inc. Contract Amendment No. 2  
4. MGE Engineering Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1 
5. MGE Engineering Inc. Contract 
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 3/29/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/31/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 3/31/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/31/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 4/12/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 4 

Page 1 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    4   TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   MGE ENGINEERINGINC   
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES 

 
WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as “County”) and     MGE Engineering of     

Sacramento, CA      (hereinafter referred to as “Consultant”), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of 
engineering services dated    July 10, 2018    , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the term from    
July 10, 2018    to    June 30, 2021. 
 

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or 
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and 
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain 
continuity. 
 

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below. 
  

1. The term of the Agreement is extended to December 31, 2023. 
 
The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is     August 3, 2021     . 
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same. 



County of Inyo Standard Contract – No. 156 with MGE 
Amendment 4 

Page 2 
 

AMENDMENT NUMBER    4   TO 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND 

   MGE ENGINEERINGINC   
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES 

 
 
 IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS  
            DAY OF                                  , 2023. 
 
 
COUNTY OF INYO     CONSULTANT 
 
 
By:        By:        
 
Dated:        Dated:        
 
        
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND    
     LEGALITY:  
 
 
       
County Counsel 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING 
     FORM: 
 
 
       
County Auditor 
 
  
  
 

03/28/2023



In the Rooms of the Board of Supetwisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 3'd day of August 2021 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works- MGE
Engineering
Contract
Amendment 3

Moved by Supervisor Totheroh and seconded by Supervisor Roeser to ratify and approve
Amendment No. 3 to the contract between the County of lnyo and MGE Engineering, lnc. of
Sacramento, CA, extending the term end date from June 30, 2021 to December 31,2022, and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.
Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor Pucci absent.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 3'u

Day 202 I

LESLIE CHAPMAN
Clerk qf the Board of Supervisors

fd*X UAA+',,'A-*

Routing

Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
cAo
Other: Public Works
DATE: August9,2021

By:



County of Inyo

Public Works

DEPARTMENTAL . ACTION REQUIRET)

MEETING: August 3,2021

FROM: Ashley Helms

SUBJECT: Amendment 3 to the Contract with MGE Engineering

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board ratifo and approve Amendment No. 3 to the contract between the County of lnyo and MGE
Engineering lnc of Sacramento, CA, extending the term end date from June 30, 2021 to December 31,2022, and
authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/JUSTI FICATION :

This consultant service contract covers the engineering design, environmental review and certain construction
phase services for the North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement Project. The construction phase services
include responding to Requests for lnformation from contractors, assisting with contract change orders, and reviewing
submittals. The construction contract for this project was awarded to Spiess Construction on January 5,2021, and
work began at the end of June. This contract term extension will allow MGE to complete their scope of work during
construction.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
711012018 Design contract awarded
812012019 Amendment 1 - Modifying the Schedule of Fees
101712020 Amendment 2 - Modifoing the Schedule of Fees

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
Your Board could choose not to extend the term of this contract, this is not recommended, as the project is not
complete.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
California Office of Emergency Services

FINANGING:
Costs associated with this contract are paid from Budget 034600 (Road), Object Code 5717 (North Round Valley
Road). This project is funded at75o/o by the California Department of Emergency Services (CalOES) via
reimbursement.



Agenda Request
Page 2

ATTAGHMENTS:
1. MGE Contract Amendment 3
2. MGE Contract Amendment 2
3. MGE Contract Amendment 1

4. MGE Executed Contract

APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms
Darcy Ellis
Marshall Rudolph
Amy Shepherd
Michael Errante

Created/lnitiated - 7 12012021
Approved - 712012021
Approved -712012021
Approved -712012021
Final Approval - 712112021



AMENDMENT NUMBER 3 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

MGE ENGINEERING INC
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

WHEREASI the County of Inyo (hereinafter refened to as "County") and MGE Engineering of
Sacr+r3ento" CA (heleinafter rcferred to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of
engineering services dated July 1 0. 20 1 8 , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 1 56, fbr the term from
Julv 10. 2018 to .lrrne 2021.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be rnodified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forlh below.

l. The term of the Agreement is extended to December 31,2022.

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is Aueust 3. 2021

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County of Irryo Standard Contract - No. 156 wilh MCE
Amendmcnt 3

Page I



AMENDMENT NUMBER I- TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

MGE ENGINEERING INC.
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

4 " IN WITNESS TI.IDREOII. TI.IE PARTIES I-IERETO IIAVE SET TFIEIR I.IANDS AND SEALS TI'IIS
+d DAY oF Ailrlrsf .zo2t.

J-
couNTY oF TNYO CONSULTANT

By:

Dated:
,l_(c

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

ffn*n tr-^d^f^
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTINC
FORM:

P,/",,;lr;-
County Auditor

County of lnyo Slandard Contract - No. 156 with MCE
Amcndnent 3

Page 2



In the Rooms of tlte Board of Supewisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on Ihe 7'h day of January 2020 an order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works-
MGE Engineering
Contract
Amendment 2

Moved by Supervisor Griffiths and seconded by Supervisor Totheroh to approve Amendment
No. 2 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and MGE Engineering lnc. of Sacramento,
CA, amending the approved Schedule of Fees, and authorize the Chairperson to sign,
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 7th

Day of JANUARY, 2020

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor
CAO:

Other: PublicWorks
DATE: January 10,2020

By:
&Ab,L-



*t6

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT - ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: January 7,2020

FROM

SUBJECT:

Amendment 2 to the Contract with MGE Engineering lnc for engineering services related to the Round Valley
Bridge Replacement Project

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 2 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and MGE Engineering
lnc. of Sacramento, CA, amending the approved Schedule of Fees, and authorize the Chairperson to sign,
contingent upon all appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/J USTI FICATION :

Your Board approved the design contract with MGE Engineering lnc. on July 10, 2018,for the completion of the
North Round Valley Bridge Replacement Project design.

Recent staffing changes at MGE have made it necessary to modify the Schedule of Fees. ln order to make these
adjustments and future minor modifications, this amendment gives authority to the Director of Public Works to
change the approved job classification list in Attachment B to the contract, so long as the changes are not
associated with an increase to the contract Not-to-Exceed amount. No changes will be made to the key
personnel for the project.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD AGTIONS:
Contract between MGE Engineering lnc and lnyo County approved on July 10,2018

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the amendment to the contract, this is not recommended since this is a
no cost change order

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Project partially funded by California Office of Emergency Services

FINANCING:
The cost of the contract are paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5265 (Professional
Services). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75o/o by the California Office of Emergency Services. There



Agenda Request
Page2

are no costs associated with this amendment.

ATTAGHMENTS:
1. Amendment 2 for MGE
2. Amendment 1 for MGE
3, MGE Contract

APPROVALS:
Ashley Helms
Darcy Ellis
Michael Errante
MarshallRudolph
Amy Shepherd
Michael Errante

Created/l nitiated - 1 21 1 I 1201 I
Approved - 1211912019
Approved - 1212012019
Approved - 1212012019
Approved - 1212012019
Final Approval - 1212012019



AMENDMENT NUMBER 2 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

MGE ENGINEERING INC
F'OR THE PROVISION OF'ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and MGE Engineering of
Sacramento. CA (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of
engineering services dated July 10" 2018 , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, for the term from
July 10.2018 to June 30- 2021.

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in wriffen form, and
executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below.

1. AttachmentBtotheContract, ScheduleofFee's isamendedasdescribedinAttachmentB-ZtotheContract.

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is Januarv 7 ),O),O

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment 2

Page I



I r[+h

AGREEM"fi Hili#""il$ ilHl'38t*+ 5$,*"o AND
MGE ENGINEERING INC

F'OR THE PROVISION OF'ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

IN WITNESS , THE PARTIES I{ERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF 2020.

COIINTY OF IIYYO CONSULTANT

By

Dated: 7o Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

/

By

&n-,
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOI]NTING

County Auditor

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment 2

Page2



By

AGREEM"*|'3il?#fril$ ilH$'33il*+ 5$,*'o o * o
MGE E].\GINEERING INC

FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DBSIGN SER.VICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF 2020

COUNTY OF INYO CONSULTANT

By

Dated: Dated:

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LECALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING
FORM:

County Auditor

County of lnyo Standard Contract * No. 156 with MCE
Amendment 2

Page2



ATTACHMENT B-2

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND
MGE ENGINEERING INC

X'OR THE PROVISION OF'ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

TERM:

f,'ROM: Julv 10.2018 TO: June30.202l

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Attachment B: Schedule of Fees is herein amended to allow the Director of Public Works to add to or modifu the
approved job classification list as necessary to account for personnel changes at MGE. The Director of Public
Works may only approve changes to the Schedule of Fees that are not associated with an increase to the contract
Not-to-Exceed amount.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment 2

Page 3



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF'INYO AND

MGE ENGINEERING INC
F'OR THE PROVISION OF'ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

WHERtrAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and MOE Engin-eerine of
Sacrarnento. CA (hereinafter refened to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of
engineering services dated JubLJ0.20 !-8-, on County of Inyo Standard Contract No. 156, lor the term from
July 10. ?018 to June 3Q,202!

WHEREAS, such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mulual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and

executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity,

WHEREAS, County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below.

L section 3D, Lirnit upon amount nayable undelll8lec$gul!, the first sentence is revised as follows;

The total sum of all payments made by the County to Contractor for services and work performed under
this Agreement shall not exceed S453.288.81 (initial term) $ N/A .(option l) and $ IVA (option 2) for a

total of $$53.288.8 t-.(four hundred fifty three thousand,lwo hlr:rdred eighry eight dollars flrd eighty ors
cents), hereinafter ref'erred to as "Contract Limit"

2. Attachment A to the Contract, Seope af Woyk, shall be revised to include additional tasks required for the
completion of the environmental review of the Round Valley Bridge Replacement Project under the

California Environmental Quality Act, as described in Attachmcnt A-1 to the Contract,

3. Attachment B to the Contraot, Schedtie a{Fee's is amended to include the job classification described in
Attachment B-1 to the Contract, and to include the cost proposal for the additional work described in
Attachment A-l to the Contract,

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is Augusl2Q. 2019

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County oi Inyo Standard Contract - No, 156 with MGE
Arnendment I

Page I



AMEI\IDMENT NUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COIJNTYOFII{YO ANI)

MGE ENGINEERING INC
FoR THE pRovtslom DEsrcN sERvrcns

IN WITNESS TIIEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET TTIEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS29 o/.v on Aug,ust ---,2019.

CONSULTANT

Y-"2-lQ Dated:

By:

APPROVEDAS TO FORMAND
LEGALITY:

h*ot
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING

Auditor

AS TOPERSONNEL

L

ofPenonnel Services

APPROVEDAS TO RJSK

County Risk Manager

County of Inyo Standard Conhact - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page 2



IN ]IIITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIFS HERETO HAVE SET TIIEIR HANDS AND SEALS 1HIS
_ DAYOF _,2019.

spuNTYoFINYO CONSULTANT

AMENDMENT NUMBNR J- TO
AGREEIVIENT BETWNEN THE COI]NTY OFINYO AIIID

MGE ENGINEERING INC
x'oR rrrn pRovrslm DEsIcN sERvIcEs

ra,6,Ss g*dd-
By:

Dated:

APPROVEDAS TOFORMAI{D
LEGALITY:

Byr

Datcd: 8-28-20L9

County RirkManagor

County of lnyo Stardord Conbaot - No. t 56 wilh MGn
funsn&uent I

Pagc2

fi*nt
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING

Auditor

ASTOPERSONNEL

L

ofPenonnel Services

APPROVEDAS TORISKA



AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

MGE Enqineerino, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF North Round Valley Road Bridge over Pine CreEk Engineering and Design SERVICES

INTRODUCTION

WHEREAS, the County of lnyo (hereinafter referred to as'Gounty') has the need for the
of MGE Enoineerino. lnc-

(hereinafter referred to as and in consideration of fie mufual promises, covenants, terms, and
conditions hereinafter contained, the parties hereby agree as follorrvs;

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

SCOPE OF WORK.

The Consultant shall furnish to the County, upon its request, those services and work set forth in
Aftachment A, attached hereto and by reference incorporated herein. Requests by the County to tre
Consultant to perform under his Agreement will be made by the Director of Public Works.

Requests to the Consultant for work or services to be performed under
this Agreement will be based upon the County's need for such services. The County makes no guarantee or
warranty, of any nature, trat any minimum level or amount of services or work will be requested of fte
Consultant by the County under this Agreement. County by this Agreement incurs no obligation or
requirement to request from Consultant the performance of any seruices or work at all, even if County should
have some need for such services or work during the term of this Agreement.

ANB

1

Services and ltork provided by the Consultant at the County's request under flris Agreement will be
performed in a manner consistent with the requirements and staniards established by ap-plicable federal,
state, and County laws, ordinances, regulations, and resolutions. Such lavrrs, ordinanies,'iegulations, and
resolutions include, but are not limited to, those which are referred to in this Agreement and, asipplicabl'e, as
set forth, in Attachment E, attached hereto and incorporated herein.

2. TERM.

The term of this Agreement shall be fiom July 10, 2018 to June 30 2021 unless
sooner terminated as provided below. ln addition , Gounty shall have tuo options to extend lhe Agreement for
additional one-year periods as folloras:

From Julv 01,2021 through

From Julv 0l, 2023 through

A.

B.

June .2022

June 30. 2024

County shall exercise such options by giving vwitten notice to Contactor at least thirg (30) daya
before the expiration of the Agreement, or an-eitenjion thereof.

The notice shall specifo the period of fte options being exercised. The option to extend shall be upon
tre same terms and conditions stated in this Agreement.

3. CONSIDERATION.

A. 9gmpensation. County shall pay Consultant in accordance with tre Schedule of Fees
(set forth as Attachment B) for lhe services and woik described in Attachment A which are performed by
Consultant at the County's request.

.. B, T{avel and pgr dienL_ County shall reimburse Consultant for the tavel expenses and per
diem which Consultant incurs in providing services and work requested by County under this Agreement. 

'

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(l ndependent Consuft?nt - Professional)

page 1 of12
10102017



Consultant shall request approval by tre County prior to incurring any travel or per diem expenses. Requests
by Consultant for approval to incur travel and per diem expenses shall be submitted to the

Director of Puhlic Works. CIint Ouilter Travel and per diem
expenses will be reimbursed in accordance witr he rates set forth in the Schedule of Travel and Per Diem
Payment (Attachment G). County reserves the right to deny reimbursement to Consultant for travel or per
diem expenses which are eiher in excess of the amounts that may be paid under the rates set forth in
Attachment C, or wfiich are incurred by the Consultant without tre prior approval of the County.

C. No additional consideration. Except as expressly provided in this Agreement, Consultant
shall not be entitled to, nor receive, from County, any additional consideration, compensation, salary, wages,
or ofier type of remuneration for services rendered under this Agreement. Specifically, Consultant shall not
be entitled, by virfue of this Agreement, to consideration in fire form of overtime, healft insurance benefits,
retirement benefib, disability retirement benefits, sick leave, vacation time, paid holidays, or other paid leaves
of absence of any type or kind wfiaboever.

D. Limit upon amount pava.ble under Agreement. The total sum of all payments made by the County
to Contractor for services and work performed under this {greement shall not exceed
$ 447,568.18 (initialterm) $ NtA (option 1) and $ N/A (option 2)tor a
total of $ 447,568 18 Dollars (hereinafter referred to as "contract limif'). County expressly reserves
fte right to deny any payment or reimbursement requested by Contactor for services or work performed
which is in excess of the contract limit.

E. Billinq and navment. Consultant shall submit to the County, once a month, an itemized
statement of all hours spent by Consultant in perfoming services and work described in Aftachment A, wfrich
were done at fte Gounty's request. This statement will be submitted to the Gounty not later than the fifth
(5th) day of the mon0r. The statement to be submitted will cover the period from fte first (lsQ day of the
preceding month trrough and induding the last day of fre preceding month. This statement will identity the
date on which he hours were worked and describe lhe nature of the work wfiich ralas performed on each day.
Consultant 's statement to the County will also include an itemization of any tavel or per diem expenses,
which have been approved in advance by Coung, incurred by Consultant during frat period. The itemized
statement for travel expenses and per diem will include receipts for lodging, meals, and other incidental
expenses in accordance wih the County's accounting procedures and rules. Upon timely receipt of the
statement by the fifth (5th) day of the month, County shall make payment to Consultant on the last day of the
month.

F. FederalandStatetaxes.

(1) Except as provided in subparagraph (2) below, County will not witrhold any
federal or state income taxes or social security from any payments made
by County to Consultant under the terms and conditions of tris Agreement.

(2) County will witrhold Galifornia State income taxes from payments made
under this Agreement to non-California resident independent Consultant's
when it is anticipated that total annual payments to Consultant under this
Agreement will exceed one thousand four hundred ninety nine dollars
($1,499.00).

(3) Except as set forth above, County has no obligation to withhold any taxes
or paymenb from sums paid by County to Consultant under tris

Agreement. Payment of all taxes and other assessments on such sums is
flre sole responsibility of Consultant. County has no responsibility or liability
for payment of Consultant's taxes or assessments.

The total amounts paid by County to Consultant, and taxes wifrheld from
payments to non-California residents, if any, will be reported annually to the
lnternal Revenue SeMce and the California State Franchise Tax Board. To

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(l ndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 2 of 12

(4)

10102017



facilitate this reporting, Consultant shall complete and submit to the County
an lnternal Revenue Service (lRS) Form W-9 upon executing this
Agreement.

4. WORKSCHEDULE.

Consultant's obligalion is to perform, in a timely manner, ftose services and work idenlified in
Attachment A, which are requested by tre Coung. lt is understood by Consultant that the performance of
these seruices and work will require a varied schedule. Consultant will arrange his/her own schedule, but will
coordinate witr Coun$ to insure that all services and work requested by County under his Agreement will be
performed within the time frame set forth by County.

5. REQUTRED L|CENSES, CERTIFTCATES, AND PERMITS.

A. Any licenses, certificates, or permits required by the federal, state, county, or municipal
governments for Consultant to provide tre services and work described in Attachment A must be procured by
Consultant and be valid at the time Consultant enters into this Agreement or as otherwise may be required.
Further, during the term of this Agreement, Consultant must maintain such licenses, certificates, and permlb
in full force and effect. Licenses, certificates, and permits may include, but are not limited to, driver's
licenses, professional licenses or certificates, and business licenses. Such licenses, certificates, and permib
will be procured and maintained in force by Consultant at no expense to the County. Gonsuftant will provide
County, upon execution of this Agreement, wih evidence of current and valid licenses, certificates and
permits wttich are required to perform the services idenlified in Attachment A. Where here is a dispute
between Consultant and County as to wlrat licenses, cefiiftcates, and permits are required to perform the
services identified in Attachment A, County reserues fre right to make such determinalions for purposes of
this Agreement.

B. Consultant warrants that it is not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in covered transactions by any
federal department or agency. Consultant also warrants that it is not suspended or debarred from
receiving federal funds as listed in the List of Parties Excluded from Federal Procurement or Non-
procurement Programs issued by the General Services Administration available at: ltttD:/lwury.sant.qov.

6. OFFICE SPACE, SUppLtES, EQUIPMENT, ETC

Consultant shall provide such office space, supplies, equipment, vehicles, reference materials, and
telephone service as is necessary for Consultant to provide ftre services identified in Aftachment A to this
Agreement. County is not obligated to reimburse or pay Consultant, for any expense or cost incuned by
Consultant in procuring or maintaining such items. Responsibility for he costs and expenses incurred by
Consultant in providing and maintaining such items is the sole responsibility and obligation of Consultant.

7. COUNTY PROPERW.

A. Personal Property of Counlv. Any personal property such as, but not limited to, protective
or safety devices, badges, identification cards, keys, etc. provided to Consultant by County pursuant to tris
Agreement are, and at the termination of this Agreement remain, fte sole and exclusive property of County.
Consultant will use reasonable care to protect, safeguard and maintain such items while they are in
Consultanfs possession. Consultant will be financially responsible for any loss or damage to such items,
pailial or total, which is he result of Consultanfs negligence.

B. Products of Consultant's Work and Seruices. Any and all compositions, publications,
plans, specifications, blueprinb, maps, formulas, processes, photographs, slides, video tapes, computer
programs, computer disks, computer tapes, memory chips, soundtracks, audio recordings, films, audio-visual
presentations, exhibits, reports, studies, works of art, inventions, patents, trademarks, copyrights, or
intellectual properties of any kind v*rich are created, produced, assembled, compiled by, or are the result,
product, or manifestation of, Consultant 's services or work under this Agreement are, and at the termination

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 3 of 12

10102017



of this Agreement remain, the sole and exclusive property of Sre County. At the termination of the
Agreement, Consultant will convey possession and title to all such properties to County.

8. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.

For the duration of this Agreement Consultant shall procure and maintrain insurance of the scope and
amount specified in Attachment D and wiffr tre provisions specified in fiat attachment.

9. STATUSOFCONSULTANT.

All acts of Gonsultant, ib agents, officers, and employees, relating to fte performance of this
Agreement, shall be performed as independent Consultant's, and not as agents, officers, or employees of
County. Consultant, by virfue of this Agreement, has no authority to bind or incur any obligation on behalf of
County. Ercept as expressly provided in Attachment A, Consultant has no autrority or responsibility to
exercise any dghts or power vested in the County. No agent, officer, or employee of the Consultant is to be
considered an employee of County. lt is understood by botr Consultant and County ttat tris Agreement shall
not under any circumstances be consfued or considered to create an employer-employee relationship or a
joint venture. As an independent Consultani:

A. Consultant shall determine the method, detrails, and means of performing the work and
services to be provided by Consultant under flris Agreement.

B. Consultant shall be responsible to County only for the requirements and results specified in
his Agreement, and except as expressly provided in this Agreement, shall not be subjected to County's
control with respect to the physical action or activities of Consultant in fulfillment of this Agreement.

C. Consultant, its agenb, officers, and employees are, and at all times during he term of ttis
Agreement shall, represent and conduct themselves as independent Consultanfs, and not as employees of
County.

10. DEFENSE AND INDEMNIFICATION.

For professional services rendered under ihis Contact, Consultant agrees to indemnifo, including
the cost to defend County and its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers fiom and against any and all
claims, demands, costs, or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or
willful misconduct of Consuftant and its employees or agents in the performance of professional services
under this confact, but this indemnity does not apply to liability for damages arising from fte sole negligence,
active negligence, or willful acts of the County.

Consultant shall hold harmless, defend, and indemniff Coun$ and its officers, officials, employees,
and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses, and expenses including aftorney fees arising
out of the performance of the work described herein, caused in wtrole or in part by any negligent act or
omission of the Consuftant, any subconfactor, anyone directly or indirecty employed by any of ttem, or
anyone for whose acb any of them may be liable, except where caused by the active negligence, sole
negligence, or willful misconduct of the County.

Consuftanfs obligation to defend, indemnifo, and hold the County, ib agents, officers, and
employees harmless under the provisions of this paragraph is not limited to, or restricted by, any requirement
in this Agreement for Consultant to procure and maintain a policy of insurance. lf the Consultant maintains
higher limits than tre minimum required on the lnsurance aftachment to this Agreement, fie County requires
and shall be entifled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by he Consultant.

To the extent permitted by law, County shall defend, indemnifo, and hold harmless Consultant, its
agenb, officers, and employees from and against all claims, damages, losses, judgments, liabilities,
expenses, and other costs, including liligation costs and attorney's fees, arising out of, or resulting from, the
active negligence, or wrongful acb of County, its officers, or employees.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(l ndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 4 ol 12
10102017



11. RECORDSANDAUDIT

A, Recgr.{s.. Consultant shall prepare and maintain all records required by fte various
provisions of this Agreement, federal, state, and municipal law, ordinances, regulations, and directions.
Consultant shall maintain these records for a minimum of four (4) years fom the termination or completion of
ftis Agreement. Consultant may fulfill its obligation to maintain records as required by this paragraph by
substifute photographs, microphotographs, or oher authentic reproduction of such records.

B. lnspections and Audits. Any auhorized representative of County shall have access to any
books, documents, papers, records, including, but not limited to, financial records of Consultant, which
County determines to be pertinent to this {greement, for the purposes of making audit, evaluation,
examination, excerpts, and tanscripts during the period such records are to be maintained by Consultant.
Further, County has the right, at all reasonable times, to audit, inspect, or olherwise evaluate the work
performed or being performed underthis Agreement,

12. NONDISCRIMINATION.

During the performance of this Agreement, Consultant, its agents, officers, and employees shall not
unlawfully discriminate in violation of any federal, state, or local law, against any employee, or applicant for
employment, or person receiving services under this Agreement, because of race, religion, color, national
origin, ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, age, or sex. Consultant and ib agents,
officers, and employees shall comply with the provisions of he Fair Employment and Housing Act
(Government Code section 12900, et seq.), and he applicable regulations promulgated lhereunder in the
California Code of Regulations, Consultant shall also abide by the Federal Civil Rights Act of '1964 (P.L. 88-
352) and all amendments trereto, and all administrative rules and regulations issued pursuant to said act.

13. CANCELI.ATION.

This Agreement may be canceled by County witrout cause, and at will, for any reason by giving to
Consultant ttirty (30) da;a written notice of such intent to cancel. Consultant may cancel this Agreement
wittout cause, and at will, for any reason wfiatsoever by giving hirly (30) days written nolice of such intent to
cancel to County.

14. ASSIGNMENT.

This ls an agreement for the services of Consultant. Coun$ has relied upon the skills, know{edge,
experience, and training of Gonsultant as an inducement to enter into this Agreement. Consultant shall not
assign or subconfact this Agreement, or any part of it, without the express wriften consent of County.
Further, Gonsultant shall not assign any monies due or to become due under this Agreement without the
prior vwitten consent of County.

15. DEFAULT.

lf the Consultant abandons the work, or fails to proceed with the work and services requested by
County in a timely manner, or fails in any way as required to conduct fre work and services as required by
County, County may declare the Consultant in default and terminate this Agreement upon five (5) days
written notice to Consultant. Upon such termination by default, County will pay to Consultant all amounts
owing to Consultant for services and work satisfactorily performed to the date of termination.

16. WAIVER OF DEFAULT.

Waiver of any default by either party to this Agreement shall not be deemed to be waiver of any
subsequent default. Waiver or breach of any provision of fris Agreement shall not be deemed to be a waiver
of any olher or subsequenl breach, and shall not be construed to be a modification of fie terms of this
Agreement unless this Agreement is modified as provided in paragraph twenty-two (22) below.

County of lnyo Standard Conlract - No. 156
(l ndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page5ofl2
10102017



17. CONFIDENTIALIW

Consultant further agrees to comply with the various provisions of the federal, state, and county laras,
regulalions, and ordinances providing hat information and records kept, maintained, or accessible by
Consultant in the course of providing services and work under tris Agreement, shall be privileged, restricted,
or confidential. Consultant agrees to keep confidential all such information and records. Disclosure of such
confidential, privileged, or protected information shall be made by Consultant only witr the express written
consent of the County. fury disclosure of confidential information by Consultant wihout the County's written
consent is solely and exclusively tre legal responsibility of Consultant in all respects.

Notwihstanding anytring in the Agreement to the contrary, names of persons receiving public social
services are confdential and are to be protected ftom unauthorized disclosure in accordance witr Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations Section 205.50, the Health lnsurance Portability and Accountabilig Act of 1996,
and Sections 10850 and 1410A.2 of fie Welfare and lnstitutions Code, and regulations adopted pursuant
ftereto. For he purpose of this Agreement, all information, records, and data elemenb pertaining to
beneficiaries shall be protected by the provider fom unauthorized disclosure.

{8. CONFUGTS.

Consultant agrees that lt has no interest, and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, wlrich
would conflict in any manner or degree with fre performance of the work and services under this Agreement.

19. POSTAGREEMENTCOVENANT.

Consultant agrees not to use any confidential, protected, or privileged information which is gained
from he County in the course of providing services and work under this Agreement, for any personal benefit,
gain, or enhancement. Further, Consultant agrees for a period of two years after fte termination of this
Agreement, not to seek or accept any employment with any County, association, corporation, or person wtro,
during he term of this Agreement, has had an adverse or conflicting interest wifi the County, or wfio has
been an adverse party in litigation with the County, and concerning such, Consultant by virtue of this
Agreement has gained access to he Countt's confidential, privileged, protected, or proprietary information.

20. SA/ERABILITY.

lf any portion of this Agreement or applicalion lhereof to any person or circumstance shall be
declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if it is found in contavention of any federal, state, or
county statute, ordinance, or regulation, the remaining provisions of this Agreement, or the application
fftereof, shall not be invalidated hereby, and shall remain in full force and effect to the extent that the
provisions of this Agreement are severable.

21. FUNDING LIMITATION.

The ability of County to enter his Agreement is based upon available funding ftom various sources.
ln the event hat such funding fails, is reduced, or is modified, ftom one or more sources, County has fte
option to cancel, reduce, or modiff tris \greement, or any of its terms within ten (10) days of its notifying
Consultant of the cancellation, reduction, or modification of available funding. Any reduction or modification
of this Agreement made pursuant to this provision must comply with the requirements of paragraph twenty-
two (22) (Amendment).

22. AMENDMENT.

This Agreement may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or subtracted ftom, by the mutual
consent of the parties hereto, if such amendment or change is in wriften form and executed with the same
formalities as his {greement, and attached to tre original Agreement to maintain continuity,

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 6 of 12

10102017



23. NOTICE.

Any notice, communication, amendments, additions, or deletions to tris Agreement, including

change of iddress of eitrer party during he terms of this Agreement, which Consultant or Gounty shall be

requiied, or may desire, to make, shall be in writing and may be personally served, or sent by prepaid first

class mail to, the respective parties as follows:

Gounty of lnyo:

Pr)
Public Works Department

Address
City and State

Name
Address
City and State

n
(1A

Consultant:
MGF n lnn

15 Graanheven f)rive Rrrifa'lOO
Sanra nln l1A

24. ENTIREAGREEMENT,

This Agreement contains the entire agreement of the parties, and no representations, inducemenb,
promises, or a-greements oherwise between the parties not embodied herein or incoporated herein by

reference, shalibe of any force or effect. Further, no term or provision hereof may be changed, waived,

discharged, or terminated, unless the same be in wriling executed by he pafiies hereto.

ilt llll

County of lnyo Slandard Contnct - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 7 ol 12
101020'17



AND

AGREEMENT BETVI'EEN COUNTY OF INYO

MGE Engineering, lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF North Round Valley Road Bridge over Pine Creek Engineering and Deslgn SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HAI.IDS AND SEALS THIS
DAYOF t-.

couNwoF tt{Yo CONSULTANT

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY:

fru
County Counsel

^
By 1)*^r- r/ '>='=z*-:-.

.-1 Signature
J/r-.u 7-o r,- *-*t t t

PrintorType Name

Dated:7-r2-t{

ASTOACCOUNTING FORM:

Auditor

TO REMENTS:

APPROVED AS TO INSUMNCE REAUIREMENTS:

County Risk Manager

By:
Signature

ftint orType Name

Dated

County of lnyo Standard contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page I of 12

1A10,20'.17



AND

AGREEMENT BETV\IEEN COUNTY OF INYO

MGE Ensineerino.lnc.

By:By:

FORTHE PROVISONOF Noilh Round Valley Road Brldgc ovcr Plnc Ctcak Enolncerlno and tloslon SERVIGES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO I.I,AVE SET THEIR HA}IDS AND SEALS THIS
DAYOF-.

couNTYoF !,tv,Yg CONSULTANT

$lgnrtua Slgnatqn

Prinl or Type Name PrintorTyp€ N.rIn

Datod: Dated:

ASTO FORMAND LEGALITY:

ASTOACCOUNTING FORM:

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL REQUIREMENTS:

Persmnol Sorvbes

I NSU RAI.ICE REQUI REMENTS:

Cou.ty of lnyo Slir1d|ld Contnct - No. 156

(lrdcpGrdcnt Cortult nt - Profla3lori8l)
Pagc E ol 12

10102017



ATTACHMENT A

AGREEMENT BETVVEEN COUNry OF II{YO

AND MGE Enoineerino lnc^

FOR THE PROVISION Qf North Round Valley Roqd Bridge over Pine Creek Engineering and Deslgn SERVICES

TERM:

FROM Julv 10 2018 June 30 2021

SCOPEOFWORK:

MGE Engineering, lnc. Of Sacramento, CA will be providing enginee.ing services, including bridge ancl
roadway engineering, environmental, hyclrologicaland hydraulic analysis forthe North Round Valley
Bridge Replacement. The scope of work is described in detailin the following pages.

County of lnyo Standard Contract - No. 15O
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page 9 of 12

10102017



Scope of Work
MGE's proposed Smpe of lYork is based upon experience gained in successfully completing btidge
replacement and storm damage repair projects funded through State and Federal programs. The proposed
work scope contains the elements descdbed in the RFP. Additional services have been identified whete
wartanted, A detailed project schedule is included with the project understanding to provide the tequested
timeline for completion of the tasks.

'l'i\sK 0 Pt01 t,r;'t l\,l,tn*.ql;t:1il'tN t', {l{)i)Rt)tNAI't(}N, ,\Nt) Qi}At.r r \ (l(}N t l{(}t

0.1 CommunicationandCootdination
MGE will maintain ftequcnt contact with thc County, stakeholders, and task leadets to keep the lines of
communication open and to facilitate and ensute successful project delivery. 'Ihis will include the following:

r Establishment and implementation of a project document/correspondence management and
distribution system to assure that information flows between all parties of the Project as intended.

. Regular communication with the Counry's Conftact Manager using telephone, fax, email, written
cotrespondence, and face-to-face meetings as requited throughout thc term of the conffact.

I Maintenance of a project contact list with names and contact information fot all parties involved with
the project including usets and nearby property owners.

r Development and maintenance of a project document retention system, which will be transfered to
the Courrty upon Ptoject completion or contract termination. The system will catalog and retain all
significant project cottespondence and work products irr their native format,

0.2 Meetings
MGE will otganize, schedule, and chair meetings as necessalT to provide progress updates, cootdinate
between technical disciplines, and facilitate overall project cornmunication. MGE will prepare meeting
.agendas and minutcs fot all mcctings. Thc agcndas will bc submitted to the County fot review five (5)

, workitrg days pdor to the meeting. The minutes *-.:l be distdbuted to all attendees, non-attendees that were
invited, and the County's Contract Manager within five (5) wotking days after the rneeting. The minutes will
include, but not be limited to, a list of attendees with phone numbers and email, a synopsis of discussion
items, any pertinent rnformation, action items, and follow-up to action items. 'fhe following meetjngs in
addition to the Ptoject Scoping Meeting/Site Visit are anticipated f<rr this project:

0.2.1 Ptoject Development Tearn (PDT) Meetings
The PDT meetings will serve as the primary forum for reviewing the status of the project and identiSring and
tesolving ptoject issues. Attendees will include MGE's Project Manager, consultant task leads as needed,
Counly staff and othet stakeholdets as necessary. Throughout the anticipated duration of thc project design
phase, MGE will facilitate and participate in up to six PDT meetings via teleconference.

0,2.2 TechnicalCoordinationMeetings
MGE will cootdinate technical issues with the County, Cal OES and othets through meetings and
cotrespondence. MGE will prepare fot and facilitate up to two technical meetings via teleconference. MGE
will also be available to attend and present information at the County's Board of Supewisors meeting if
needed. MGtr will prcp^te special exhibits to illusftate the design concept and project limits at the
appropriate design stages.

0.2.3 Community/Ptoperty Chrner Meetingr
MGE will paricrpate in meetings organized by the County to present the need for the ptoject, discuss
altetnatives and obtain input to evaluate alternatives and select a preferred alternative. These ate expected to
include communiry meetings and meetings, if necessary with individual stakeholders and property owners.
Fot commurrity meetings, MGE vill prepaie handouts, exh-ibits, and comment forms for patticipants.



Following this meeting, MGE will prepare a document summarizing cornments received along with detailed
respooses. The comments document will be provided to the County.

De liaerablet: Mating Agendas 6 Minutet

0.3 Project Schedule
To identi$r and manage t}re Project ctitical path, MGE will prepare a detailed project baseline schedule based
on a wotk breakdown sftulcture that will include all tasks of all parries involved in the Project and will take
into account agency staff teview time. The schedule will include the following information:

r Task dependencies as predecessors and successors;
r Anticipated task durations with beginning and end dares;
o Critical path with milestones; and
e Responsibility and accountability assignments.

A &aft schedule udll be submitted to the County for review and comments. MGE will update the schedule
quaterly to managefmonitot work progress. After acceptance by the County, the approved schedule will be
tetained as the baseline. An updated schedule will be provided to thc Counry with monthly Ptogress Reports,

To keep the completion of the prcject on schedule, MGF. u/ill cleady communicate task durations and
deadlines to the project team, obtain buy-in ftom stakeholders regarding teview duations, and keep a strong
focus on critical path items. MGE will monitor and update the schedule monthly to ttack critical tasks and
prioritize MGE s work effott to enslrre that the key milestones are firet,

Dcliuerabler: Base Schedile dy Scbefule Updant

0,4 lnvoices and Ptogress Reports
MGE will submit a Ptogress Report with each invoice requesting payrnent fot work to date. The reports will
include a nattatjpe on work accomplished during the teporting petiod; work planned for the next tepotting
pedod; infotmation/decisions required to maintain the Ptoject schedule and complete delivctables; problems
encountered that may affect the schedule, budget, and anticipated work items; and recornmendations to
; :.olve issues, and budget status. klr,i'- t,. {

Deliuerables: Monthfi Inuoim dr Progvr Repott

0,5 _ Quality Control
MGF, vill develop a detailed Quality Control Plan (QCP) that assigns rcsponsibility and calls out the
procedutes to be used to ensute that all deliverables (including drafts) are complete and accutate, including
but not limited to, ensuring that design calcuiations are independendy checked and that exhibits and plans are
checked, cottected and back-checked. MGE'urill review subconsultant submittals to ensure that apptopriate
background information, study methodology, interptetation of data, format and content ate completed in
accordance with the scope of work and applicable standards. Transmittals for all delivetables will include the
name(s) and contact infotmation of the person(s) involved in ensuring quality deliverables.

A quality control/consructabiJity {ield review will be untaken by senior MGE staff using the 90% PS&E
submittal package. Upon completion of the teview, any required adjustments/edrts will be incorporated into
the Final Design along with addtessing the comments received ftom the County on their revie,w of thc 90%
PS&E, submittal package. Results of the held tevierv and corrective action taken will be documented in a

brief report which will be provided to the County.

De lircra bln: pta liy Contn / Plan

0.6 Submittals
All submittals of documents by MGE to the County fot review and commentf approvalwill include six hatd
copies, a compact disc or DVD rvhich contains an electronic copy of the document in .pdf format. The text
of the document will also be ptovided electtonically in Microsoft lVotd or Excel format as appropriate.

.'(':



MGE will provide the County a copy of all correspondence to and from othet agencies or organizations
regarding the proiect. MGE will copy thc County on all correspondence to agencies, companies, or
individuals. No correspondence or communication with agencies, companies, or individuals will be instigated
by MGE ot subconsultants'vithout prior authotization by the County.

Plans submitted by MGE for Counry review and comment/approval will be plotted or printed on 22" x 34"
sheets and all scales shall be graphical. Final plan submittals will be provided on 22" by 34" mylar sheets,
Each final plan sheet wiJl be stamped and sigaed by the responsible ptofessional engineet. Construction
drawings will be prepared "ttue scale" to facilitate their use for construction staking. Coordinate systems of
all digital data for plans and drawings will be based on dre coordinates/bearings used in the survey control. A
compact disc or DYD including the plans in .pdf format shall be provided with each plan set. Final plan set
submittals will also include the AutoCAD drawing files on compact disk or DVD.

l',r:x I ['Rt.r.t]tt\ \ti\. Ii\(; rNLt,r Rt\(; S I trl]il..s A\r) Itl,t,()t{ i's

1.1 Project Scoping Meeting/Site Visit
MGF,, together urith selected subconsultants, will attend and prepare minutes of an initial scoping meeting
with the County staff, Cal OES tepresentatives, and others as appropriate. The putpose of this meeting will
be to review the goals and objectives of the proiect, discuss each team member's roies and responsibilities,
identify critical project issues and obtain consensus on task dutations, particulatly teviews. This initial
meeting will help to ensure that everyone on the project team is on the same page and functioning with the
same undetstanding regatding project delivery and execution. Included as part of the scoping meeting will
be a site visit to discuss the alternatives identified in the Inspection Memorandum ptepared for the project,
and identifr constraints that need to be considered in the selection and development of the preferted
altetnative for the ptoject.

De liaerables: Muting Agenda dr Minatet

1..2 Sutveys and Mapping
R.O. Anderson Engineering will be tesponsible fot data collection, mappin5 and suneying necessary fot
preliminary en$neering, design, cost estimates, and right-of-way locations. Specifically, the topographic
survey r'.'j - incl rJe controls fot reestablishing the roadway out;ide construction iimits; approach of 300-400'
at each end of the roadway; and channel cross sections up and dorvn stteam, cxtending 300-400' above and
below the bridge and from one edge of the floodplain to the other. Research will be conducted to iderrti$
limits of existing ROIW and any additional ROW needs as 'urell as existing easements and ownetship of
zdiacert properties. Services will also include legal descdptions for temporary easements fot consttuction
staging areas.

1.3 I-Iydrology/Hydraulics

MGE with support from Avila & Associates will complete the needed shrdies and analyses, and prepare the
Bddge Desigrr Hydraulic Study Report.

L3.l Data Review and Coordination
A review of available data, including ptevious studies provided by the County, will be completed by the
Proiect Team. I(ey infotmation to review will be the available hydrologic, hy&aulic, and operational data fot
Pine Creek, Caltrans Bridge Inspection Repotts, and County maintenance records.

1.3.2 FieldReconnaissance
A field reconnaissance will be conducted to assess the existing conditions in the vicinity of the Project. The
held reconnaissance w'ill be corrducted on the day of the project scoping meeting.

1.3.3 HydrologicAnalysis
Preliminary tesearch of the Fedetal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Flood Insutance Rate Map

6'In$ showed that the project is located within a Zone A floodway. The Project Team will coordinate with
the Counry and US Bureau of Reclamation to confum the desigtr flows at the Project site.



1.3.4 HydraulicAnalysis
A hydtaulic analysis will be completed to determinc design flow chatacteristics fot the existing condiuon and
the proposed bridge. The hydraulic model of choice will be the U.S. Army Cotps of Enginccrs' HEC-RAS
Model. MGE and Avila will coordinate with the Project Team to obtain the surveyed channel cross sections
for building the hydraulic models. The proposcd bddge should be designed to meet Federal Highway
Administration and the County's freeboard tequirements,

1.3.5 Btidge Location Hydraulic Study
A Bddge Location Hydtaulic Study will bc completed to provide a floodplain risk assessment for the bridge.
The Bridge Location Hydraulic Study Memo, which will include the standard Summary of Floodplain
Enctoachment Form and technical discussions.

Deliuerablet: Bidge l-,ocation Hjtdrailic S tadj Meno (Draft and Fittal - 2 hard npiet and PDF f le)

1.3.6 Scout Analysis

A bridge scour analyses will be completed to determine the scout potential per the methodology specified in
the Fedetal Flighway Admjnistration's FIEC-IS andHF:C-23 Manuals. Results of the analysis will include
tecommendations on the need for scout countermeasures.

L3.7 Bridge Design Hydraulic Study Repot
A Bridge Design Hydraulic Study Report will be prepared to summarize the recommendations and results
from the hydmulic and scour analyses. The tepott will include all the detailed hydrautc model outputs and
results from the scour analysis.

Deliaerabks: Bidge Deign Hltdrau/ic Studl Kepon (Dreft and Final - 2 hard copiu ad PDF fte)

1.4 GeotechnicalfFoundationlnvestigation
The general project atea is mapped as Quaterrrary alluvium deposits. Based on past performance of the
channel and existing bridge, scour will pose a signifrcant geotechnical risk to foundations. No known faults

cross the ptoject site; howevet, the area has the potential for high design seismic accelerations. If relatively
shallow gtoundwater is encounteted, liquefaction and seismically induced settlement mayrlrose.a potential
geotechnical risk. Addrtionalln when liquefaction occurs on sloping ground, ot adjacent to a frec'facc (such
as canal or rivcr bank), it can cause the ovedying soil to shift or spread toward the free face (atetal spreading).

1.4.1 Pteliminary Foundation Report (PFR)
Kleinfelder will prepare a PFR for the site to assist in the conceptual planning, type selection, and preliminary
cngineedng process. Log of Test Borings for the existing bddge along with published geologic maps,
preliminary project data and site review/reconnaissance will be utilized in the developrnent of the PFR.

P-re-field Activities
. Obtain an encroachment permit from Inyo County.
r Obtain a Test $flell Permit fiom Inyo County Environmental Health
r Petform site reconnaissance to review project limits, evaluate potential access issues, and mark the

exploratory boring locations for requfued USA utility clearance.
r Retain the services of a California licensed drilling subcontractor to perform the exploratory borings,

gtilizing hollow stem auger, rotary wash, impact hammet, and rock codng techniques.
Field Explotation Prograrl

o Perfotm exploratory borings at each bridge support. Exploration depths are anticipated to extend to
depth of aboutT0 feet, depending on foundation material type and consistency,

r Maintain a 1og of the soils encountered and obtain samples for visual examination, classification, aud
Iaboratory testing.

o The bodngs will be backfilled with excavated soil cuttings upon completion.



Laboratory. Tcsting Progrflm
o Labotatory testing will be performed to evaluate certain characteristics of the foundation and

subgtade soils. Typical tests includc:
r In-place density and moishre content, American Society fot Test-ing and Materials (ASTX4 D2937
I Modified Proctot, ASTM D1557
o Ditect shear sftength, ASTM D3080
o Gtain-size disttibution without hydrometer, ASTM D422
r Resistance Value, Califomia Test Method No, 301

o Soluble sulphate, California Test Method No. 417
r Soluble chloride, California Test Method No. 422
r Minimum electrical resistivity, Cabfotria Test Method No. 643

1.4,2 Engineering Analysis and Report Preparation

After the field and laboratory phases are cotnplete and based on engineering evaiuation and analysis of field
and laboratory data, a PFR will be prepated, followed by a final Foundauon Report (FR) once all review
comments have been received. Both reports will follow basic Calttans LRFD guidelines and the revised
Caltrans Foundation Report Prepataiott for Bridge Foundations (2009), The PtrR will provide comments to
assist in tgre selection and preliminary design. The FR will present cornments and recommendations to aid in
design of the btidge. It is anticipated that the following specific items will be included in the tepotts:

I A description ofthe proposed project
r Discussion of the 6eld and labotatory testing progtams
o Comments on the rcgional geology and site engineeling seismology, including the potential fot

li.quefaction and seismically induced settlement
r Recommended peak bedrock acceleration and ARS curve for use in Caltrans Seismic Design Critetia

Vetsion 1.7

o Foundation recommendations will consider effects of erosion, scout, and degtadation from the
pro ject hydraulic analysis

o Recommended gross and net permissible contract stress associated with toletable settlements and
bearing capacity and design footing elevations of spread footing foundations, if appropriate

r Recommendations for lateral capacity of spread footings (passive pressure and ftictional coefficient),
if apptoptiate

I Recommended design and specified tip elevations for pile foundations, if appropriate.
. Recommendations for design of laterally loaded piles, if appropriate
o Comments on soil stiffness and ultimate equivalent lateral pressure for resistirrg dynamic ioading of

abutment walls
o Comments on the corrosion potential of foundation soil

Deliuerablet: Prelininary 0 Final Fosndation kports (2 hard mpier anl PDFfh)

1.5 PreliminaryEngineeringStudies
MGtr will complete preliminary bridge upon recornmendations included in
the Inspection Memotandum prepared be incorporated into a Bridge Type
Selection Report. The Report will include a General Plan sheet for the recommended bridge altetnative,
roadway Layout and Profile sheets. Also included will be an Engineer's preliminary consftuction cost
estimate, evaluation of altetnatives, and a recommended alternative. A draft of the Report will be submitted
for review and approvai by the County. The approved Report will be the basis for the envfuonmental teview
and Ftnal design.

1.5.1 Type Selection Report



'Iype Selection Report completion will include, but not be limited, to the following:

r Altemative Development - MGE rpill evaluate mukiple alternative bddge configutations,/types
iocluding associated approach toadrvay alignment/proftle and estimated consftuction cost for each

alternative.

Environmental Consttaints Analysis - An environmental constraints analysis will be prepated for
each altetnative undet consideration.

Draft Type Selection Report - MGE will complete a dtaft Type Selection Report to ptesent dcsign
and construction considerations, and bridge alternatives with construction costs to factlitate selection

of a preferred ptoject for design and construction. The dtaft Pteliminary Report will include:

General description of the Droiect Roadwav geometrv and typical section
Traf{tc Control Approach roadways
Risht-of-\Yav (Dermanent and tempotary easements) Drainaee
Utiliues Design Exceptions
Hv&aulics reo uirements Geotechnical requitements
Construction access

tsddse railinqs
Bridge and alignment alternatives, associated costs,
and advantages

Aesthetic requirements
Environmental (including fi sheries) requirements
Pro ject recommendations

Appendices includingl Bridge Advance Planning Studies, Alternative Cost Estimates, Photographs, draft
Pteliminary Foundation Report, draft Bridge Design Flydtaulic Study Report, and &aft lrcation Hydraulic
Study.

The &aft report will also include an analysis of the programmed funding in compadson to the
anticipated costs of the Project and, if necessary, ptovide a discussion of means to justify the need

fot and to request additional funding.

MGE will submit the draft Report to the County fot review and comment on the selcction of a

preferred altetnative,

e Final Type Selection Report - MGE will prepare a Iinal Repott that includes the incolporation
and,f or tesolution of all County comments on the draft Repot,

Deliaerablet: Draft drFiralTfue Selu'tiott RePnrtt (2 hard npiu and PDt-fik)

1.6 Field Review /Eady Coordination Meeting.MGE

other stakeholders as appropriate. Participants from the MGE team will include the Ptoject Manager, and
key engineedng members of the team. Prior to the meeting MGE will ptepare apptopriate exhibits and
handouts. Should a prefened altetnative temain to be selected, an exhibit will be prepated showing the
altetnatives undet consideration.

Deliaerablet: Mating Agnda 6 Minste,t

'l',\$K 2 I.l Nvilt()Nlil,t N't At. /\Nl) llli(it:l-.1't 0t(\ PItRn,ti IS

2.1 Prepare Ptoject Description and ldentily Proiect Sitc Limits

a

a

\0florking with the project team, GEI will accomplish the following activities:



o Define project objectives.

' . Provide background satement for a finding of exemption.
r Develop project description/site Limits map (i.e., Area of Potential Effect).

GEI will coordinate with MGE to prepare a project description for use in the CEQA notice of
exemption and for aoy regulatory permit applications required for the prcject. Preliminary site plans and
conceptual design drawings will be incorpooted into the projcct description to the extent they are

available. In addition to describing the design features of the proposed replacement sffucture, the project
description will identify construction timing equipment needs, and staglng arca locations. A brief
background and a statement of reason supporting the County's notice of exemption will also be
ptepared.

Using design details in a CAD (or similar) format, GEI will prepare a site lfunits or Area of Potential
Effect (APE) map that identifies key project feahrres (such as staglng areas, scour measrre locations,
etc,). The site limits or APE map will be used to prepare the Section 106 Technical Report and the
Biological Resources Memo necessalT to complete the regulatory permit applications (sec Task 2.3
b"lo-).

Proiect Cootdination, Proiect Development Team Meetings, QA/QC, and Public Heating

In addition to a project kick-off/site visit at the County, our scope includes paticipation at 3 project
development team meetings, and a public meeting or Board of Supervisor rneeting to address the
environmental impacts of the proposed project.

Public Workshop; lVhile not required, GEI staff are available to participate in an optional public
workshop to present/discuss the potential environmental impacts of the proposed ptoject with the
community. The workshop would be at a location selected by the County /proiect team. GEI would also
be available to provide presentation graphics for the workshop.

Deliverables

r Project Description (and supporting graphics), draft and final: one (1) PDF/Word version file.
r Background Statement, draft and final: 1 PDF/Word file.
r Site Limits (APE Map), draft and Fnilt I PDF/\(ord file.

2.2 Prepare CEQA Notice of h,xemption

Inyo Counry Board of Supervisors Resolution #2017 -1,5 proclaimed the existence of a local emetgency
resulting from the run-off potential of ncar-tccord snowpack in the Eastern Sierra. With this intent and the
subsequent Governot's Proclamation (dated October.27,2077), the proposed project meets the Statutory
Exernption requitements consistent with CEQA Guidelines 15269, as an emetgency ptoject. As a statutory
exemption, the p:oposed prciect is excluded ftom CEQA consideration as defined by the State Legislatwe;
howevet, the proiect must still comply with other state, local or fedetal laws that may be applicable to the
proposed proiect.

GEI will prcp^re thc notice of exemption using the ptoject description and backgtound statement prepared
under Task 2.L. The notice will include a finding of the ptoject's exemption, citations to the applicable

exempdon under CEQA, and a brief statement of reasons supporting the finding of exemption. While not
tequired, the CEQA initial study checklist will also bc uscd to identifr the potenrial fot any environmental
impacts resulting ftom the project.



AB 52 Consultation: In pieparing the cultural resources technical memo, a GEI tribal specialist will contact
the Native American Heritage Commission OIAHC) and conduct initial coordination activities (i'e. file review
and letters to ttibal contacts)1, after, consulting County staff. Based on the outcomes of this initiai oufteach,
GEI is available to assist the, County with any additional tribal coordination consistent with AB 52

compliance.

Deliverables

. Statutory Exemption Memo, draft and final 1 PDF/Word hle.
o Initial Study Checklist, draft and final: 1 PDF/Word file.
. AB 52 Coordination.

2.3 Prepare and Submit Regul atory Permits

Task 2.3-t Prepare Section 106 Techtrical Report

Befote the field surveys ate conducted, existing documentation pettinent to cultural resources within the
project area will be reviewed. GEI wdl conduct a records search fot the project arca. A GEI architectutal
historian and a GEI archaeologist will review previously completed envitonmental documents to establish the
extent to which any previous wotk was conducted within the proposed ptoject atea. A limited desktop
geoarchaeological study will be included as part of the background research conducted for the ptoject.

review of previous archaeological suwey and excavatioo reports, archaeological site recotds and formal
property listings on {ile at the Eastcrn Infotmation C-enter (EIC) of the California Historicai Resources

Information System. 'fhe collection of existing information on archaeological suweys, excavations and site

records and mapped historical data for the project area (and, a one-half mile tadius) may be suPpl€mented

with additional research.

GEI will initiate contact with the Native r\metican Hetitage Commission (IIAHC), to request a search of the

Sacred Lands Files and a list of suitable Native American tribal reptesentatives from the tegion' GEI will
contact each individu al/ gtoup on thc list with a letter and follow-up phone calls to solicit any information or
concerns that they might have regarding the project area. Similady, GEI will contact any apptopdate
historical societies with knowledge of the area.

GEI's archaeological team, which includes Registeted Ptofessional Archeologists tsPAt who meet the SOI's
Professional Qualifications Standards, will conduct a pedestrian survey of ateas of ground-disturbance,
proposed parking ateas, and staging ateas.

Within 1 week of completing the archaeological survey, our archaeologists will prepare a brief email detailing
the results of the archaeologicaL suwey.

A cultural resources suwey technical teport, combining atchaeology and atchitectutal resoutces, rvill be

prepared under the supervision of a seniot archaeologist who meets the SOI Ptofessional Qualifications
Standztds, The technical teport will include a statement of firrdings and management recommendations for
any identified historic resources and the need for monitoring during ground-distubing activities.

Delivembles & Aesumptions

r Bmail of atchaeological stwey results.
r Dtaft Cultural Resourccs Sunrcy Technical Repott: 1 PDF/Wotd file.
. Final Cultural Resourccs Survey Technical Report 1 PDF/Wotd file.
r Field crcw will consist of two archaeologists.
. Survey atea will be less than 8 actes and will take one day complete.
e No atchaeological rcsourcds or other significant resources will be identified in the Proiect area.



r Evaluation of the built-environment resources is not anticipated for this prcject and thetefote not
included in this scopc of work.

Task2.3-2t Prepare Biological Resoutces Technical Memo

GEI biologists will review the U,S, Fish and tD7ildlife Service species list and California Natr.nal Diversity
Database, as weil as previous environmental reports in the ptoject vicinity (if any) fot information on
p<ltential occurence of special-status species in the ptoject area; existing National lfetland Inventory rnaps;

topographic maps and aerial photographs; and soils informarion (soil survey soil types in Geographic
Information System (GIS) format), Following the literature review, a biological resources reconnaissance
survey will be conducted. The survey will consist of a one-day site visit to assess and map habitats in the
project area and look for special-status species that may be ptesent, Habitat data will be recorded in the field
using GPS and will be mapped using GIS for further analysis and planning. The results of the biological
resources suwey and literature review will be included in a technical memorandum that will be used to
support envitonmental permit applications.

Deliverables & Assumptions

o Biologrcal Resources Technical Memotandum, dtaft and Ftnal: 7 PDF /Wotd ftle.
o After preliminary r'eview of literatrue and databases on potential occurrence of special-status species

in rhe project area, lt is assumed that the project area does not support habitat for federally-listed
species. Therefore, biological resor*ces permitting under Section 7 of the Endangeted Species Act is
not included in the scope of work.

r Field crew will consist of two biologists.
o Sutvey atea will be less than 8 acres and will take one day to complctc.

T ask 2.3-1t Prepare Wetland Delineation Report

The proposed projcct activities are anticipated to affect Pine Creek, which is a potential water of the United
States subject to regulation under Sections 404 and 401 of the Clean Water Act (CWA) and a watcr of the
State subject to regulation under the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Act. Additional features (e.g., seasonal

wetlands, ipatian habitat, etc.) that may also be subiect to regulation have the potential to occur within the
project area and may be affected by ptoject activities. To support planning and permitting of ptoiect activities,
GEI will conduct a wetland delineation to determine the presence and limits of jurisdictional features (waters
of the United States and watets of the State).

GEI will conduct a wetland delineatiorr along Pine Creek consisting of an area 100 fcct notth and south of
the existing bridge and 200 feet upsffeam and downsteam of the bridge, GEI will complete the delineation
and ptepare a draft and final Wetland Delineation Rcport fot the ptoject, whtch will include a wedand map
showing the exact extent and location of all potentially jurisdictional watets of the United States. This map
will be prepated in accordance with U.S. Army Corps of Engineers ({JSACE) (1987) mtrlti-patarneter
methodology and 2O08 Regional Supplement fot the Atid lVest rcquirements. The prcfered base map for
this effort is a recent aerial photograph (minimum scale of 1 inch = 200 feet). The Wedand Delineation
Repott wouid also summarize the delneation methodology, existing site conditions, and findings.

Following teview of the Wcdand Delinearion Repott by the County, it will be submitted to USACE as part of
the CWA Section 404 permit application (see Task 2). If necessary, a GEI wetland biologist will attend a ficld
verification with USACE and make one update to the Wedand Delineation Report based on USACE
cornments. It is assumed that USACE will issue a pteliminary judsdictional determination based on the
Wetland Delineation Report as part of the issucd petmit process.

Deliverables



. Wetland Delineation Report, dmft and final 1 PDF/Word frle and 1 paper copy.

The delivembie will be provided to the County electonically and one hatdcopy of thc final repott urll be
submitted to USACE.

Task2.3-2: USACE Clean VatetAct Section 404 Nationwide Permit Package

It is assurned the proposed project would require a Clean \ffater Act Section 404 permit to support
constuction of a new bridge and stabifization of the creek bank around the bridge footprint. GEI assumes

the project activities would quali$ for authotization under USACE Nationwide Permit OJWP) No. 14

(Linear Ttanspottation Proiccts). NVP No. 14 authorizes activities associated with construction, expansion,
modification, or improvement of linear ttansportation prcjects within watets of the United States. USACE
verification of authorization under NWPs requfues submittal of a pre-consttuciion notification PCIrl)
package. GEI will prepare and submit a pre-construction notification package to USACE, Los Angeles
Disuict. The PCN package will include, but is not limited to, a cornplete project desciption; asscssors'parccl
numbers; ptoject schedulq at least 30% design dtawings (in AutoCAD ot GIS); calculations of the volume of
materials to be excavated from waters of the U.S.; plans showing the proicct staging areas, access toads, aad

spoil and dewatering areas; and a description of consttuction methods.

One agency meeting will be attended by GEI staff to discuss proiect characteristics, permit tequirements, and
petmitting schedules, if tequired, Additional tclcphone,/email coordination with USACE will be conducted
following submittal of the PCN packages,

Deliverables & Assumptions

r One Clean Water Act Section 404 PCN Package, draft and frnal 1 PDF/Word file.
r Counbr will provide application fees and be tesponsible fot mit-igation costs.

Deliverables will be ptovided to the County electtonically and two hard copies will be provided to USACE.

Task 2.3-3: RWQCB Section 40l Water Quality Certification Application

By federal law, therse secking a fcdcral petmit (i.e., CWA Section 404) must submit an application to RWQCB
for a'Water Quality Certificatiorr (WQC) in accordance with C\WA Section 401. As patt of thc WQC
application package, GEI will calculate impacts to waters of the United States and State, calculate the WQC
application fee which is based on the Dredge and Fill Fce Calculator, and descdbe the construction
techniques and methods to miflimize or avoid excessive erosion, turbidity, and othet advetse watet quality
effects. CEQA must be completed prior to RWQCB issuing a WQC. It is assumed that the WQC application
fee wjll be paid by the County.

One agency meeting will be attended by GEI staff to discuss proiect chatacteristics, petmit rcquitements, and
permitting schedules, if rcqufued. Additional telephone/email coordination with I{WQCB will be conducted
following submittal of the WQC application package.

Delivetables & Assumptions

r Onc Clean Water Act Section 401 Application, draft and final 1 PDF/Wotd file.
r Counry will ptovide application fees and be responsible for mitigation costs,

Deliverables will be provided to the Counfy electronically and two hard copies will be provided to the
R''JyQCB.

Task 2.3-4: California Department of Fieh and Wildlife (CDFW) Streambed Alteration Agteement

All divetsions, obstruction, or changes to the natutal flow ot bed, channel, ot bank of any dvet, stream, or
lake in Califomia is subject to the regulatory approval of CDFW, putsuant to Section 7602 of the California



Fish and Game Code. An applicant must submit a notiFrcation to CDf,rW for a sreambed altetation fot any
ptoject that may tesult in an impact to a river, stream, or lake or associated riparian habitat. A notification is
required fot both direct impacts and indirect impacts, Because the proposed ptojcct is assumed to result in
some work to repair and restore the condition of Pine Creek around the bridge location, GEI will submit a

complete notification package to the CDFW Inland Desert Region O{", 6). The norification package will
include completion of Fotn FG 2023, payment of the filing fee (GEI will calculate the fee and it is assumed
the County will pay for the processing fee), quantification of riparian trees and vegetation to be removed as

part of the project, and other suppoting information from the Section 404 and WQC applicarions. CEQA
must be completed prior to CDFrW issuing a Streambed Alteration Agreement.

One agency meeting will be attended by GEI staff to discuss project charactetistics, pernit requiremcnts, and
permitting schedules, if requted. Additional telephone/email cootdination with CDF'W will be conducted
following submittal of the notification package.

Deliverables & Aesumptions

. One CDFW Section 1602 Norification Package, dtaft and final: 1 PDF/Word file.
r County will provide application fees and be rcsponsible fot mitigation costs.

Deliverables will be provided to the County electronicallyr and two hard copies rvill be provided to CDFW.

'l',tsl, .i (r{i",, l)t, \\s, st,it(.t{ t(l\ I tr}\s, ,\rD Ls t rli \'t t.s
Upon obtainirrg environmental clearance for the ptoject, MGFI will prcparc thc complete 60% PS&E
(unchecked details) package for review by the County. Completion of the 60%o PS&E will include completion
of the following subtasks:

3.1 Bridge Deriign* __ .

MGE will complete the dcsign calculations for thc new strucfute in accordance with current Cnltrans Bddge
Design Specifications, Seismic Design Ctiteria, Btidge Design Aids, and Memos to Designers. The design will
be based on the current AASHT'O LRFD Bridge Design Specifications with Intedms and Caltrans
amendrnents as well as the 2015 Standard Plans. T'he design will incorporatc tecommendations from the
Design Hydraulics Study Report and the Bridge Foundation Repott. A full set of detailcd bddge plans will be
prepared, including, as necessaly; General Plan, General Notes and Deck Contours, Foundation Plan,
Abutment Layout, Abutment Detaiis, Typical Section, Girder Layout & Reinforcemcnt, Rock Slopc
Protection Details, Miscellaneous Details, and Log of Test Borings sheets.

3,2 Approach Roadway=glg tt:l!?j:jg!_
MGE will complete the approach roadway design, traffic control, and assocrated civil dcrign details in
accotdance with the County Standards, AASHTO "A Policy on Geomettic Design of Highways and Sffeets",
Manual of Uniform'I'nfttc Conttol Devices (A4UTCD) and Calttans Highway Design Manual. A full set of
detailed approach rordway and civil plans will be prepared including, as necessary; Title Sheet, Typical Ctoss
Sections, Layou! Plan and Profile, Construction Details, 'Iraffic Control Plan and Detout, and Erosion
Control Plan sheets.

3,3 Contract Item List and I)raft Spccial Ptovisions
dt.ft;@""*tr"A;;fil;

ptoject using the Calftans 2015 Standatd Special Provisious (SSPt).

3.4 Consructioa Quantities and Cost Estimate
MGE will calculate construction quantities in accordance with standard Caltrans ptactice and specifications,
and prepare a consEuction cost estimate for the project. f'he construction cost estimate will be prepared
using local unit costs futnished by the County ot includcd in the latest Caluans Cost Data.

3.5 QualityControl/ConstructabilitJ'Review



MGE will perform a quality conttol and constructability review of the dmft 60% l'S&E. Deficiencies noted
duting thc review will be transmitted to thc responsible engineers for resolution and cotrection,

3.6 60% PS&E Submittal
MGF, will submit the 60ok plans, dtaft special provisions, atrd consttuction cost estimate for County teview
and comment. At the time of submittal MGE will work with the County to set the date for a review meeting
with the County and othet agencies as appropriate.

Deliaerablet: Planq ,|pacial Pmuisiow dy Coil Ettinate (2 hard npiu and PD?-fk)

3.7 Review Meeting

cofirments ftom County staff arrd others as appropriate. MGE will prepare minules of the revierv meetrng
including a nauatfve tegarding any colnments which have been identified by the County as requiring
additional explanatioll beyond that provided at the rneeting. It is anticipated the meeting will be a

teleconference. MGE will incorporate into the 90% design such reasonable changes as the County deerns

appropriate as a result of Counry's review ptoccsses and impact of the budget or engineet's estimate,

D e liaera h le s : Mee titg Min n tes

3.8 Filal Detetmination of Right-of-!fa1' lr1g.4.
MGE will develop drawings showing needed right-of-way takcs and easements, both temporary and
pemanent. It is not anticipated that acquisition of additional right-of-way will be required other than
tempot4ry constuction easements. The drawings will incorporate any changes tesulting from the 60% PS&E
review by the County. Included on the dtawings will be ties to survey control cstablished for the ptoject.
Also shown on the drawings will be temporary constuction stagmg ateas necessary to faciJitate construction
ofthc projcct.

Deliaerables: Temporary Constmction Ewement Mapt (hard tEiet and PDt"ft4

'l',rst { t.}{i'li, I)t.,\\s, St,l.Ct{'tr:.\ I tr)Ns, ,\\D lrls Il\L|i tls
MGE will prepare a 100ok complete PS&E package as the 90oh PS&E submittal for teview by the County.
This submittal will include revisions based on colnments from the County. Completion of the 90% PS&E
submittal package will include completion of the following subtasks:

4.1 Review and Respond to County Review Comments

cornments will be resolved through discussions with the County prior to preparing the 90oh PS&E subrnittal
package.

4.2 i::tn t994'"3jt_""_yggglg_
MGE u/ll meet with County staff to discuss environmental mitigation rneasures) petmit rcquitcments, and
cornments from the public and that will need to be addressed during completion of the final design, and agree

upon the schedule for completion of the final design,

4.3 Bridge Design
MGE will pteparc 100%o complctc btidgc dcsign
lndependent Desgn Check (IDC) and the County's

4.4 Independent Design Check (IDC)

details and calculations considering the results of the

As pat of the preparation of the 100% btidge design, an experienced btidge design engineer from MGE not
othetwise jnvolved in the design of the proiect will complete an IDC of the bridge plans in accordance with
Caltrans standard practice.

tevlew comments,

4.5 Approach Roadway and Civil Design



4.6 Utili

MGE will prepare the 100% complete apptoach roadway desigtr and associated civil plans consideting the
Couufy's review comrnents.

Conflict Plans
to County

bddge. V4rere possible

4.1 90% Spccial Ptovisions
MGE will ftnaLze the contract item list and the dtaft provisions lot tlrc pr'<rject using thc
Caltrans 2015 Standard Special Provisions (SSPt) for incolporatioo into the furrrl biel docrrrtcnts. 'Ihis task
also includes editing and combining the standard County construction conffact provisions (provided by the
County) with the edited SSP's to ptoducc a completc draft bid document for County review.

4.8 Construction ntitie s and Cost Estimate
MGE will prepare a check set of quantiry calculations in accordancc witlr standard
quantity discrepancies will be resolved prior to finalizing the quantities for use in the

practice. Any
preparation of the 90%

construction cost estimate for the project.

4.9 ua1i Conttol Rcvicw
MGE will pcrform a quality control revicw of the 907o plans, and construction cost estimate.
Results of this teview will be transmitted to the responsible engineers involved for resolution and corrections
prior to submittal to the County of the 90% PS&E.

4.10 90% PS&LI, Submittal
MGE will compile the 90o/o PS&E submittal package including complete p1ans, specificat-ions, and
constnrction cost estimate for the project to the County for revierv and commcnt. The IDC Report and
quantity calculations will also be submitted for County review. At the time of submittal, MGE will work with
thc County to set the date for a review meeting with the County and other agencies as appropriate.

Deliaerablet: Plarc, Special Pmuisiont, Co$ Estimate , IDC Repmt, dt puanti$ Calulations (2 hard cEiet and l>DF fkr)

4.11, Review Meeting
MGE, including project manager and lead design engineets, will participate in a meeting (via teleconference)
to discuss review cornments from County staff and other agencies as apptopriate. MGE will prepare
minutes of the review meeting including a narcatfve regatding any comments which have been identified by
the Counry as tequiring additional explanation beyond that ptovided at thc meeting. Upon the request of
Counry, MGE will incoqporate into the subsequent desigrr such reasonable changes as Courty deerns

appropriate as a result ofCounty's review processcs.

Diliuerabler Mnting Minatet

'l'.\$fi 5 Iil\iLr. l)t.,\N\, St,t..t;il,I{rAi r()\51 Nl) l:s lr\1,\ r l.ls I (}l{ AI)\'I,.l{'t'lsl)}l l.lN l .

5.1 Rcvicw and Respond to County Comments
MGE will review and respond to all County colnments with regatd to tlre 9070 Plans, Specifications, and
Estimates submitted for final teview. All comments vril1 be resolved through discussions with thc County
prior to preparing the final PS&E for Advertisement.

5.2 Final Plans, S fications and listimate
MGE will incorporate into the final plans, slteciRc{tions lnd cstirnatc all
County tevierv. In addition changes required to address regnlntory penrrit
into the final plans and special provisions.

5.3 Final Plans, Specifications and Estimate Submittal

churges resulting for the
be incorporatedrequirements will



MGE will compiie the final PS&E submittal package including complete plans, specifications, and
construction cost estirlrate for the ptoject to the County for approval. The final PS&E submittal delivetables
will include the following;

r Ilalf-size and full-size plans inciuding electtonic fdes used to generate the plans fonnatted for the cuffent
version of AutoCAD, as well as a.pdf version.

r Design and indcpendcnt desigrr check calculations stamped and signcd by the responsible Professional
Engineers.

r Reproduction ready cont{act Special Provisions, Notice To Contractors, Ptoposal and Contract,
including electronic MSWotd and .pdf files.

r Final construction quantity and check quantity calculation books
I Final construction cost estimate
r Anticipatedconstructionschedule
r Resident Engineet's File prepared in accotdance with Caltrans guideJines including 4-Scale deck contow

plots.

Atl elutnnicfks pill be ssbnitted on DVD.

'l 
^sK 

i) l)t.,stt;^- !i1;gr1:1)ti't l)t lrlN(; lltt)t)lN(; 1\Nl) (l()\s iltt:(I r()\

6.1 Bidding Phase Support
MGE will prepare and submit to the County for review and approv^l any addenda deemed necessary. Ari
electtonic copy of addenda items will be furnished to County. MGE viill also provide the following setvices
to the County dudng thc bidding of the project:

I Ptovide information and assistance to the County in answering questions from bidders as

rcquired
r Provide assistance with necessary plan changes to issue as addendums dudng the bidding period
r Attendance at pre-bid conference
r Review bids fot a;ccvra'cy, compliance with Contract Documents and provide recommendation

for award
r Assist County in evaluating the bids received to idenrifr and explain significant differences, if

any, between Consultant's engineer's estimate and the low bid.

6.2 Design Support during Project Construction
MGE will provide the following sewices to the County upon request during project construction:

r Provide consultation ald interpretation ofcontract plans and specifications
r Assist with pteparation ofconttact change otders
o Provide wtitten responses to Contractor's Request for Information EFD
r Attend pre-construction rneeting
r Review falsework plans, shop plans, and other required submittals
o Review and approve or disapptove all conttactor submittals for project. For disapproved

submittals, provide an explanation of deficiencies
o Participate in site visits as tequested

MGE will, upon request of the County, prepare "As-Built" Record Drawings following completion of
construction of the project the based upon marked up plans furnished by the Counry showing any changes
madc during constfilction.



Tasx 7 (Orlroruar,) RtcH'r-ol,-WA'r'

7.1 Appraisal (Optional Subtark)
Bender Rosenthal Inc. (BRI) will ptepare an appraisal for the rempof*ry coustruction enscrnent needcd to
complete the consftuction of the proiect. Tha appraisal will be dcvctopcd in complimce with USPAP
standatds. This task will also include an independent review appmisal to cornply with Caltsns and FFIVTA
policies.

7.2 Acguisition(OptionalSubtask)
BRI will prepare the necessary documents, conduct negotiations with the property owner, and provide
escto\v support and 6le close out for the acquisition work, This task assumes that a Preliminary Tide Repo*
is not needed as pefinaoent dghts are not being ftansfered,



ATTACHMENT B

AGREEMENT BETWEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MGE Enoin eenn lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF North Round Vellev Road Bridoe over Plne Creek Enoineerlno and Desion SERVtCES

TERM:

FROM: Julv 10,2018 June 30

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

Consultant shall be compensaled at the rates shown in the MGE Engineering, lnc. of Sacramento, California Cost
Proposal Sheet, as shown in the Schedule of Fees for the services described in Attachment A to the contract, Scope
of Work.

Payment for the rates and costs identified herein shall constitute full compensation for providing all services, labor,
equipment, materials, and other incidentals necessary to preform all work decribed in Attachment A to the
contract, Scope of Work.

The costs shown in this attachment are estimates of probable costs incuned by the Consultant. The total
compensation to be provided shall not exceed the total contract amount, subject to such adjustments as may
be made by properly approved amendments to the contract.

County of lnyo Stardard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Professional)

Page '10 ol 12

1010.2017



Engineering Services for North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement at Pine Creek

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed

EXHIBIT B Page I OF 3

X Primc Consultant Subconsultant
MGE Engineering, Inc.

2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant
Project No, Contract No. Date 61112018

LABOR

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases

$98,300.00

$3,390.96

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR CosTS l(r) + (b)l

(Rate: 45,00% ., ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)]
(Rate: l25.Mo/o ) g) Overhead [(c) x (0]
(Rate: 0.00Vo ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)]

FIXED FEE IO.OO%

I) CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT _ITEMIZB

nt) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional pages if necessary)

Avila & Associates

GEI

$ t01,690,96

INDIRECT COSTS

d) Fringe Benefits

f) Overhead

h) General and Administrative

$45,760,93

$127.1 13.70

$0.00

j) TOTAL INDIRECT COSTS [(e) + (s) + (i)]

k) roTAL FIXED FEII [(c) + (i)] x (q)l

edditional if

r) TOTALOTIIERDIRECT COSTS $

s172,8',74.63

$27,456.56

1,572.00

$ 3,493.17

71,417.02

Kteinfelder 42,699.76

ROAnderson r 3,064.09

Bender Rosenthal r 3,300.00

m) TOTAL SUIICONSULTANTS' COSTS $ 143,974.04

N) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS (D+(M)]

TOTAL COST [(c) + O + (k) + (n)]

$r45,546.04

$447,568. I 8

NOTES:
l. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk (r) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requircments must be marked with two asterisks
(**). All costs must comply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.

2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the consuitant's annual

accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Calrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

$

$

$

$

Classification/Titlc Name hours Aelual Hourly Ratc Total
Pro-iect Manager Robert Sennett 298 $86.00 $2s,628.00

$4.422.00Supervising Civil Engineer Stephen Hawkins 67 $66,00

$53.00 $24.698.00Senior Bridge Engineer (Design) Wesley Sennett 466

Senior Civil Eneineer (H&H & Ci Brad Reichel 294 $s0.00 $r4.700.00

Senior Bridee Ensincer {IDC) Diane Wang lt8 $62.00 $?,3 t 6.00

Senior Bridge Engineer (QC &
Constructability Review)

Ioe Seimers 24 $62.00 $r,488.00

$ 16.240.00CAD Technician Staff 406 $40.00

$28,00 $3.808.00Adminstrative Assistant Staff r36

lrlrt-
Description ofltem Quantity Unit Unit Cost Total
Mileage Costs t600 Miles $ 0,545 $ 872.00

Special Deliveries 6 Each $ 25.00 $ 150.00

Rcproduction LS N/A N/A $ 550.00

$ $

$ $

January 2018



Engineering Services for North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement at Pine Creek

EXHIBIT B Page 2 of 3

(CALCULATIONS FOR ANTICIPATED SALARY INCREASES)

l. Calculate Average Hourly Rate for Ist year of thc contract (Dircct Labor Subtotal dividcd by total hours)

2. Calculate hourly rrte for all years (Increase the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed cscalation 7o)

Direct Labor Subtotal
per Cost Proposal

$98,300.00

Total Hours

per Cost Proposal

1809

Proposed Escalation

3.5o/"

3.5o/o

3SVo

3.5o/o

3.5%
3.5o/"

Avg Hourly

Rate

$54.34

s56.24

$58,2 r

$60.25

$62.36

$64.54

$66.80

Cost per Year

$17,694.00

$67,148.73

$16,848.23

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$r0r,690.96
$98,300.00

$3,390.96

5 Year Contract

Duration

Year I Avg Hourty Rate

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 6 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 7 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated Hours Year I
Estimated Hours Year 2

Estimated Hours Year 3

Estimated l{ours Year 4

Estimated Hours Year 5

Estimated Hours Year 6

Estimated Hours Year I
Estimated llours Year 2

Estimated Hours Year 3

Estimated Hours Year 4

Estimated Hours Year 5

Estimated Hours Year 6

Year I

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

Avg Hourly Rate

$54.34

ss6.24

$58.21

$60.2s

$62.36

$64.54

Estimated %
Completed Each Year

18.00%

66.40%

t6.40%

0.40"/o

0,000/o

0.00%

100%

+

+
+
+
+
+

3. Calculnte estirnqted hours per year (Multiply cstimsae 7o each year by total hours)

Year I

Year2
Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

Total

Year I
Year2
Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

Total Hours

per Year

325.6

1193.9

289,4

0.0

0.0

0.0

1809.0

Total Hours

per Cost Proposal

1809.0

r809.0

1809.0

1809.0

1809.0

1809.0

Total

4. Calculatc Total Costs including Escalation (Multiply Avcmgc Hourly Rate by the numbcr of hours)

Avg Hourty Rate Estimated hours

(calculated above) (calculated above)

$54.34 * 325.6

$56.24 * 1193.9

$58.21 * 289.4

$60.25 * 0.0

$62.36 * 0.0

$64.54 * 0.0

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation

Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase Transfer to Page I

NOTES:

L This is not thc only way to cstimatc salary incrcascs. Othcr mcthods will be accepted ifthey clcarly indicate the % increase, the # ofyears ofthe contract, and a

breakdown ofthe labor to bs performed each year.

2. An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase % multiplied by the # olyears is not acceptable-
(i.e. $250,000 x 2% x 5 yrs = $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)

3. This assumes lhat one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted,

4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation rqust be provided.

January 2018



Engineering Services for North Round Valley Road Bridge Replacement at Pine Creek

Certification of Direct Costs:

I, the undersigned, certi| to the best of my knowledge and beliefthat all direct costs identified on the cost proposal(s) in this contract are

actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the c,ontract in accordance with the contract terms and the following requirements:

I Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
2 Terms and conditions ofthe contract
3 Title 23 United States Code Section I l2 - Letting of Contracts

4 48 Code ofFederal Regulations Part 3l - Contract Cost Principles and Procedures

5 23 Codc of Fcderal Regulations Part 172 - Procuremcnt, Management, and Administration of Engineering and Design Relatcd
Service

6 48 Code ofFederal Regulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board (when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must bc rctaincd in the project files and

be in compliance with applicable federal and state requirem€nts. Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are

not eligible for reimbursement.

Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted Indilect Cost Rate(s).

Plime ConsultnFLor Subconsultant Ccrtifvlns:

Namc:

Signature I

Email:

Address:

Robert Sennett Title *: Vice President

412312018

r_te n_r.l elt @ nge,e ng-con

Date of Ceftification (mm/ddlyyyy):

Phone Number:

7415 Greenhaven Drive, Suite t00, Sacramento, CA 95831

916-421-1000

*An individual executive or financial officer ofthe consultant's or subconsultant's organization at a level no lower than a Vice President or
a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for
the eontract.

List services the consultant is under the contract:

l'rinrc Consultant for Engineering Services for North Round Valley Road Bridge (No. 48C0044) ovcr Pine Creek

January 2018



MGE ENGINEERING, INC.
coSTPROPOSAt

NORTH ROUND VALLEY ROAD BRIDGE (No.48COO44) OVER plNE CREEKPROJECT

TASK O

TASK 3

0.1

3.8

4.1

2.2

2.3

TASK 4

4.1

4.t 1

5 3,967.92

S 3,017.52

S*-lt3t
ilosar;
S 89.2?s.23

S 1i,111.36

S 2,043.36

5-
TE;s3^ro

5 43,584.82

s l8;s6i6
S 3,065.04

$ ,riil2o

-
S zss2.39
S 4,776.s4

F
6

-
s 10,216.80

5 10,216.s0

S 3,06s.04

10,525.68

4894.56
4.247-70

S 4639.14
F €Js?r1
S 15.s2R cq

3,528.36

, 3.7a9.72

64,277.34

5

2s.289.ss

n

s--- -n
F--- .n

s

=S . lr

s

o

o

5rE

$

S 13,064.09

$ 13,0040,

-s-

-

$

s

s

S 42.699.76

744rrr,.?6

-s-m

q

m

)-

9-n
5 7,o7L.ss
S 3.7s4-96

s 60,590.61

l7rArl..or

.

r--+

.g

&6

'5

ru

s

S 3,493.17

*,4r3r?E

$m

I

s

T-+5 9,147.60 I
-;;;SKT

S 10,216.80

F 1o216.eo
S 3pGa4
S ls,111.36

S 4639.14
3 4*0,
3 rr€s.+,
5 88s.06

5 4085.72
$ s,619.24E
5 i14,892.54

$ 20,576.1G

S 2793.2s
s 3.623.40

F 3.s6zq

I

1,053.26

757.35

15,239,95

18.414.00

5 2,043.36

s

T 4o,6s3:6

5 3,017.52

S 7s7.3s

s ?"6s6.ro
s 8!r,27S.23

5 x0,525.68

5 4,894.s5

5 4.247.70

3,789.72

3,528.36

c4,2!7.34
757.35

S 757.3q

I

E

r32
12

10
40

232

22

81

121

217n
2

4

l6
22n

3t2
148
M

---t--
22

4

5

24

l8

4
392

4

164

,9

9
g

.E

I08

I08

4

4n
o

-

4

4

8

8

ts
6
3

2

40

---4,2

-
on

140

_*_!9_

- 16

221

84

40

3s:;
Es'&a
e5
.:3
6E

#s

o

--o

-
o

.
--16

't6

I

I

o

'tr

!9.iv

0

-;-T

oE

0

t6

lt6

2

I
adg

p3
,>U
!o
.9

o

4

I

4

48

29

r57.47

'Fo

r?

Ed-i6

.9

0

lo

40

54

-
0

-
160

-nr
l6

1

- ,05

2

2

86

6t

q

.a

.g

.g

o

8

8

-
on
s
4

I
I

2l

4

I

lt

'|

9

40
40

124

I

12

35

- l6
22n
1a

8

2

4
2

---- ,9-

I

6

3l

1

l5

be

ond

Preliminary Enginqing Sludies ond Reporlr

Tork fohl llour
PemilsStudiet

ond

CEOA

Pemits

Brldge Design

HouK
Specificoiiona & Edimcte

Flnol Detemlnotlff

Review ond

909/6 PS&E Submlftdl

Fhol Plons, Specificotions & Estimde
Revlew ond ResFnd to Coonty Review Comenl
Finol Plonr, Speciflcotlons & Estimote Prcporotlon
Finol Plon5. Speclikorlons & Eilmdte Submitrql

Tosk Tot6l Hocr6
ord

5



S xo,oz1,14

5 1,s72.00

S 442568.19

-
S 7,1so.oo

F 6,iso"oo

3?-roooo
ffi.oo'

$ 13,300.00I13,06409

s-3itffi;

$ 42,09e.?6

=

S 7r,417.a2

S 7t,4t7,ozffi7

902.8

s 27,722.U

=ss-r--:-
I 29r"9sr.m
I 10,071.14rffi
T5658fi

t14
4

t48

- o
t.809

4
4

=
oT-

l6
t6

ffi

o

-il-

o

=
-;-

24

0

=-l--
lr3

60
60ffi
oz;-

l5
It

--T-
67

2

42m
--T--

29e

Tatk Tolol llours

Construction

Tark Tordl

cEnd



Noa!: lllk W. F Nd ,\llqDd
Co.soltrnl:
ProJcct No

Avila and Associatos
11{ Nqh Vallov B{sd nridac ovd Firrc

EXHIBIT B

Paina Consolls.t
Cdtmcl No

f, Subconsultrnr
T8D

2nd TiorSubconsullrnl
Df,ler 4122D018

s 1,5 I 7.:13

$3 l7 56

LABOR COSTS

o) Sublolol Dircc! LrborCcb
b) Anticipaled Solory tncrcoss

tNDIRECI COSTS

d)Frin8cBe,rcnB(Rotc>t'-Xi6
0 Ovcrhurd {Rrtc): Z2t9%
h) Crcncrrl dndAdmirisudtirc (Rot€ 35.15%

F'IXEl' F'EE

$1,658.28

$0.00

c) TOTAI, DIRF.CT LADOR COSTS (o)+(__M!l!

e) Tohl Frin8e Bqrclits (c) x

B) OvcdEsd l(c) , (t)l
i) Cao & Admin [(c) r (l!]l

{d)i $553.20

,-,,,'.-$1gr24
Lllil.89

D TOTAL lt{DrRECr COSTS (c) +(g) + (i)l

TOTAL FIXSO PROfIIT
h) {(o) + (i)l : Fircd Fso

10./"

lhit lltria Cftl Tdtal

frlYol/MilooSc Cosb (su!!onc{
rv CGtrl&schsl6( nrk: $0.{n
tsqurpmcnt K0il81 and Juppx6

gtfr) m s0 00

Shqols (cech), T6l Hols (coch),

f0.00
SrbconNlknt Cosb (dlleh
Ccloilcdcosl proldol i[ {ilc
lirtrril nrrridc ontr trlMl co.frt
Shippin8 ond copiss

s50 0t) s0 00

{om

s0 00

f,om

D TOTALOTHER DIRECT COS'S
m) SUICONSULTANT'S COSTS (Add addilionrl pAg.t if nccerJ')

Subconsulhni l:
Submnsulhnt 2:

Subcdslbil 3i

Ticr Subcm$lhol4:
mITOTAL2ndTIf,RSUBCONSULTANT'SCO.STS . *-$0.00(n)1-*-J!-gg--

TOTAL COST I(c) + (i) + ft) + (n)] $3,493 t7

NOTESI
. Kcy PoNmcl EJll tp mrrkcd $ilh an atorisk (.) dd rmplo'es thlt d@ lubj4l lo p(evDiling w6gq rcquircmcnl! nr!3t bo mflrkcd Nilh
neoaslcrislis(r.).All6sBmrs(@mplyNi0lfteFedcrolCetPrinciplcs Sub{Fn$lbtrbrvillproyidclhei.oNncostpropcols
. Thc .6t p.oposl lmot shlll rct bc Enondcd lndirFl 6t rltcs slull bc lpdrbd on u lnnual bosis in ecorducc silh lhc consultdl's
oMurl occoulling pcriod ord csloblishcd by a cotnizd sgcncy dfteptsd by Cdltms
. Anticipatcd 8610.y iNrees colcul!(ion (D!ge 2) msleconrplny

Cl.(ln.rdnnnlll. Tolnl

Prcjccl MaDger
Sr.Civil Enginccr

Ca6y Avih
Td4B-car'lglql

. . ._............. E$!-c-l-sp.{!!!U!-. ...

Scv-cL!'.ms 
-.

Neil Storcy
!!4{! Engqgr....--,.......,-.. .

GIS Spccidlisl

t6q
40
00
00
00

stt7.

s0.00

$0m
!g 00

..-.3.9,00 ..

s0.00

s6273
$60

s5l.
37078

som

..._,s0 d)
$0 n0

ft a,tR rn

Janusry 20lt



EXHIBIT B

l, Cslculat€ Av€rsge ltourly Rite for lst y€rr ofthe contract (Direct Lebor Subtohl divlded by totsl hou 48C0044 North Valley Road Bridge ov€r Pine Cre

Direct Labo{ Subtolal
per Cost Proposal

$1,658.28

Conrp,eted Each Yeflr

100.00%

4.000/o

0.00%

0.00olo

0.00%

100%

Tolal Hours
per Cost Proposal

20

Total Iloun
per Cost Proposal

20.0

20.0

20.0

20.o

20.0

Total

Avg Hourly
Rate

Tolal Hours
per Year

20.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

20.0

Ycar 2 Avg Houdy
Rate

Year 3 Avg Hourly
Rate

Year 4 Avg Hourly
Rate

Y€ar 5 Avg Hourly

Rate

Eshmat€d Houls Year
I
Estimated Hours Year
2

Estimated Hours Year
3

Estinrated Hours YeBr
4

Estimated Hours Year

5

Estimated Hours Year
I

Estimated Hours Year

2

Estimated Hours Year
3

Estimated Hours Year
4

Eslimated Hours Year
5

5 Yesr Contract

Duration

$g2.91 Yeu I AvgHourly

2, Calculate hourly rate for all yesrs (lncreasc the Aversge Hourly Rale for a ymr by proposcd escatrtion

Avg Hourly Rate Proposed Escalation

Yearl $82.91 + 3.00Yo = $85.40

Ycar? $85.40 t 3.0DVo = $87.96

Year3 $87.96 + 3.00o/o = $90.60

Year4 $90.60 + 3.0ff/o -- $93.32

3. Cslculate estimated hours per yeer (Multiply cstlmate o/o each year by totol horrs)

Estimat€d o/o

Y€ar I

Year2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Total

4. Cslcnlate Total Costs including trlscolalion (Mulliply Averoge Hourly Rste by thc number of horrs)

Avg Hourly Rate Eslinrated houn
(calculated above) (celculated above) cost per Year

Yearl $82.91 * 20.0 = $1,658.28

Yeat2 $85.40 * 0.0 = $0,00

Year3 $87.96 a 0.0 = $0.00

Year4 $90.60 * 0.0 = $0.00

Years $93.32 * 0.0 = $0.00

Total Direcl Laborcost wilh Escalaiion = $1,658,28
Direcl Labor Subtotal before Escalation = $1,658.28

Estimatedtolol ofDirectlaborsal8ry = $0.00

NOTES;

Transf€r to Page t

'l'his is nol the only way to estimate salary incr€oJcs. Otbsr mclhods will be acc€pted ifthey olearly indic8te the 0/o increase,

th€ # ofye0rs ofthe contracl, and a breakdown of the labor to be performed each year.

An €slimation that is based on direcl labor mulliplied by salary increasc 7o multiplied by the # ofyeam is nol acceptablo.
(i e. $250,000 x 2flo x 5 ym = $25,000 is noi m acceptablo methodology)

This assumes that one year will be worked st lhe rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

Jrnuary 2018



EXHIBIT B

Certification of Direct Costs:,

I, the undersigned, certiff to the best of my knowledge and belief that all direct costs identified on the

cost proposal(s) in this contract are actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in
accordance with the contract terms and the following requirements:

L Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

2. Terms and conditions of the contract

3. Title 23 United States Code Section!12 - Letting of Contracts

4. 4Slcodc ol'Fedcral llggglgliotrlllalLll! - Contract Cost Principles and Procedures

5. ?3!p-c!9-sU:edci:d3cC!th!ig$-l'nrt l7? - Procurement, Management, and Administration of
Engineering and Design Related Service

6. .18 Llode ol'Fetlcrfll Rcgulqlions Part t)90,1 - Cosl Aeeountinc $lanclards Roard (when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must

be retained in the project files and be in compliance with applicable federal and state requirements. Costs

that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are not eligible for reimbursement.

Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizantagency approved or Caltrans accepted

Indirect Cost Rate(s).

Primc Consultsnt or Subcopsullnnt Certifvins:

Name: Catherine M.C. Avila Title*: President

Signature: Date of Certilication (mm/dd lWyy}_qml20l8_

Email: cavila(&avilaassociatps Phone Number : 925-673-0549

Address: Tl2Bancroft Road #333, Walnut Creek, CA 94598

*An individual executive or financial officer ofthe consultant's or subconsultant's organization at a level

no lower than a Vice President or a Chief Financial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent

the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal forthe contract.

List services the consultant is under the contract:

Hydraulics and Scour Analysis

January 2018



Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed Prime Consultint

EXHIBIT B

SubconsIlt{nt
GEI Consultsnts Inc.

2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultant
Project No. North Round Valley Road Bridge Conhact No. Inyo County #156 Date 6i ti20l8

Classilication/Title Namc hours Actu|l Hourlv Rate Totsl
Senior Professional Ray Weiss 50 $62.80 $3.140.00

Ssnior Archaeolosist Denise Jurich 24 $59.88 $ r,437. l2
Senior Wildlife Bioloeist Kellv Fitzeerald-Holland ) $s4.28 $108.56

Reeulatorv Soecialisi Sarah Norris 160 $55.68 $8.908.80

Staff Biolosisl Devin Barav t4 $30.96 $433.44
Staff Bioloeist / GIS Brook Constantz r00 $23.48 $2.348.00

Senior Historian Madeline Bowen 4 $46.80 $ 187.20

Proiect Archaeolosist Jesse Martinez 58 $43.28 s2.sr0.24

Architectural Historian Patricia Ambacher 36 $39.44 $ 1.419.84

Dooument Specialist Charisse Case t4 $3s.24 $493.36

Graphic Artist Maria Pascoal t4 $41.48 $s80.?2

LABOR COSTS

a) Subtotal Direcl LaborCosts

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

476

$21,567.28

c) rorAl DrREcr LABffi \,s67,2:t
INDIRECTCOSTS
d) Fringe Bensfits

f1 Overhead and G&A
h) General and Administrative

FIXED IIEE

(Rato:

(Rate:

(Rate:

92,52o/o ) e) Total Fringe Benefits I(c) x (d)l

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITf,MIZf, additlonnl

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add rdditional pages if nccessary)

$19,9s4.05

g) Overhead t(o) x (Dl

i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)]
$22,039.60

$0.00

j) TOTAL INDIRECT cosTs (e) + (s) + (i)I $4t,993.6s

k) TOTAL TIXED FEE [(c) + O] x (q)l $6,356.09

if nccc.rsn

r)TOTAL cosTs $ I,500.00

1A2.t9% )
4.00o/o )

t0.00%

$

$

$

$

$

m) TOTAL SUBCONSUI,TANTS' COSTS $

n) TOTAL OTHER DTRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)] _ $1,500.00

roTAL coST [(c) + 0) + G) + (n)] 371t17.02

NOTES:

l. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked with two asterisks

irt). All costs must comolv with the Federal cost DrinciDles. Subconsultants will orovide their own cost DroDosals.

January 2018

Ul,L

Descriolion of ltem Ourntitv tJnit Unit Cost Totrl
Milease Costs $ !

$900 $ 900.00Cultural Resources Rscords Search I
$400 $ 400.00Document Production Costs 1.00$

40 $ 5.00 s200 $ 200.00

$ $



2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance with the consultant's annual

accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepled by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) rnust accompany.

January 2018



EXHIBIT B

l. Calculate Average llourly Rate for lst year ofthe contrsct (Direct Lrbor Subtotrl divided by totrl hours)

2. Calculate hourly rate for all years (Increrse the Averagc Hourly R{Je for a yelr by proposed escalatlon 7o)

Direct Labor Subtotai
per Cost Proposal

$21,567,28

Total Hours

per Cost Proposal

476

Proposed Escalation

3.5o/o

3.5%

3,50/o

3.5o/o

3.5o/o

3.5%

Avg Hourly

Rate

$45.3 r

$46.90

$48.54

$50.24

$5 t .99

$53.8 r

$55,70

Cost per Year

5 Year Contract

Duration

Year I Avg Hourly Ratc

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 6 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 7 Avg Hourly Rote

Estimated Hours Year I
Ilstimated Hours Year 2

Estimated Hours Year 3

Estimated Hours Year 4

Estimated Hours Year 5

Estimated Hours Year 6

Estimated Hours Year 1

Estimated Hours Year 2

Estimated Hours Year 3

Estimatcd Hours Year 4

Estimated Hours Year 5

Estimated Hours Year 6

Transfer 1o Page I

Year I
Year2
Ycar 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

Avg Hourly Rate

$45.3 I
$46.90

$48.s4

$50.24

$s1.99

$s3,81

Estimatcd %
Completed Each Year

100.00%

0.00o/o

0.40o/o

0.00o/o

0.00o/o

o.0a%

t00%

+
+

+

+

3. Crlculrte estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate 7o each year by total ftours)

Year I

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

Total

t

*

Total Hours

per Cost Proposal

476.0

476.0

476.0

476.0

476.4

476.4

Totf,l

Total Hours

per Year

476.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

476.0

$2t,s67.28

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$2t,567.28

$2r,s6'1.28

$0.00

4, Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rrte by the number of hours)

Year I

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

Avg Hourly Rate Estimated hours

(calculated above) (calculated above)

$45.31 * 476.0

$46.90 * 0.0

$48.54 * 0.0

$50.24 * 0.0

$51.99 * 0.0

$53.81 * 0.0

Tohl Dircot Labor Cost with Escalation

Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total ofDiroct Labor Salary Increase

t\u ttJ:
L This is not lhe only way to cslimate salary increases. Other mslhods will be accepted ifthey clearly indicate the % inorease, lhe # ofyears ofthe contract, and a

breakdown ofthe labor to be performed each year.

2. An cslimation that is based on direct labor mulliplied by salary increase 7o nultiplied by the # ofyears is not acceptablo.

(i.e. $250,000 x 2% x 5 yrs : $25,000 is not an acceptable methodology)

3, This assumes that one year will be worked at lhe rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

4. Caloulations for anticipated salary escalalion must be provided.

lonrror.r lOtQ



Certification of Direct Costs:

I, the undersigned, certiry to the best ofmy knowledge and beliefthat all direct costs identified on the cost proposal(s) in this contract arc

actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in accordance with the conhact terms and the following requirements;

I Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)

2 Terms and conditions of the contract

3 Titlez3 United States Code Section I 12 - Irtting of Contracts

4 48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 3 I - Contract Cost Principles and Procedures

5 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and Administration of Engineering and Design Related

Service

6 48 Code ofFederal Regulations Paft9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board (when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fairly to all contracts, All documentation of compliance must be retained in the project files and

be in compliance with applicable federal and state requiremcnts. Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are

not etigible for reimbursement.

local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted Indircct Cost Rate(s).

Prinre Consultant or Subconsultrnt Certlfvlnqi

Name; Phil Dunn Tille *l Vice Presldent

/l&ur'./ {' (.),-,-,,- 6112t20',t8Signature

Email:

Address:

sdustr@Reiego$ I tants.com

Date of Certifi cation (mm/dd/yyyy);

Phone Number: (916) 6314500

2868 Prospect Park Drive. Suite 400. Rancho Cordova- CA 95670

*An individual executive or financial officer ofthe consultant's or subconsultant's organization at a level no lower than a Vice President or
a ChicfFinancial Officeq or equivalent, who has authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for

the contract.

List services the consultant is under the contract:

January 2018



Consultant
Projecl Name

Project No.

DIRECTLABOR

I erim. Consultant fflSubconsultant
Kleinfelder. Inc
North Round Valley Raod Bridge Replacemen

Contract No, N/A

LABOR COSTS
a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs
b) Estimaled Salary lncreases for Multi-Year Project

INDIRECT COSTS
d) Flingo Bcnofib (Ralc:61.8%):
0 -Overhead (Rate: 169.70lo)l
h) Gcncral AdminHre0on (Rets: 107.8%):

FIXED FEE
k) Fixod Foo (10.0%):

c)

e) Tolal Fringe Benefils t(c) x (d)l $5,610.51
g) Overhead t(c) x (01

i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)l $9,783.01

D ToTAL INDIRECT cosTs I(e) + (g) + (i)l

Date 411612018

$9,072.63

$15,393.52

l) TOTAL FIXED FEE t(c) + Ol x (k) $2,446 61

CoNSULTANT'S OTHER DTRECT COSTS (ODC)
T|avel (@ ac(ve IRs mtteage rcte) 1600
LaboratoryTests 1

Shipping 1

Per Diem/Lodging 1

P€rmits 1

Brass Sample Tubes 30

@
@
@
@
@
@

$0.545
$2,915.00
$325.00
$620.00
$500,00

6.5

$872.00
$2,915.00

$325.00
$620.00
$500.00

95.00

m) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS

n) SUBCONSULTANT COSTS @ttach detailed cost proposat for each subconsuttant)

Analytical Tesling (Corrosion) 1 $320.00
Drilling 1 $10,040.00

$10,360.00

o) TorAL cosr I(c) + (i) + (l) + (m) + (n)t@
NOTES:
1. Key personnel marked wilh an asterisk (').
2. Employ€es subject to prevalllng wage marked with t\,\,o asterlsks (.'),
3. Anticipated salary increasas calculation (ltem"b") on attached page.

$5,427.00

$10,360.00

1.,-,,,,-,.-, ,rvuu e,,,ye !v,,v!v ww ttter, Lvtvl.^tv^et

Clsssificrtion/Title Namc lnitiale Range Hours Inirisl
Hnrrrlv Rnle

Total

35 $ 86.13 $ 3.014.55Sr Principal Prof
s 1.5't8,00Princioal Prof 22 $ 69.00
s 3,862_08Staff Proff ll 108 $ 35.76

Senior CADD Desioner 10 $ 35.76 $ 357.60

Proiecrt Administrator I 6 $ 25.62 $ 1s3.72



EXHIBIT B

Note: lVlark-ups are Not Allorved Prlme Consullant subconsultsnl 2nd Tier Subconsultant

Consultrnt R.O.Anderson Inc.
Project No.

LABOR COSTS

a) Subtotal Direct LaborCosls

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 for calculation)

INDIRECT COSTS

d) Fringe Benefits

f) Overhead

h) General and Administrative

$4,514.19

$0'00

c) TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS I(.) + (b)l

(Rate:;!!!![_ ) e)Total Fringe Benefits t(c) x (d)]

{Rate: 96.050/o

(Rater 0.007o )

$r,93s.6s

g) Overhead [{c) x (Dl $a,335.79

i) Gen & Admin {(c) x (h)l $0.00

j)ToTALINDIRECTCOSTS Ke)+(s)'t'(i)l $6,271.44

k) T0TAL FIXDD FEE [(c) + O] x (q)l *" $1,078.55

RBCT $1,200.00

ContractNo. TBD Date 412512018

$4,5 14. l 0

FIXED FEE 10.00o/o

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS -ITEMIZT] additionsl lf

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional prges lf nccessary)

m) TOTAL SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS

n) TOTAL OTHDR DIRECT COSTS INCLIJDING SITBCONSULTANTS (l)+(m)l

TOTAL COST I(c) + (i) * (k) + (n)l

$0.00

$1,200.00

$13,064.09

NOTES:

l. Key personnel must be marked with nn asterisk (t) and employees that are subject to prevailing rvage requirements must be marked rvith two asterisks

(**). All costs must comply r4,ith the Federal cost principles, Subconsultants lvill provide their own cost proposals.

2, The cost propossl format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an annual basis in accordance rvith the consultant's annusl

accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.

3. Anticipated salary increases caleulation (page 2) must accompany.

Clsrsilicatlon/Title Name hours lAclunl Hour'lv Rate Totnl
Proj€ct Mrnager* Cory Kleine 141 $48.08 s673,t2

Chiefof PartY** Jerit Shuman 321 $48.86 $ I,563.52

Chainman/Rodmanr* Lucas Wangow 12li $45,78 $1,464,96

Office work* Jerit Shuman 25|. $32.r0 $8r2.50

0l $0.00 $0.00

Unlt Cost TotalDescllption of Item Quantity Unit
$150.00 $600.00Travel/Per Diern - Jerlt Shuman 4
s150.00 $600.00Tra*UPer Diem - Lucas Warlgorv 4

$$

$$

$$

$

$

$

$

$

January 2018



Certification of Direct Costs:

[, the undersigned, certi! to the best ofmy knowledge and beliefthat all dilect costs identified on the cost ploposal(s) in this contract at'e

actual, r'easonable, allorvable, and allocable to the contmct in accordance with the contl'act terms and the following rcquirements:

I Generally Accepted Accounting Plinciples (GAAP)

2 Terms and conditions of the contmct

3 Title 23 United States Code Section I 12 - Letting of Contracts

4 48 Code ofFederal Regulations Palt 3l - Contruct Cost Plinciples and Procedures

5 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Plocurementn Management, and Administration of Engineering and Design Related

Service

6 48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Slandal'ds Board (when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and failly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must be letained in the project files and

be in compliance wilh applicable federal and state requh'emenls. Cos{s that are noncompliant with the federal and state requil'ements are

not eligible for reimbursement.

Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency appl'oved ot'Caltt'ans accepted Indirect Cost Rate(s).

o. CFM Title *:Name;

Signature

Email:

Address;

Date of Certi fication (mm/dd/yyyy):

Phone Number: 775.782.2322

1603 Esmeralda Avenue. Minden, NV 89423

*An individual executive or financial officer ofthe consultant's ol subconsultant's organization at a level no lower than a Vice Presidcnt or

a Chief Financial Officer, ol equivalent, who has authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for'

the conttact,

List seryices the consultant is undel the contract:

R.O, Anderson Engineering will be rcsponsible for data collection, mapping, and sulveying necessary for'preliminaty engineeling, design,

estimates, and right-of-way locations. Specifically, the topogaphic suwey will include contt'ols fol leestablishing the roadway outside

limits; apploach o1300-400' at each end ofthe roadway; and channel cross sections up and down stteam, extending 300-400'

and below the bridge and from one edge of the floodplain to the other, Resealch will be conducted to identify limits of existing ROW

any additional ROW needs as well as existing easements and ownelship ofadjacent propedies, Services will also include legal

fol temporary easements for construction staging areas.

January 2018



ATTACHMENT C

AGREEMENT BETVIIEEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MGE Enoineerino. lnc.

FOR THE PROVISION OF North Round Vallev Road Bridoe ovgr Pine Creek Enolneerlno and Desion SERVtCES

TERM:

FROM: 10 20 To: June 30,2021

SCHEDULE OF TRAVEL AND PER DIEM PAYMENT:

The Consultant / subconsultanls shall be compensated at the rates shown on Attachment B: Milsage
Costs.

County of lnyo Stardard Contract - No. 156
(lndependent Consultant - Profeseiorial)

Page11of12
rc102o17



ATTACHMENT D

AGREEMENT BE'I1'l'EEN COUNTY OF INYO

AND MGE lnc.

FORTHE PROVISION OF North Round Valley Brldoe over Pine Creek

TERM:

FROM: Julv 1 o,2018

and Deslsn SERVICES

June 30 2021

SEE ATTACHED IN8URANCE PROVISIONS

County of lnyo Slandard Contraot - No. 156
(lndependent Coneultant - Professlonal)

Page 12ot 12

10102017



Specifications 2
Insurance Reet uirements for Professional Serviceq

Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against claims
for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the
performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, representatives, or employees.

MINMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSTJRANCE

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): lnsurance Services Office Form CG 00
01 covering CGL on an "occurence" basis for bodily injury and property damage,
including products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury,
with limits no less than $1,000,000 per occrrrence. lf a general aggregate limit
applies, either the general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this
projecUlocation or the general aggregate limit shall be twice the required
occunence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: lnsurance Services Office Form Number CA 0001
covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if Consultant has no owned autos, Code I (hired)
and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than $500,000 per accident for bodily injury
and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with
Statutory Limits, and Employer's Liability lnsurance with limit of no less than
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury or disease.
(Not required if consultant provides written verification it has no

employees)

1. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions) Insurance appropriates to the Consultant's
profession, with limit no less than $1rfi)0r000 per occurence,

If the Consultant maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the Entity
requires and shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the Consultant.
Any available insurance proceeds in excess of the specified minimum limits of insurance and
coverage shall be available to the Entity.

Other fnsurance Provisions

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Ad ditional I n su red Sfatus

L The Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered
as additional insureds on the CGL policy with respect to liability arising out of work
or operations performed by or on behalf of the consultant including materials, parts,
or equipment furnished in connection with such work or operations. General liability
coverage can be provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant's
insurance (at least as broad as ISO Form CG 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10 and CG
20 37 forms if later revisions used).



Other I ns ur ance Provi sio n s

The insurance policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

Primary Coverage
For any claims related to this contract, the Consultant's insurance coverage
shall be primary insurance as respects the Entity, its officers, officials,
employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the
Entity, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the
Consultant's insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Notice of Cancellation
Each insurance policy required above shall state that coverage shall not be
canceled, except with notice to the Entity.

Waiver of Subrogation
Consultant hereby grants to Entity a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said
Consultant may acquire against the Entity by virtue of the payment of any loss under such
insurance. Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this
waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the Entity has

received a waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer.

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by
the Entity, The Entity may require the Consultant to provide proof of ability to pay
losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses
within the retention.

Ac c e ptab i I ityr of I n s u re rs
lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less
than A:Vll, unless otherwise acceptable to the Entity.

Claims Made Policies
lf any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made basis:

1. The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the date of the contract
or the beginning of contract work.

2. lnsurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for
at least five (5) years; after completion of the contract of wor*.

3. lf coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-
made policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date,
the Consultant must purchase "extended reporting" coverage for a minimum of
five (5) years after completion of contract work.

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shallfurnish the Entity with original certificates and amendatory
endorsements or copies of the applicable policy language etfecting coverage
required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received and
approved by the Entity before work commences. However, failure to obtain the
required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the Consultant's
obligation to provide them. The Entity reserves the right to require complete,



certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
required by these specifications, at any time.

Subcontractors
Consultant shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the
requirements stated herein.

Special Rislcs or Arcunatunces
Entity reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on
the nature of the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special
circumstances.



In the Rooms of the Board of Superwisors
County of Inyo, State of California

I, HEREBY CERTIFY, that at a meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Inyo, State of California,

held in their rooms at the County Administrative Center in Independence on the 20'h dayof August20lgan order was duly

made and entered as follows:

Public Works -
MGE Engineering
Contract
Amendment 1

Moved by Supervisor Kingsley and seconded by Supervisor Griffiths to approve Amendment No.
'1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and MGE Engineering lnc. of Sacramento, CA,
increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $453,288.81 and adding a job classification
to the approved Schedule of Fees, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained. Motion carried unanimously 4-0, with Supervisor
Tillemans absent.

WITNESS my hand and the seal of said Board this 20th

Day of Ausust, 2019

CLINT G. QUILTER
Clerk of the Board of Supemisors

Routing

cc
Purchasing
Personnel
Auditor

cA0
Other PublicWorks

DATE: August22,2019

By:

.ti t al L', t
eF<: -<i t/;tt;-



trry

County of Inyo

Public Works

CONSENT . ACTION REQUIRED
MEETING: August 20, 2019

FROM:

RE:

Amendment 1 to the Contract with MGE Engineering lnc for engineering services related to the Round Valley
Bridge Replacement Project

RECOMMENDED ACTION:
Request Board approve Amendment No. 1 to the agreement between the County of lnyo and MGE Engineering
lnc. of Sacramento, CA, increasing the contract to an amount not to exceed $453,288.81 and adding a job
classification to the approved Schedule of Fees, and authorize the Chairperson to sign, contingent upon all
appropriate signatures being obtained.

SU MMARY/JUSTIFIGATION :

Your Board approved the design contract with MGE Engineering lnc. on July 10, 2018, for the completion of the
North Round Valley Bridge Replacement Project design.

This amendment adds the Associate Bridge Engineer job classification to the Schedule of Fees for MGE. This
classification was overlooked in the consultants initial cost proposal, and is an important component of the bridge
drafting work. There are no cost increases associated with this addition.

The amendment also adds to the scope of work of MGE's environmental sub-consultant GEI for the completion of
the environmental review of the Round Valley Bridge Replacement Project under the California Environmental
Quality Act, as further explained in Attachment A-1. The cost associated with this additional scope is $5,720.63,
which is detailed in Attachment B-1.

BACKGROUND/HISTORY OF BOARD ACTIONS:
Contract between MGE Engineering lnc and lnyo County approved on July 10,2018

ALTERNATIVES AND CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION:
The Board could choose not to approve the amendment to the contract, this is not recommended since this is a
no cost change order that corrects an oversight in the original cost proposal.

OTHER AGENCY INVOLVEMENT:
Project partially funded by California Office of Emergency Services

/ 1,1:11t{



Agenda Request
Page 2

FINANGING:
The cost of the contract are paid through budget unit 034600 (Road Budget), object code 5265 (Professional
Services). This project is reimbursable at a rate of 75o/o by the California Office of Emergency Services. The cost
associated with this additional scope is $5,720.63.

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Amendment 1 to MGE Contract
2. MGE Contract



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF INYO AND

MGE ENGINEERING INC
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

WHEREAS, the County of Inyo (hereinafter referred to as "County") and MGE Engineering of
Sacramento. CA (hereinafter referred to as "Consultant"), have entered into an Agreement for the provision of
engineering services dated July 10" 20 1 8 , on County of Inyo Standard Contract No, 156, for the term from
July 10.2018 to Trrne 30. 2021.

WHEREAS' such Agreement provides that it may be modified, amended, changed, added to, or
subtracted from, by the mutual consent of the parties thereto, if such amendment or change is in written form, and

executed with the same formalities as such Agreement, and attached to the original Agreement to maintain
continuity.

WHEREAS' County and Consultant do desire and consent to amend such Agreement as set forth below,

1, Section 3D, Limit upon amount payable under Aereement, the first sentence is revised as follows

The total sum of all payments made by the County to Contractor for services and work performed under
this Agreement shall not exceed $453.288.81 (initial term) $ N/A (option l) and $ N/A (option 2) for a
total of $453.288.8 1 (four hundred fifty three thousand. two hundred eighty eight dollars and eightv one

cents), hereinafter referred to as "Contract Limit"

2. Attachment A to the Contract, Scope of Work, shall be revised to include additional tasks required for the
completion of the environmental review of the Round Valley Bridge Replacement Project under the

California Environmental Quality Act, as described in Attachment A-1 to the Contract.

3. Attachment B to the Contract, Schedule of Fee's is amended to include the job classification described in
Attachment B-1 to the Contract, and to include the cost proposal for the additional work described in
Attachment A-l to the Contract.

The effective date of this amendment to the Agreement is August 20. 2019

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement are unchanged and shall remain the same.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page I



AMENDMENT NUMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COITNTY OF INYO AND

MGE ENGINEERING INC
r.OR THE PROVISION OF'ENGINEERING AI\ID DESIGN SERVICES

- IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET TIIEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS29 ox oF -Auqus h' .zots.

CONSULTANT

By:

r-

APPROVEDAS TOFORMAND
LEGALITY:

Dated:

County Risk Manager

County of Inyo Standard Conhact-No. 156 wilh MGE
Amendment I

Page2

1rn^ilr,I^
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING

Auditor

AS TOPERSONNEL

t
of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK ASS



AMENDMENTIITUMBER- L TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COIJNTT OX'INYO AI\D

MGI ENGINEERING INC
x'oR THE PRovI$om DEsrcN snRvrcEs

INWITMSS PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET TIMIR HANDS AND SEALS TTIIS2Q pw os 2019.

COUNTYOFINYO CONSULTANT

By:
'e6Sg g^frfr

Dated:

APPROVEDAS TOFORMAND
LEGALITY:

County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING

Auditor

AS TOPERSONNEL

By:

Dated: B-28-20L9

EN'I':

County Risk Manager

County of Inyo Stmdard Conhact - No. 156 witb MGE
Amendment I

Page 2

L

ofPersonnel Services

APPROVBDAS TO RISK



AMENDMENT I{UMBER 1 TO
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF'II\IYO AND

MGE ENGINEERING INC
FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

IN WITNESS THEREOF, THE PARTIES HERETO HAVE SET THEIR HANDS AND SEALS THIS
DAY OF ,2019.

COUNTY OF II\YO CONSULTANT

Dated: Dated

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND
LEGALITY:

ByBy:

h*nt
County Counsel

APPROVED AS TO ACCOUNTING
FORM:

County Auditor

APPROVED AS TO PERSONNEL
REQUIREMENTS:

Director of Personnel Services

APPROVED AS TO RISK AS

County Risk Manager

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page2



ATTACHMENT A1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF'INYO AND
MGE ENGINEERING INC.

FOR THE PROVISION OF'ENGINEERING AI\D DESIGN SERVICES

TERM:

FROM: Julv 10.2018 TO: June 30.2021

SCOPE OF WORK:

The scope of work described in the original Contract, dated July 10,2018, is revised to include
additional tasks required for the completion of the environmental review of the Round Valley Bridge
Replacement Project under the California Environmental Quality Act, as further described in the proposal dated
August 9,2019 from GEI Consultants, the environmental sub-consultant to MGE Engineering Inc.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page 3



GEI

( lcotccltrtical

I in itorrnrcotal

\\ atct llcsrrrrrcs

I icoLrgical

Consultants

August 9,2019

MGE Engineering,Inc.
Robert Sennett, S.E.
741.5 Greenhaven Drive, Suite 100

Sacramento, CA 95831

Re: Notth Round Valley Road Bddge Replacement over Pine Creek - Inyo
County Standard Contract #156

Dear Bob:

GEI is pleased for the opportunity to continue providing environmental compliance
services related to the above referenced project. As tequested by Inyo County, GEI will
modi$' existing Task 2.2 "Prepare CEQA Notice of Exemption" to include preparation of
an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for publicf agency review. Our scope for
the tevised task follows and our cost estimate (prepared per Caltrans Exhibit 10-H) is

provided as Attachment #1.

Task2.2. Ptepare CEQANotice of Exemption
Following review of the draft Exemption Memo/Environmental Checklist, County staff
determined that an Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration (IS/MND) will be
necessaqF to complete the CEQA process. GEi will expand the existing Environmental
Checklist by including a project description, preparing the mitigated negative declaration,
completing the checklist sections for public/agency review, and compiling the mitigation
monitodng and reporting program (MMRP). GEI wi// swbnit a drart IS/MND to the

Counf / MGE by August 30, 2019.

Following team review of the draft iS/MND, GEI will prepare the required noticing
(Notice of Completion) and submit 15 CD copies of the public review draft IS/MND to
the State Cleadnghouse to initiate the 30-day publtc/agency review period. Following
review, GEI will incorporate any comment letters received and prepare a fina| IS/MND
fot County staff. Consistent with CEQA guidelines, GEI does not anticipate providing
detailed responses to comment letters received during the 30-day review period.

Task2.2. Assumptions
. As confirmed with the Great Basin Unified Air Pollution Control District, no air

quality modelling will be required to quantiSr au quabty/greenhouse gas emissions
resulting from construction of the project.

*** gcictrtrsttltattts c.t' 
10860coldCcnternri'c,Suit",uu,o-.nStif:".::t3$i|1i;

916.631.4500 fax 916.634.4501

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page 4



Any additional Native Ametican consultation activities consistent with AB 52, will
be provided by County staff.

GEI will provide County staff/MGE with a PDF/word version and up to 20 CD
copies of the IS/MND (including attachments). Any additional paper copies (or
mailing) of the IS/MND will be provided by the County.

On behalf of GEI, we thank you for the oppottunity to present this information to you.
We trust you will find this information adequate for your review. Should you need
additional information or have any futther questions, please do not hesitate to give me a

caf at (91,6) 631-4500.

Sincerely yours,

a

a

Ray Weiss

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page 5



ATTACHMENT B1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF'INYO AND
MGE ENGINEERING INC

FOR THE PROVISION OF ENGINEERING AND DESIGN SERVICES

TERM

FROM: Julv 10,2018 TO: June 30,2021

SCHEDULE OF FEES:

The Schedule of Fees is amended to include the job classification of Associate Bridge Engineer to the approved
job classifications for MGE Engineering Inc., with an initial hourly rate of $54.00Arour, and subject to the
anticipated salary increases described in Attachment B to the Contract.

The consultant shall be compensated at the rates shown in GEI Consultants' proposal dated August 9, 2019 for the
added scope of work described in Attachment A-1. Payment for the rates and costs identified herein shall
constitute full compensation for providing all services, labor, materials and other incidentals to perform all work
described in Attachment A- I . The costs shown in the proposal are estimates of probable cost incurred by the
consultant. The total compensation to be provided shall be for actual work performed, and shall not exceed the
total contract amount.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page 6



Local Assistance Procedures Manual Exhibit l0-Hl
Cost Proposal

EXHIBIT 10-Hl COST PROPOSAL Page I oF 3

ACTUAL COST-PLUS-FTXED FEE OR LUiUp SU]U (FrRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS
(DESIGN, ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL STUDIES)

Note: Mark-ups are Not Allowed Prime Consultant Subconsultant
GEI Consultants Inc.

2nd Tier Subconsultant
Consultant
Project No. Date 8/9/2019North Round Valley Road Bridge

DIRECT LABOR

LABOR COSTS

a) Subtotal Direct Labor Costs

b) Anticipated Salary Increases (see page 2 fbr calculation)

INDIRECT COSTS

d) Fringe Benefits

f) Overhead and G&A
h) General and Administrative

FIXED FEE IO.OO%

Contract No. hryo County # I 56

$l 764.64

$0.00
c) ToTAL DIRECT LABOR COSTS t(a) + (b)l $l^764.64

(Rate: 92.52o/o ) e) Total Fringe Benefits [(c) x (d)] $1.632,6a
(Rate: 102.19% ) g) Overhead [(c) x (0] $1,803.29
(Ratc: 0.00% ) i) Gen & Admin [(c) x (h)] $0.00

32

j) TOTAL INDIRECT coSTS [(e) + (g) + (i)]

k) TOTAL FIXED FEE [(c) + (1)] x (q)l

$3,43s.93

$s20.06

CONSULTANT'S OTHER DIRECT COSTS - ITEMIZE additional if

COSTS

m) SUBCONSULTANTS' COSTS (Add additional prges if necessary)

$

$

$

$

m) TOTAL SUBCONSTILTANTS'COSTS $

n) TOTAL OTHER DIRECT COSTS INCLUDING SUBCONSULTANTS [(l)+(m)] 50.00

NU I ES: TOTAL COST [(c) + (J) + (k) + (n)] $5,720.63

l. Key personnel must be marked with an asterisk (*) and employees that are subject to prevailing wage requirements must be marked with two asterisks
(*x). All costs must cornply with the Federal cost principles. Subconsultants will provide their own cost proposals.
2. The cost proposal format shall not be amended. Indirect cost rates shall be updated on an anrrual basis in accordance with the consultant's annual
accounting period and established by a cognizant agency or accepted by Caltrans.
3. Anticipated salary increases calculation (page 2) must accompany.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MCE
Amendment I

Page 5

$

Classification/Title Name hours Actual Hourlv Rate Total
Senior Professional Ray Weiss 24 $62.80 $ 1.507.20

Document Specialist Charisse Case 6 $35.24 $21 L44
Administrative Assistant Sonia Klinsensmith 2 $23.00 $46.00

0 $ss.68 $0.00

0 $30.96 $0.00

0 $23.48 $0,00

0 $46.80 $0.00

0 $43.28 $0.00

0 $39.44 $0.00

0 $35.24 $0.00

0 $41 .48 $0.00

(rlrt-
Description of ltem Quantitv Unit Unit Cost Total

b $

$

$

$

$ $



EXHIBIT 10-Hl COST PROPOSAL Page 2 of 3

ACTTIAL COST-PLTIS-FIXED FEE OREMS[I!! GIRM FIXED PRICE) CONTRACTS
(CALCULATIONS FOR ANTICIPATED SALARY INCREASES)

l Calculate Average Hourly Rate for lst year of the contract (Direct Labor Subtotal divided by total hours)

Direct Labor Subtotal
per Cost Proposal

$1.764.64

Total Hours

per Cost Proposal

JZ

Proposed Escalation

3.5o/o

3.5o/o

3.5%

3.5%

3.5%

3.5%

Total Hours
per Cost Proposal

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

32.0

Total

Avg Hourly
Rate

$ss. l s

Cost per Year

5 Year Contract

Duration

Year I Avg Hourly Rate

Year 2 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 3 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 4 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 5 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 6 Avg Hourly Rate

Year 7 Avg Hourly Rate

Estimated Hours Year I

Estimated Hours Year 2

Estimated Hours Year 3

Estimated Hours Year 4

Estimated Hours Year 5

Estimated Hours Year 6

Estimated Hours Year I
Estimated Hours Year 2

Estimated Hours Year 3

Estimated Hours Year 4

Estimated Hours Year 5

Estimated Hours Year 6

Transfer to Page I

2. Calculate hourly rate for all years (Increase the Average Hourly Rate for a year by proposed escalation 9/o)

Year I

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

$s7.08

$s9 07

$6r.l4
$63.28

$6s.49

s67.79

Avg Hourly Rate

$ss. I s

$57.08

$s9.07

$61. l4
$63.28

$6s.4e

+

+
+
+
+
+

3. Calculate estimated hours per year (Multiply estimate 7o each year by total hours)

Year I

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

Total

Year I

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5

Year 6

Estimated %
Completed Each Year

r00.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

l00o/o

*

Total Hours

per Year

32.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

32.0

$1,764.64

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

s1,764.64

$t,764.64

$0.00

4. Calculate Total Costs including Escalation (Multiply Average Hourly Rate by the number of hours)

Avg Hourly Rate Estimated hours
(calculated above) (calculated above)

$55.15 * 32.0

$57.08 * 0.0

$59.07 * 0.0

$61.14 * 0.0

$63.28 * 0.0

$65.49 * 0.0

Total Direct Labor Cost with Escalation

Direct Labor Subtotal before Escalation

Estimated total of Direct Labor Salary Increase

NOTES:

l. This is not the only way to estimate salary increases. Other methods will be accepted ifthey clearly indicate the % increase, the # ofyears ofthe contract, and a

breakdown ofthe labor to be perlbrmed each year.

2. An estimation that is based on direct labor multiplied by salary increase %o multiplied by the # ofyears is not acceptable.
(i,e. $250,000 x2o/o x 5 yrs : $25,000 is not an acc€ptable methodology)
3. This assumes that one year will be worked at the rate on the cost proposal before salary increases are granted.

4. Calculations for anticipated salary escalation must be provided.

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page 8



Exhibit 10-Hl Cost Proposal page3 or3

Certification of Direct Costs:

I, the undersigned, certi$to the best ofmy knowledge and beliefthat all direct costs identified on the cost proposal(s) in this contract are

actual, reasonable, allowable, and allocable to the contract in accordance with the contract tenns and the following requirements:

I Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
2 Terms and conditions of the contract
3 Title 23 United States Code Section I l2 - Letting of Contracts

4 48 Code of Federal Regulations Part 3 I - Contract Cost Plinciples and Procedures

5 23 Code of Federal Regulations Part 172 - Procurement, Management, and Administration of Engineering and Design Related

Service

6 48 Code ofFederal Regulations Part 9904 - Cost Accounting Standards Board (when applicable)

All costs must be applied consistently and fbirly to all contracts. All documentation of compliance must be retained in the proje ct files and

be in compliance with applicable t'ederal and state requirements. Costs that are noncompliant with the federal and state requirements are not
eligible for reimbursement.

Local governments are responsible for applying only cognizant agency approved or Caltrans accepted Indirect Cost Rate(s).

Prime Consultant or Subconsultant Certifvins:

Name:

Signature

Email:

Address:

Phil Dunn Title * Vice President

A"**
pdunn @geiconsultants.com

Date of Certification (mm/dd/1ryyy)

Phone Number:

81912019

(916) 631-4500

2868 Prosnect Park Drive. Suite 400, Rancho Cordova, CA 95670

*An individual executive or financial officer ofthe consultant's or subconsultant's organization at a level no lower than a Vice President or
a ChiefFinancial Officer, or equivalent, who has authority to represent the financial information utilized to establish the cost proposal for
the contlact.

List services the consultant is under the contract:

County of Inyo Standard Contract - No. 156 with MGE
Amendment I

Page 9













































































































 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

April 18, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3693  

 

2022 Maintained Mileage Certification 
Public Works 

 ACTION REQUIRED 
   

ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
Greg Waters, Senior Civil Engineer Michael Errante, Public Works Director 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
A) approve Resolution No. 2023-10, titled, “Resolution of the Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo, State 
of California, Annual Certification of the 2022 Maintained Mileage Log," and authorize the Chairperson to 
sign; and B) authorize the Department of Public Works to file the resolution with the District 9 Office of 
the State of California Department of Transportation. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Section 2121 of the Streets and Highways Code stipulates that in May of each year, each County shall 
submit to the California Department of Transportation Districts any additions or exclusions to its mileage 
log of maintained County highways, specifying the termini and mileage of each route added or excluded 
from its County Maintained Mileage Log. The submittal is to be in the form of a Resolution by the Board 
of Supervisors. The reported maintained mileage is for the previous calendar year. The updates required 
for the 2022 Maintained Mileage Certification are shown in Exhibit A to the Resolution. Updates to the 
Inyo County Maintained Mileage for 2022 include abandoning a section of E Market St. in Darwin, 
modifying descriptions of five different roads (no change to length / maintenance), and adding the north 
portion of NW Second Ave in Darwin (0.27mi) and W Water St. in Darwin (0.08mi). Added roads are 
considered by Inyo County legal counsel to already fall under the County’s responsibility. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

N/A Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
 
Additional Information 
 
 

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
The Board could choose not to approve the Resolution certifying the additions and deletions from the 
Inyo County Maintained Mileage Log, and could direct the Public Works Department to modify the list as 
deemed appropriate. 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
County Counsel 
  
ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution for Maintained Mileage Certification 
2. Maintained Mileage Exhibit A 
3. Maintained Mileage Comparisons 
4. Townsite of Darwin Parcel Maps 
5. Darwin Right of Way Map 2022 
  
APPROVALS: 
Greg Waters Created/Initiated - 4/8/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 4/10/2023 
Elsa Fitch Approved - 4/10/2023 
Breanne Nelums Approved - 4/12/2023 
John Pinckney Approved - 4/12/2023 
Shannon Platt Approved - 4/12/2023 
Michael Errante Approved - 4/12/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 4/12/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 4/13/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Resolution 2023-XXXX 

                       RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS,                         
                       COUNTY OF INYO, STATE OF CALIFORNIA,    
              ANNUAL CERTIFICATION OF THE 2022    
           MAINTAINED MILEAGE LOG 

                      WHEREAS, Section 2121 of the Streets and Highways Code requires an annual 
report to Caltrans District 9 Office of the State of California showing the Maintained County 
Road System, specifying the termini and mileage of each route added to or excluded; and 

                 WHEREAS, “Exhibit A” sets the Maintained County Road System from January 1, 2022 
through December 31, 2022;          
             
     NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED, by the Board of Supervisors of 
the County of Inyo the “Exhibit A” attached hereto and made a part hereof by this reference 
shows additions, revisions, and exclusions to the County Maintained Road System for the 
period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022; 

                 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED AND ORDERED, that the Department of Public Works is 
hereby directed to file a certified copy of this resolution with the Caltrans District 9 Office of the 
State of California Department of Transportation. 

             APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this _____ day of _______, _______, by the Inyo County 
Board of Supervisors, County of Inyo: 

 

AYES:   
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
                                                                     ______________________ 
                                                    Chair 
                                                                      Inyo County Board of Supervisors 
ATTEST: 
Nate Greenberg, Clerk of the Board 
By: ________________________________ 
Assistant Clerk of the Board 
                                                                     



Exhibit A 
1. Relinquishment to County from State: None 

2. Additions (new roads): 

Road Name Road No. New Mileage Record Document 

W Water St. 5079 0.08 Board Resolution 79-33 [1] 
Map Figure – Darwin [2] 

3. Additions (extensions): 

Road Name Road No. New Mileage Record Document 

NW Second Ave. 5054A 0.27 Board Resolution 79-33 [1] 
Map Figure – Darwin [2] 

4. Exclusions (abandonment of portion): 

Road Name Road No. New Mileage Record Document 

E Market St. (SE end) 5074 0.37 Board Resolution 79-33 [1] 
Map Figure – Darwin [2] 

5. Exclusions/Additions (road name changes):  

Road Name Road No. Correction Made Record Document 

S Barlow Ln. 1033 
Updating To Road Description – ends at the Indian Cemetery 
at the south end. Current description erroneously states it 
ends at 1106 Saniger Ln. No change to length of road. 

MM Comparisons 2023 QA/QC [3] 

W Fulton St 5053 
Updating To Road Description – ends at intersection with 
Fourth St. Current description erroneously states it ends at 
Olancha-Darwin Rd. No change to length of road. 

Board Resolution 79-33 [1] 
Map Figure – Darwin [2] 



Road Name Road No. Correction Made Record Document 

Fourth St. 5053A Updating From Road Description to match To Road 
description of W Fulton St. No Change to length of road. 

Board Resolution 79-33 [1] 
Map Figure – Darwin [2] 

W Reddy St. 5054 
Updating To Road Description – ends at intersection with 
NW Second Ave. Current description erroneously states it 
ends at Olancha-Darwin Rd. No change to length of road. 

Board Resolution 79-33 [1] 
Map Figure – Darwin [2] 

NW Second 
Ave 5054A Updating From Road Description to match To Road 

description of W Reddy St. No change to length of road. 
Board Resolution 79-33 [1] 
Map Figure – Darwin [2] 

 



Road # Mileage Name From Road To Road
1001 2.28 ROCK CREEK RD Mono County  Li Roads End
1001A 0.58 LAKE RD 1001 Rock Creek Rd Road End
1002 0.61 BOUNDARY RD 1007  Old Sherwin Grade Road 1003  Round Valley Road
1003 4.90 N ROUND VALLEY RD 1010  South Rou 1002 Boundary Rd
1004 1.29 RANGER STATION RD 1003  Round Val Roads End
1005 1.19 MILL CREEK RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
1006 1.28 BIRCHIM LN 1003  North Round Valley Road Hwy 395 South
1007 3.65 OLD SHERWIN GRADE RD 1009  Pine Cree Mono County - P
1008 1.76 VANADIUM RANCH RD 1009  Pine Cree 1003  Round Val
1009 9.47 PINE CREEK RD 1009  Pine Cree Roads End
1010 4.80 S ROUND VALLEY RD 1003  Round Val 1013  Sawmill R
1011 1.77 ROUND VALLEY TUNGSTEN RD 1010  Round Val Roads End
1012 0.21 GORGE RD 1007  Old Sherwin Grade Road Hwy 395
1013 1.89 SAWMILL RD 1016  Ed Powers Hwy 395 South
1014 2.71 TUNGSTEN CITY RD 1016  Ed Powers Roads End
1015 0.39 ABELOR RD 1013 Sawmill Rd Road End
1016 2.43 ED POWERS RD Hwy 168 Hwy 395
1017 1.31 RED HILL RD 1016  Ed Powers Hwy 168
1018 0.06 VALLEY WEST CIR 1023  Sunrise D Roads End
1019 0.38 PLANT FIVE RD 2085  Bishop Cr Roads End
1020 7.24 BUTTERMILK RD Hwy 168 Roads End
1021 0.80 SAND CANYON RD 8012  Non Count 2085  Bishop Cr
1022 2.35 PLEASANT VALLEY DAM RD Hwy 395 1038  Chalk Bluff Road
1023 0.49 SUNRISE DR 1033  Barlow La Roads End
1024 0.51 OTEY RD 1017  Red Hill Roads End
1025 1.04 MUMY LN Hwy 168 1027 Reata Rd
1026 0.41 SHEPARD LN Hwy 168 Roads End
1027 0.82 REATA RD Hwy 168 1028  Underwood
1028 1.18 UNDERWOOD LN 1027  Reata Roa 1033  Barlow La
1029 0.37 MCLAREN LN Hwy 168 1051  Mountian
1030 2.51 BROCKMAN LN Hwy 168 1032  Dixon Lane
1031 2.01 RIVERSIDE RD 1030  Brockman Hwy 6
1032 2.01 DIXON LN 1030  Brockman Lane Hwy 6
1033 3.71 S BARLOW LN 1028 Underwood Ln Indian Cemetery
1034 2.92 BIR RD 1033  Barlow Lane Roads End
1035 1.09 SCHOBER LN 2034  Sunland D 1033  Barlow La
1036 1.86 FIVE BRIDGES RD 1037  Jean Blanc Road Hwy 6
1037 4.64 JEAN BLANC RD 1038  Chalk Bluff Road 1036  Five Bridges Road
1038 5.88 CHALK BLUFF RD 1022  Pleasant Valley Dam Road 1037  Jean Blanc Road
1039 4.46 CASA DIABLO 1038 Chalk Bluff Rd Mono County
1040 3.10 FISH SLOUGH RD 1037  Jean Blanc Road Mono County Line
1041 1.01 NORTH INYO Hwy 6 Road End
1042 1.44 RUDOLPH RD Mono County Roads End
1043 1.28 JOE SMITH RD 1044  Silver Canyon Road 1037  Jean Blanc Road
1044 11.54 SILVER CANYON RD 1045  Laws Pole Hwy 6
1045 1.72 LAWS POLETA RD 1044  Silver Canyon Road 2045  Poleta Laws Road
1046 17.64 WYMAN CREEK RD HWY 168 1083 WHITE MOUNTAIN RD
1047 1.23 OASIS RD Hwy 168 8039  Non Count
1048 8.40 EUREKA VALLEY RD 8039  Non County Road Willow Creek Road
1049 0.20 PLANT SIX RD Hwy 168 Roads End
1050 0.46 HIGHLAND DR 1033  Barlow Lane Roads End
1051 0.16 S MOUNTAIN VIEW RD 1029  McLaren L 1052  Ranch Roa
1052 0.46 RANCH RD 1053  Mt. Tom R 1055  Mt. View
1053 0.39 MOUNT TOM RD 1052 RANCH RD ROAD END
1054 0.23 VISTA RD 1052  Ranch Roa Roads End
1055 0.17 N MOUNTAIN VIEW RD 1052 RANCH ROAD ROAD END
1056 0.46 SUNSET RD 1033  Barlow La Roads End
1058 1.53 CHURCHILL MINE RD 1037  Jean Blanc Road Roads End
1059 1.00 SEE VEE LN Hwy 168 Hwy 395
1060 1.00 TU SU LN Hwy 168 Hwy 395



1061 1.50 S PA HA LN Hwy 395 Road End
1062 1.01 DIAZ LN 1030  Brockman Lane 1059  See Vee Lane
1063 0.50 PA ME LN HWY 168 1078 INDIAN CREEK DR
1064 1.29 FLYNN RD 1045  Laws Poleta Road Roads End
1065 0.53 STEWART RD 1064 FLYNN RD Roads End
1066 3.90 COYOTE VALLEY RD 1028  Underwood Lane Roads End
1067 0.25 MEADOW LN Hwy 168 1071  Pinion Ro
1068 0.44 MESQUITE RD 1072  Laurel Ro "1069 Birch St,"
1069 0.12 E BIRCH ST 1082 GRANDVIEW RD 1063 PA ME LN
1069A 0.09 W BIRCH ST ROAD END ROAD END
1070 0.07 E CEDAR ST 1082 GRANDVIEW RD 1068 MESQUITE RD
1070A 0.06 W CEDAR ST 1067 MEADOW LN 1079 TUMBLEWEED RD
1071 0.09 PINON RD 1070 Cedar St Road End
1072 0.11 LAUREL RD 1071  Pinion Road 1082  Grandview Drive
1073 0.06 RANCH VIEW LN 1052  Ranch Roa Roads End
1074 0.50 LONGVIEW DR 1033  Barlow Lane Roads End
1075 0.30 WATTERSON RD 1027  Reata Roa Roads End
1076 0.47 SIERRA VISTA WAY 1033  Barlow La Roads End
1077 0.86 ROCKING K RD 1016  Ed Powers Roads End
1078 0.32 INDIAN CREEK DR 1063  Pa Me Lane Roads End
1079 0.12 N TUMBLEWEED RD Roads End 1070  Cedar Str
1079A 0.25 S TUMBLEWEED RD 1078  Indian Cr Roads End
1080 0.24 MORNINGSIDE DR 1063  Pa Me Lan Roads End
1081 0.29 WILDROSE LN 1068 MESQUITE RD 1069 BIRCH ST
1082 0.40 GRANDVIEW DR 1068 Mesquite Hwy 168
1083 8.70 WHITE MOUNTAIN RD 2083  White Mou Mono County
1084 0.33 LAZY A DR Hwy 395 1086  Bar M Lane
1085 0.27 IRENE WAY 1057  Irene Street 1116  Carol Lane
1086 0.16 BAR M LN 1091  Rocking W Drive Roads End
1087 0.15 BAR L LN 1091  Rocking W Drive Roads End
1088 0.41 GLENBROOK WAY 1033  Barlow Lane 1090  Orinda Drive
1089 0.78 HORTON CREEK RD 1010  Round Valley Road Roads End
1090 0.13 ORINDA DR 1028  Underwood 1076  Sierra Vi
1091 0.50 ROCKING W DR 1087  Bar L. La Roads End
1092 0.68 ARBOLES DR Roads End Roads End
1093 0.24 REINA RD Roads End Roads End
1094 0.08 VISTA VERDE RD 1098  Mesa Vist Roads End
1095 0.06 ALISO CIR 1092  Arboles Drive Roads End
1096 0.11 MAJORCA CIR 1092  Arboles Drive Roads End
1097 0.16 AVENIDA DEL MONTE 1098  Mesa Vista Drive 1092  Arboles Drive
1098 0.43 MESA VISTA DR Hwy 395 1092  Arboles D
1099 0.45 HOUSTON DR 1092  Arboles Drive Roads End
1100 0.23 BROOKSIDE DR 1029  McLaren Lane Roads End
1101 0.04 MAJESTIC WAY 1052  Ranch Road Roads End
1102 0.06 LURING LN 1052  Ranch Road Roads End
1103 1.28 STARLITE DR Hwy 168 Roads End
1104 0.22 RUNNING IRON RD 1077  Rocking K 1077  Rocking K
1105 0.04 AURORA CIR 1104  Running Iron Road Roads End
1106 0.62 SANIGER LN 1032  Dixon Lan 1107  Juniper S
1107 0.21 JUNIPER DR 1106 SANIGER LN 1108 VALLEY VIEW DR
1108 0.45 VALLEY VIEW DR 1032  Dixon Lan Roads End
1109 0.28 WEST ST 1106  Saniger L Roads End
1110 0.34 POLARIS CIR 1103  Starlite Roads End
1110A 0.07 POLARIS CIR 1103  Starlite Roads End
1111 0.10 ALTAIR CIR 1103  Starlite Drive Roads End
1112 0.33 APOLLO CIR 1103  Starlite Drive Roads End
1113 0.21 LAWS FRONTAGE RD 1044  Silver Canyon Road Unnamed Road
1114 0.25 HARDY RD 1003  Round Valley Road Roads End
1115 0.21 ARCTURIS CIR Roads End 1103  Starlite Drive
1116 0.33 CAROL LN Roads End Roads End
1117 0.19 AUDREY LN Roads End Roads End



1118 0.08 SARAH VIEW 1076  Sierra Vi 1117  Audrey La
1119 0.03 CHEROKEE CIR 1121  Sioux Lane Roads End
1120 0.31 CHOCTAW LN 1120 SIOUX LN 1108 VALLEY VIEW DR
1121 0.09 SIOUX LN 1120  Choctaw Roads End
1122 0.06 WILSON CIR ROAD END 1108 VALLEY VIEW DR
1123 0.05 FAIRVIEW CIR 1075  Watterson Road Roads End
1124 0.35 BEAR CREEK DR 1108  Valley View Drive Roads End
1125 0.03 SILVER CREEK DR 1124  Bear Cree Roads End
1126 0.06 HUNTER WAY 1109  West Street Roads End
1127 0.52 SHOSHONE DR Roads End Roads End
1128 0.06 PAIUTE CIR Roads End Roads End
1129 0.04 ARAPAHOE CIR 1120  Choctaw Lane Roads End
1130 0.04 WASHOE CIR 1120  Chotaw La Roads End
1131 0.52 SUNSET DR 1033  Barlow La Roads End
1132 0.09 SUMMER HAZE CIR Roads End Roads End
1133 0.03 LEISURE CIR 1132  Summer Haze Circle Roads End
1134 0.07 AUTUMN LEAVES CIR Roads End Roads End
1135 0.06 SNOW CIR 1131  Sunset Dr Roads End
1136 0.07 SUNDOWN CIR 1131  Sunset Dr Roads End
1137 0.07 STONE CIR 1108  Valley Vi Roads End
1138 0.18 APACHE DR 1106  Saniger Lane Roads End
1139 0.27 CHEYENNE DR 1127  Shoshone Drive 1127  Shoshone
1140 0.09 NAVAJO CIR 1106  Saniger L Roads End
1141 0.06 GRAZIDE CIR 1108  Valley View Drive Roads End
1142 0.05 HOPI CIR 1106  Saniger Lane Roads End
1143 0.11 KIOWA CIR 1127  Shoshone Drive Roads End
1144 0.03 ZUNI CIR 1127 SHOSHONE DR ROAD END
1145 0.07 HOBBS CIR 1108  Valley View Drive Roads End
2011 0.56 SULFUR RD 2017  Death Val Roads End
2012 1.19 DEEP SPRINGS RANCH RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2013 4.20 POLETA RD Bishop City Lin 2014  Eastside Road
2014 2.19 EASTSIDE RD 2013  Poleta Road 2018  Warm Springs Road
2015 1.96 REDDING CANYON RD 2014  Eastside Roads End
2016 5.65 BLACK CANYON RD 2014  Eastside Road Nat'l Forest Boundary
2017 31.32 DEATH VALLEY RD Hwy 168 3017 Death Valley Rd
2018 6.61 WARM SPRINGS RD 2014  Eastside Roads End
2019 4.11 COLLINS RD 2020  Gerkin Road Roads End
2020 3.60 GERKIN RD 2019  Collins Road Roads End
2021 0.15 OWENS RD Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro
2022 7.07 SOUTH LAKE RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2023 0.29 COLUMBINE DR Hwy 168 Roads End
2024 0.43 LAKE RD 2025 North Lake Rd Roads End
2025 2.00 NORTH LAKE RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2026 0.77 SABRINA RD HWY 168 ROAD END
2027 0.09 NORTH ST Roads End 2020  Gerkin Ro
2028 3.92 COUNTY RD 3028  County Road 2029  Keoughs Hot Spring Road
2029 0.91 KEOUGH HOT SPRINGS Hwy 395 Roads End
2030 1.13 WYE RD
2031 1.69 SUNLAND INDIAN RESERVATION RD HWY 395 1035 SCHOBER LN
2034 3.67 SUNLAND DR Hwy 168 Hwy 395
2035 0.52 SCHOBER LN 2034  Sunland D 1033  Barlow La
2039 0.81 COTTONWOOD LN 2020  Gerkin Road Roads End
2040 0.16 CHERRY TREE CIR 2039  Cottonwood Lane Roads End
2041 0.05 VISTA CIR 2040 Cherry Trail Road End
2042 0.13 JEFFERY CIR COTTONWOOD LN ROAD END
2043 0.27 MANDICH ST 2034  Sunland Drive Bishop
2044 0.08 W JAY ST HWY 395 Road End
2045 1.16 POLETA LAWS RD 1044  Silver Canyon Road 2045  Poleta Laws Road
2047 6.14 WILLOW CREEK RD Eureka Valley Road
2048 12.00 EUREKA VALLEY RD 8039  Non County Road Willow Creek Road
2049 9.35 S EUREKA RD Death Valley Road Roads End



2050 0.25 VAN LOON LN 2013  Poleta Ro Roads End
2053 0.75 AIRPORT RD 2013  Poleta Road Roads End
2054 0.25 RAWSON CREEK RD 2020  Gerkin Ro 2059  Sierra La
2055 0.12 FOOTHILL DR 2020  Gerkin Road Roads End
2056 0.02 TRAIL CIR 2055  Foothill Roads End
2057 0.24 PANORAMA DR 2020  Gerkin Road Roads End
2058 0.47 SIERRA GRANDE 2020  Gerkin Ro Roads End
2059 0.24 SIERRA LADERA ST 2054  Rawson Cr Roads End
2060 0.21 SIERRA BONITA ST 2020  Gerkin Ro 2059  Sierra La
2062 0.03 AGAPE CIR 2019  Collins Road Roads End
2081 0.27 ALPINE DR Hwy 168 Roads End
2083 8.51 WHITE MOUNTAIN RD 2083  White Mou Mono County
2084 0.25 BISHOP GOLF COURSE RD HWY 395 ROAD END
2085 2.71 E BISHOP CREEK RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2085A 0.46 W BISHOP CREEK RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2086 0.10 WHITE PINE RD 2088  Cataract Roads End
2087 0.09 IRIS DR 2090  Cardinal Road Roads End
2088 0.72 CATARACT RD Hwy 168 2023  Columbine Drive
2089 0.16 SAGE DR HWY 168 2081 ALPINE RD
2090 0.48 CARDINAL RD Hwy 168 2023  Columbine Drive
2091 0.07 BROOK LN 2086  White Pine Road Roads End
2092 0.24 MIDDLE FORK RD 2025 North Lake Rd 2026 Sabrina Rd
2093 0.24 RESERVOIR RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2094 1.04 BIG TREES RD Hwy 168 Roads End
2095 0.09 HABEGGER LN 2022  South Lake Road 2096  Canyon Road
2096 0.23 CANYON DR 2095  Habegger Lane Roads End
2097 0.08 MOUNT TOM VIEW DR 2096  Canyon Ro Roads End
2098 0.06 SIERRA SUMMIT Hwy 168 Roads End
2099 0.11 SUMAC RD 2081  Alpine Dr Roads End
2100 0.10 MANZANITA RD 2081  Alpine Drive Roads End
2101 0.10 BARRETT CIR 2039  Cottonwood Lane Roads End
3001 1.58 SUGARLOAF RD 3002 Glacier Lodge Rd Roads End
3002 9.95 GLACIER LODGE RD 3212  West Street Roads End
3003 1.04 REYNOLDS RD 3028  County Ro Hwy 395
3004 0.99 BAKER CREEK RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3005 0.39 CONE RD 3002  Glacier Lodge Road Roads End
3006 7.44 MCMURRAY MEADOWS RD Glacier Lodge Rd Non County Road
3007 0.37 ARC RD 3001  Sugar Loaf Road Roads End
3008 0.50 BIG PINE REPEATER RD 2017 Death Valley Rd Roads End
3009 1.94 BARTELL RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3010 0.47 LOWER GLACIER RD 3006  McMurray Meadows Road Roads End
3011 1.03 NEWMAN ST Hwy 395 3009  Bartell R
3012 1.39 STEWARD LN Hwy 395 Roads End
3013 27.63 WAUCOBA SALINE RD Nat'l Forest Bo 4013  Saline Va
3014 0.34 STEWARD RANCH RD Roads End 3017A  Death Va
3015 0.48 BIG PINE DUMP RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3016 0.24 GREGG RD 3015  Big Pine Dump Road Roads End
3017 32.01 DEATH VALLEY RD Hwy 168 3017 Death Valley Rd
3018 13.29 TINNEMAHA RD Roads End 3035  Fish Spri
3019 0.79 BIRCH CREEK RD 3018  Tinnemaha Road Roads End
3020 1.77 FULLER RD 3018  Tinnemaha Road Roads End
3021 0.22 E ELNA RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3022 4.45 TABOOSE CREEK RD 3018  Tinnemaha Nat'l Forest Bo
3023 2.63 ABERDEEN STATION RD 3018  Tinnemaha ROAD END
3024 1.97 BLACK ROCK SPRINGS RD 3018  Tinnemaha Road 3027  Coloseum Road
3025 3.52 DIVISION CREEK RD 3018  Tinnemaha Road Nat'l Forest Boundary
3026 1.07 UPPER DIVISION CREEK RD 3025  Division Road End
3027 3.13 COLOSEUM RD Hwy 395 3027A N Coloseum Road
3027A 3.15 N COLOSEUM RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
3028 4.26 COUNTY RD Hwy 395 2028  Keoughs Hot Spring Road
3029 2.60 FORT INDEPENDENCE RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395



3030 1.22 FISH HATCHERY RD Hwy 395 3031  Oak Creek Road
3031 4.45 N OAK CREEK RD 3030  Fish Hatc Roads End
3032 1.41 S OAK CREEK RD 3030  Fish Hatc Roads End
3033 0.39 SARAH ST 3407  Payne Str 3406  Kearsarge
3034 0.17 BELL ACCESS RD 3036  Shabbell Lane 3030  Fish Hatchery Road
3035 3.06 FISH SPRINGS RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
3036 1.29 SCHABBELL LN HWY 395 3029 FORT INDEPENDENCE
3037 0.33 SUSAN ST 3405  Market St Roads End
3038 0.50 MARY ST 3409 PARK ST 3409 PARK ST
3039 0.48 LILY ST INYO ST PARK ST
3040 0.50 DALE ST 3408  Pavillion Street 3401 Inyo Steet
3041 0.14 N JEWEL ALY 3401  Inyo Street Roads End
3042 0.16 CAROLYN ST 3411  Sierra Street 3405  Market Street
3045 13.63 MAZOURKA CANYON RD Hwy 395 Nat'l Forest Bo
3046 0.80 DUMP RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3047 12.78 ONION VALLEY RD 3405  West Mark Nat'l Forest Bo
3048 0.98 CRATER ST 3050 Baker Ln 3051 Butcher Ln
3049 0.49 PIPER ST 3050 BAKER LN 3009 BARTELL RD
3050 0.17 BAKER LN 3048  Crater Street 3049  Piper Street
3051 0.26 BUTCHER LN Hwy 395 3011  Newman Street
3052 0.34 SEVEN PINES RD 3047  Onion Val Roads End
3053 0.50 GRIFFITH RD 3035  Fish Springs Road 3018  Tinnemaha Road
3054 0.35 TERRACE DR 3003  Reynolds 3003  Reynolds
3055 2.78 FOOTHILL RD 3047  Onion Valley Road Roads End
3056 2.21 GOODALE RD Hwy 395 Roads End
3057 0.23 PINE RD 3003  Reynolds Road 3061  Elm Crest
3058 0.17 JUNIPER RD 3003  Reynolds Road 3059  Mountain Road
3059 0.23 MOUNTAIN RD 3057 Pine Rd 3060 Meadow Lark Rd
3060 0.05 MEADOWLARK RD 3059  Mountian 3061  Elmcrest
3061 0.32 ELMCREST DR Roads End Roads End
3063 0.22 CARMELEA LN Roads End 3070  Olivia Lane
3064 0.14 MARIANNE WAY 3063  Carmelea Lane 3070  Olivia Lane
3065 0.06 JULIE ANN LN 3003  Reynolds Road 3064  Marianne Way
3066 0.09 BETTY LOU LN 3065 Julie Ann Ln Road End
3067 0.04 MICHELLE CIR 3066  Betty Lou Roads End
3068 0.15 MYRTLE LN 3003  Reynolds 3070  Olivia Ro
3069 0.06 KRISTINE CIR 3068  Myrtle Lane Roads End
3070 0.34 OLIVIA LN 3028  County Ro Hwy 395
3071 0.03 TAMMY LN 3063 Carmela La Roads End
3072 0.04 TAWNYA CIR 3070 OLIVIA LANE ROAD END
3201 0.07 POPLAR AVE Hwy 395 Roads End
3202 0.10 CENTER ST 3216  Washington Street 3215  Pine Street
3203 0.15 LOCUST ST 3216 WASHINGTON ST HWY 395
3204 0.10 HOME ST 3215  Pine Street 3216  Washington Street
3205 0.09 NANCY LN 3212  West Stre Roads End
3206 0.50 W CROCKER AVE Hwy 395 3212  West Street
3206A 0.05 E CROCKER AVE Hwy 395 3215 Pine
3207 0.32 CORNELL ST 3213  School Street Roads End
3208 0.25 DEWEY ST 3213  School Street Roads End
3209 0.25 CHESTNUT ST Hwy 395 3213  School Street
3210 0.25 WALNUT ST 3213  West Stre Hwy 395
3211 0.25 BLAKE ST Hwy 395 3213  School Street
3212 0.46 WEST ST
3213 1.00 S SCHOOL ST 3211 Blake Rd 3028 County Road
3214 0.10 HALL ST 3209  Chestnut Street 3208  Dewey Street
3215 0.39 PINE ST 3201 POPLAR ST HWY 395
3216 0.12 WASHINGTON ST 3204  Home Stre 3202  Center St
3217 0.04 SARA LN 3209  Chestnut Roads End
3401 0.22 E INYO ST Hwy 395 Roads End
3401A 0.03 W INYO ST 3405  Market St ROAD END
3402 0.22 E WALL ST Hwy 395 3423  Crockett



3402A 0.07 W WALL ST 3416  Washingto Hwy 395
3403 0.15 E MAIN ST Hwy 395 3421  Clay Street
3403A 0.22 W MAIN ST 3412  Grant Street Hwy 395
3404 0.14 E CENTER ST 3421  Clay Street Hwy 395
3404A 0.22 W CENTER ST Hwy 395 3412  Grant Street
3405 0.22 W MARKET ST Hwy 395 3047  Onion Valley Road
3405A 0.39 E MARKET ST 3424  Rosedale Hwy 395
3406 0.14 E KEARSARGE ST 3421  Clay Street Hwy 395
3406A 0.18 W KEARSARGE ST Hwy 395 Roads End
3407 0.14 E PAYNE ST 3421  Clay Stre Hwy 395
3407A 0.22 W PAYNE ST Hwy 395 Roads End
3408 0.31 E PAVILION ST 3424  Rosedale Hwy 395
3408A 0.18 W PAVILION ST Hwy 395 3414  Webster Street
3409 0.15 E PARK ST 3419  Jackson Street Hwy 395
3409A 0.18 W PARK ST Hwy 395 3416  Washington Street
3410 0.08 W CITRUS ST HWY 395 3416 WASHINGTON ST
3411 0.07 E SIERRA ST 3424 ROSEDALE ST 3426 VALLEY VIEW DR
3412 0.14 N GRANT ST 3402  Wall Street 3403  Main Street
3414 0.18 N WEBSTER ST 3405  Market St Roads End
3414A 0.34 S WEBSTER ST 3408  Pavilion 3405  Market St
3416 0.21 N WASHINGTON ST 3405  Market St 3401  Inyo Stre
3416A 0.37 S WASHINGTON ST 3410  Citrus St 3405  Market St
3419 0.29 N JACKSON ST 3401  Inyo Street 3405  Market Street
3419A 0.29 S JACKSON ST 3405  Market Street 3409  Park Street
3421 0.29 N CLAY ST 3401  Inyo Street 3405  Market Street
3421A 0.47 S CLAY ST 3405  Market Street Roads End
3423 0.05 N CROCKETT ST 3402 WALL ST ROAD END
3424 0.24 S ROSEDALE DR 3408 PAVILLION ST 3405 MARKET ST
3426 0.25 S VALLEY VIEW DR 3405 MARKET ST Roads End
4001 5.49 MANZANAR REWARD RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4003 13.89 OWENYO LONE PINE RD 4001  Manzanar 4010  Dolomite
4004 4.06 MOFFAT RANCH RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4005 1.11 PANGBORN LN Hwy 395 Hwy 395
4006 3.38 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD HWY 395 4003 OWENYO-LONE PINE RD
4006A 0.21 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE  RD 4006 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD
4006B 0.20 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD 4006 LONE PINE NARROW GAUGE RD 4003 OWENYO-LONE PINE RD
4009 16.17 WHITE MOUNTAIN TALC RD 4013  Saline Valley Road Roads End
4010 4.53 DOLOMITE LOOP RD Hwy 136 Hwy 136
4011 0.26 COTTONWOOD POWERHOUSE RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4012 7.03 UBEHEBE RD Nat'l Park Boun 4013  Saline Va
4013 48.69 SALINE VALLEY RD 3013  Waucoba S 5013  Saline Va
4014 0.13 CAMPGROUND RD 4015  Putnam Road 4018  Whitney Portal Road
4015 0.93 PUTNAM RD 4018  Whitney Portal Road Road End
4016 0.18 BUDKE RD 4015 Putnam Road Road End
4017 18.96 HORSESHOE MEADOWS RD 4018  Whitney Portal Road Roads End
4018 11.83 WHITNEY PORTAL RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4019 5.45 TUTTLE CREEK RD 4018  Whitney P 4023  Lubken Ca
4020 2.87 GRANITE VIEW DR 4017  Horseshoe Meadows Road Roads End
4021 1.47 SUB STATION RD 4425  Line Stre Roads End
4022 1.83 INDIAN SPRINGS DR 4019  Tuttle Creek Road 4048  Dominy Road
4023 3.36 LUBKEN CANYON RD Hwy 395 4017  Horshoe M
4024 0.93 CARROLL CREEK RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4025 4.25 COTTONWOOD RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4026 6.77 HOGBACK RD 4037  Movie Road 4004  Moffatt Ranch Road
4027 7.81 CERRO GORDO RD 8054  Non County Road Hwy 136
4029 4.90 SANTA ROSA RD 5013  Saline Va Roads End
4031 0.54 OLANCHA-DUMP RD 4206 OLD STATE HWY ROAD END
4032 0.19 BARTLETT RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4033 0.51 LONE PINE GOLF COURSE RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4034 0.26 LASKY LN 4005  Pangborn Lane Roads End
4035 0.12 PANGBORN ST 4034 LASKY LN ROAD END



4036 0.13 KELLOGG ST 4034  Lasky Lane Roads End
4037 5.73 MOVIE RD 4018  Whiteny P 4026  Hogback R
4038 2.39 OLIVAS RANCH RD 4018  Whitney P Roads End
4039 0.78 MAGAZINE RD TUTTLE CREEK RD UNNAMED RD
4041 0.50 GOODWIN RD 4021  Sub Station Road Roads End
4042 0.50 ZUCCO RD 4058 TEYA RD 4021 SUB STATION RD
4043 0.56 BURKHARDT RD Hwy 395 Roads End
4044 0.93 THUNDERCLOUD LN 4019  Tuttle Cr 4045  Shahar Av
4045 0.58 SHAHAR AVE Roads End Roads End
4046 0.95 SUNSET DR 4044 Thundercloud Ln 4017 Horseshoe Meadows Rd
4047 7.07 HUNTER MOUNTAIN RD 4013  Saline Valley Road Roads End
4048 0.12 DOMINY RD 4022  Indian Springs Drive Roads End
4049 0.75 ALABAMA DR 4019  Tuttle Creek Road 4050  McDonald Road
4050 0.35 MCDONALD RD 4045  Shahar Av 4022  Indian Sp
4051 0.10 A ST 4404  Willow St 4018 Whitney Portal Rd
4052 0.27 B ST 4403  Locust St Roads End
4053 0.11 C ST 4409  Post Stre 4403  Locust St
4054 0.06 D ST 4404 WILLOW ST 4403 LOCUST ST
4055 0.12 E ST 4411  Muir Stre 4422  Hay Stree
4056 0.24 F ST 4411  Muir Stre 4407  Mountian
4057 0.05 MCELROY LN 4405  Bush Stre 4404  Willow St
4058 0.12 TEYA RD Hwy 395 4042  Zucco Roa
4060 0.16 WHITNEY VISTA DR 4018 Whitney Portal Rd 4061 Mt Langley Lane
4061 0.39 MT LANGLEY LN 4060 Whitney Vista Dr 4063 Valley View Dr
4062 0.25 HUNTER RD 4022 Indian Springs Rd Road End
4063 0.17 VALLEY VIEW DR 4018 Whitney Portal Rd 4061 Mt Langley Ln
4201 0.03 LINCOLN ST 4206  Old State Highway 4205  Yerington Avenue
4202 0.06 FRANKLIN ST 4206  Old State Highway 4205  Yerington Avenue
4203 0.26 MALONE ST Hwy 136 4209  Maud Street
4204 0.24 CERRO GORDO ST 4209  Maud Street Hwy 136
4205 0.28 YERINGTON AVE 4201 LINCOLN ST 4204 CERRO GORDO
4206 0.55 OLD STATE HWY 4031  Olancha D Hwy 136
4207 0.24 RAILROAD AVE 4204  Cerro Gor 4206  Old State
4208 0.19 LAWS AVE 4204  Cerro Gordo Street Roads End
4209 0.11 MAUD ST 4203 MALONE ST 4204 CERRO GORDO
4401 0.07 BEGOLE ST 4419  Jackson Street Hwy 395
4403 0.05 STATHAM WAY 4416  Washingto 4414  Brewery S
4403A 0.06 W LOCUST ST Hwy 395 4416  Washingto
4403B 0.40 E LOCUST ST 4424  Lakeview Hwy 395
4404 0.16 E WILLOW ST HWY 395 LONE PINE AVE
4404A 0.08 W WILLOW ST HWY 395 STREET A
4405 0.46 W BUSH ST 4428  Fairbanks Street Hwy 395
4405A 0.09 E BUSH ST Hwy 395 Roads End
4407 0.33 E MOUNTAIN VIEW ST 4414  Brewery S Hwy 395
4407A 0.11 W MOUNTAIN VIEW ST Hwy 395 4414  Brewery S
4408 0.10 E WHITNEY PORTAL RD 4421 LONE PINE RD HWY 395
4409 0.36 E POST ST 4425  Line Stre Hwy 395
4409A 0.11 W POST ST Hwy 395 4414  Brewery S
4410A 0.08 E SOUTH ST 4424 S Lake View Rd 4425 Line St
4411 0.32 MUIR ST 4055  Street E "4056 Street F,0.000"
4412 0.08 SCHOOL ST 4424 Lake View Ave 4425 Line St
4413 0.28 E INYO ST Hwy 395 4425 Line St
4413A 0.03 W INYO ST Hwy 395 Non County Road
4414 0.20 S BREWERY ST Roads End 4407  West Mountain View Street
4414A 0.16 N BREWERY ST 4407  West Mountain View Street 4403  Statham Way
4416 0.16 N WASHINGTON ST 4407 Mountain View St 4403 Statham Way
4416A 0.21 S WASHINGTON ST 4407 Mountain View St 4430 Gene Autry Ln
4419 0.20 N JACKSON ST 4401 Begole St 4407 Mountain View St
4419A 0.05 S JACKSON ST 4408 E Whitney Portal Rd 4407 W Mountain View St
4421 0.16 N LONE PINE AVE 4403  Statham Way 4407  Mountian
4421A 0.24 S LONE PINE AVE 4407  Mountain View Street 4411  Muir Street



4422 0.16 N HAY ST 4403  Statham Way 4407  Mountain View Street
4422A 0.24 S HAY ST 4407  Mountain View Street 4411  Muir Stre
4423 0.24 S MOUNT WHITNEY DR 4411 MUIR ST 4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST
4423A 0.25 N MT WHITNEY DR 4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST ROAD END
4424 0.33 S LAKE VIEW AVE 4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST 4413 INYO ST
4424A 0.16 N LAKE VIEW AVE 4407 MOUNTAIN VIEW ST 4403 STATHAM WAY
4425 0.19 LINE ST 4413  Inyo Street 4409  Post Street
4426 0.34 ROY ROGERS RD 4414  Brewery S 4018  Whitney P
4427 0.26 E LUBKEN AVE HWY 395 ROAD END
4428 0.10 FAIRBANKS ST 4405  Bush Street 4018  Whitney Portal Road
4429 0.11 TIM HOLT ST 4414  Brewery S Hwy 395
4430 0.08 GENE AUTRY LN Hwy 395 Roads End
5001 1.80 CLAY RD Nevada State Line Roads End
5002 5.17 STATE LINE RD Hwy 127 Nevada State Li
5003 7.31 PETRO RD 5005  Furnace C Hwy 127
5005 36.70 FURNACE CREEK WASH RD Hwy 127 5050  Western Talc Road
5005A 12.32 FURNACE CREEK RD Hwy 127 5050  Western Talc Road
5006 2.53 TECOPA HOT SPRINGS RD 5005  Furnace C 5007  Old Spani
5007 30.17 OLD SPANISH TRAIL HWY Hwy 127 Nevada State Li
5008 2.04 CHINA RANCH RD 5005  Furnace Creek Road Roads End
5009 20.81 MESQUITE VALLEY RD 5050  Western T Nevada State Li
5010 6.19 LOST SECTION RD 5005 FURNACE CREEK RD ROAD END
5011 5.48 OLANCHA-DARWIN RD Hwy 190 5074 Market St
5012 2.80 TALC CITY RD Hwy 190 Roads End
5013 5.75 SALINE VALLEY RD HWY 190 4013 Saline Valley Rd
5013A 4.75 SALINE VALLEY ALT HWY 190 5013  Saline Va
5014 4.11 ZINC HILL RD 5015 Ophir Road Road End
5015 7.85 OPHIR RD 5075  Second Av 5016  Old Toll
5016 8.66 OLD TOLL RD 5015  Ophir Road Hwy 190
5017 23.92 NADEAU RD Hwy 190 5029  Trona-Wil
5018 13.92 PANAMINT VALLEY RD 5029  Trona-Wil Hwy 190
5019 3.60 MINIETTA RD 5018  Panamint 5017  Nadeau Ro
5020 0.87 W FALL RD
5021 1.07 SHOP ST Hwy 395 Roads End
5022 4.25 WALKER CREEK RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5023 0.40 SCHOOL RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5024 10.15 CACTUS FLATS RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5025 5.46 SAGE FLATS DR Hwy 395 Roads End
5026 1.57 ASH CREEK RD HWY 395 ROAD END
5027 2.61 HAIWEE CANYON RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5028 0.23 GENTRY RD 5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway 5007  Old Spanish Trail Highway
5029 34.13 TRONA WILDROSE RD SBD County 8070  Non Count
5030 0.42 PADRE POINT RD Hwy 190 Roads End
5031 0.53 LITTLE LAKE RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
5032 4.90 SLATE RANGE RD 5017  Nadeu Roa 5018  Panamint
5033 4.46 SURPRISE CANYON RD 5035  Wingate R Roads End
5034 3.64 BALLARAT RD 5029  Trona-Wildrose Road 5035  Wingate Road
5035 20.06 WINGATE RD SAN BERNARDINO 5034 Ballarat Rd
5035A 11.87 INDIAN RANCH RD 5034  Ballarat Road 5029  Trona-Wildrose Road
5036 9.11 COYOTE CANYON RD 8093  Non County Road 5035  Wingate Road
5037 0.41 VALLEY WELLS RD 5029  Trona-Wil 5044  Stockwell
5038 5.48 GILLS STATION COSO RD 5039  Sykes Road Roads End
5039 1.08 SYKES RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5040 9.84 NINE MILE CANYON RD Hwy 395 Tulare County L
5041 0.58 DOWNEY RD 5006  Tecop Hot Springs Road 8080  Non County Road
5043 0.77 CINDER RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5044 1.85 STOCKWELL MINE RD 5037  Valley We Roads End
5045 0.80 TRONA AIRPORT RD 5029  Trona-Wil Roads End
5046 0.19 ANDERSON WAY 5041  Downey Road Roads End
5048 4.96 HOMEWOOD CANYON RD 5029  Trona-Wildrose Road Roads End
5049 1.04 SMITH TALC RD 5009 MESQUITE San Bernardino County



5050 1.11 WESTERN TALC RD 5005  Furnace C San Bernardino
5051 13.95 MESQUITE VALLEY RD 5050  Western T Nevada State Li
5052 0.61 OLD STATE HWY Hwy 127 Hwy 127
5053 0.20 W FULTON ST 5014 Zinc Hill Rd 5053A Fourth St
5053A 0.05 FOURTH ST 5053 Fulton St Market St
5054 0.11 W REDDY ST 5014 Zinc Hill Rd 5023 Reddy Rd
5054A 0.27 NW SECOND AVE 5023 Reddy Rd 5011 Olancha Darwin Rd
5055 1.01 TALC CITY CUTOFF 5012  Talc City Hwy 190
5056 0.63 QUARRY RD 5029  Trona-Wil Roads End
5058 0.90 NOONDAY ST 5006  Tecopa Ho 5006  Tecopa Ho
5059 0.25 SUNDOWN ST 5058  Noonday S 5058  Noonday S
5060 0.67 BOB WHITE WAY 5041  Downey Road 5005  Furnace Creek Road
5061 0.46 CROW CANYON RD 5048  Homewood Canyon Road Roads End
5062 0.43 ELIAS RD 5006  Tecopa Hot Springs Road Roads End
5069 0.51 WILLIAMS RD 5020 FALL RD ROAD END
5070 0.40 SUMMER RD 5020  Fall Road Roads End
5071 0.11 SPRING CIR 5020  Fall Road Roads End
5072 3.03 STERLING RD 5040  Nine Mile Kern County Lin
5073 1.26 PEARSON RD Hwy 395 Hwy 395
5074 0.37 E MARKET ST 5011 Olancha Darwin Rd 5075 SE Second Ave
5075 0.19 SE SECOND AVE 5074 MARKET ST 5015 OPHIR RD
5076 0.41 LAKEVIEW RD 5077 Enchanted Lakes Road Roads End
5077 1.53 ENCHANTED LAKES RD Hwy 395 Roads End

5079 0.08 W WATER ST End of NW Second St Road Ends
5078 1.51 LAKE VILLAGE RD Hwy 395 Roads End
5201 0.18 WHITNEY ST 5206  Mojave St Hwy 39
5202 0.11 LAKE ST
5203 0.05 OWENS ST 5204  Sierra St 5205  Cartago S
5204 0.25 SIERRA ST 5201 Whitney St 5203 Owen St
5205 0.24 CARTAGO ST 5203 OWENS ST 5201 WHINTEY ST
5206 0.17 MOJAVE ST 5201 Whitney St Road End

1095.61















































MARKET - #5074

OP
HIR

 - #
50

15

FO
URTH

 - #
505

3A

ZINC HILL - #
501

4

SECOND - #
507

5

SECOND - #
505

4A

REDDY - #5054

OLANCHA-DARWIN - #5011

FULTON - #5053

MCKENZIE

FIF
TH

FULTON

REDDY

RENO

FO
URTH

FIR
ST

FIR
ST

SECOND
FIR

ST

MCKENZIE

ZINC HILL

ANTHONY

WATER

FIR
ST

KEARNY

REDDY

Source: Esri, Maxar, Earthstar Geographics, and the GIS User Community
¯

0 250 500125 Feet

Townsite of Darwin - Right of Way (2022)
Maintained Mileage

MM - Abandon

Non-MM Road

Paper Road

Parcels

MM RoW

Road Present RoW

Paper RoW



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

             
 

AGENDA ITEM REQUEST FORM 
 

April 18, 2023   Reference ID:  
2023-3678  

 

Public Works Update on Roads, Sewer Pond, and Future 
Projects 

Public Works 
 NO ACTION REQUIRED 

   
ITEM SUBMITTED BY ITEM PRESENTED BY 
John Pinckney, Assistant Public Works Director Michael Errante, Public Works Director, John 

Pinckney, Assistant Public Works Director, Greg 
Waters, Senior Civil Engineer 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive an informational update from Public Works on current and future projects taking place in the 
Tecopa/Shoshone area. 
  
BACKGROUND / SUMMARY / JUSTIFICATION: 
Public Works has road projects, grant applications and other ongoing projects of potential interest to the 
community at the Death Valley / South County Board of Supervisors Meeting. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Funding 
Source 

Multiple Budget Unit  

Budgeted? N/A Object Code  
Recurrence N/A  
Current Fiscal Year Impact 
No change to current fiscal year or budget. 
Future Fiscal Year Impacts 
N/A 
Additional Information 
 
 
ALTERNATIVES AND/OR CONSEQUENCES OF NEGATIVE ACTION: 
N/A 
  
OTHER DEPARTMENT OR AGENCY INVOLVEMENT: 
None. 
  

INYO COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
TRINA ORRILL •  JEFF GRIFFITHS •  SCOTT MARCELLIN •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  MATT  KINGSLEY

DAN TOTHEROH  •  JEFF  GRIFFITHS  •  RICK  PUCCI  •  JENNIFER  ROESER  •  M A T T  K I N G S L E Y

NATE GREENBERG
CO U N T Y  AD M I N I S T R A T I V E  OF F I C E R

DARCY ELLIS
AS S T .  CL E R K  O F  T H E  BO A R D



 

 
P. O. Drawer N | 224 N. Edwards Street | Independence, CA 93526 

(760) 878-0292 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS:  
  
APPROVALS: 
John Pinckney Created/Initiated - 3/27/2023 
Darcy Ellis Approved - 3/28/2023 
John Pinckney Approved - 3/28/2023 
John Vallejo Approved - 3/28/2023 
Amy Shepherd Approved - 3/28/2023 
Nate Greenberg Final Approval - 4/12/2023 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	 Call to Order in Furnace Creek (Furnace Creek Visitors Center, California 190, Death Valley)
	1) Workshop - The Board will convene at the Furnace C

	 Call to Order in Tecopa (Hurlbutt-Rook Community Center, 405 Tecopa Hot Springs Rd., Tecopa, CA)
	2) Pledge of Allegiance
	Agenda Request Form

	3) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	4) County Department Reports

	 Consent Agenda
	5) Approval of Board of Supervisors Meeting Minutes
	Agenda Request Form
	Draft April 4, 2023 Minutes

	6) Amendment No. 1 to the Contract with TerraVerde En
	Agenda Request Form
	TerraVerde Energy Amendment No. 1

	7) Amendment No. 4 to MGE Engineering, Inc. Contract
	Agenda Request Form
	MGE Engineering Inc. Contract Amendment No. 4
	 MGE Engineering Inc. Contract Amendment No. 3 
	MGE Engineering Inc. Contract Amendment No. 2 
	MGE Engineering Inc. Contract Amendment No. 1
	MGE Engineering Inc. Contract

	8) 2022 Maintained Mileage Certification
	Agenda Request Form
	Resolution for Maintained Mileage Certification
	Maintained Mileage Exhibit A
	Maintained Mileage Comparisons
	Townsite of Darwin Parcel Maps
	Darwin Right of Way Map 2022


	 Regular Agenda - Afternoon
	9) Presentations/Updates - The following individuals 
	10) Public Works Update on Roads, Sewer Pond, and Futu
	Agenda Request Form


	 Additional Public Comment & Reports
	11) Public Comment Comments may be time-limited
	12) Board Member and Staff ReportsReceive updates on r
	Agenda Request Form





